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ProCook is the UK's leading direct-to-consumer
specialist kitchenware brand. Operating a direct-to-
consumer business model, designing, sourcing, and
retailing a high-quality range of cookware, kitchen
accessories and tableware we provide customers with
exceptional value for money with our price promise of
being at least 30% cheaper than comparable products
from other brands.

We sell our ranges directly through our own proprietary website,
www,procook couk. and through 55 own-brand retail stores, tocated
across the UK in popular leisure-based destination retail centres.
our products are also available in Germany and France with delivery
options extending to Belgium. Austria, Luxembourg. the Netherlands,
and Poland.

Founded over 25 years ago as a family business. selling cookware sets
by direct mailin the UK, ProCook has grown intc a market leading.
multi-channel specialist kitchenware company, employing over 700
colleagues, and operating from our Head Office in Gloucester.
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Strong revenue growth of +29.5% (+78.0%
vs FY20), with retail stores re-openea
following the end of Covid-19 restrictions,
and our UK website up «250.3% vs

FY20. highlighting the strength of our
multichannel proposition

LFL revenue growth of 32.1% («123.5%
vs FY20) and opened eight new stores
during the year

Outperformed the UK kitchenware market
by +36.0%ptsi: consistently taking market
share with substantial future epportunities
to continue to penetrate the UK market
Growth in active custemers of +74.9% YoY,
Attracted 723,000 new customers
Increased 12-month repeat rates to 25.5%
{(+6.9% YoY}

Strong gross margins of 65.1%. down YoY
as expected after impact of suppty chain
cast pressures
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Underlying PBT of £9.5m (FY2L £8 3m}
reflecting shift back to more normal
operating costs post-pandemic

New £10m revolving credit facility
secured in April 2022 increasing total
facilities to £16m. Year-end net debt of
£1.8m (FY21 net cash £3.1m)

Great place to Work Certification™
awarded in year

Carbon neutral for Scope | and il
emissions, developing roadmap to Net
Zero including scope [l

Sugccessful IPO with ProCook Group
ple listing on the premium segment

of the London Stock Exchange on

12 November 2021

Final dividend of Q. 9p proposed by the
Beard, reflecting our strong financial
performance in the year

1 UK Kitchenware market growtn lexclucing ProCeok) caicuated using
weex<h, GfK data and manageent estimrates
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Why Invest in ProCook

We're passichate about cooking and on a mission to become the customers' first choice for
kitchenware. We are the UK's leading direct-to-consumer (“D2C") specialist kitchenware
brand with considerable opportunity to develop and grow our customer base.

Market

Attractive market dynamics
with a fragmented competitive
tandscape in the UK and
overseas

D2C Brand

D2C husiness model and own
brand offer provides a significant
competitive advantage. with control
of the entire customer journey

Infrastructure

Well invested infrastructure
provides an agile and scalable
platform for growth

ProCook Group plc Annuat Repd
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Growth

Clear strategy for sustainable
long term growth through
customer acquisition and
retention. channel and
category devetlopment

Financials

Track record of revenue
growth. with strong product
and operating margins, and
cash generation

Management

Highly experienced
management team. with a
stroeng entrepreneurial and
family-oriented heritage creating
an ambitious growth culture




At a Glance

e
Stores nationwide Distribution centres
~ covering 91,000 sq.ft.
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lndmdual I Colleagues sharing a
kitchenware products passion for cooking

Carbon emissions - - - Waste to landfill
for home delivery, ~  {inourcentral
' operations)
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nthe. UK, our customers can shop with usin 55

of our stores located in lelsure—based designer

. outlets; destination retail centres andigarden
centtes Offering our custo_n;pers uhrivailed choice,
convenience, and the opportunity to pick up and
test gur products, they will be greeted by our
Rriow[edgeable and helpful colleagues to heip
them find exactly what they're looking for.

Quir customers can also shop with us at our

- dedicated website www.procock.co.uk. As well as

. being easy and intuitive to use, our online shopping

' expérience provides our customers with our ’
latest great offers, as wetl as next-day delivery as
standard when ordering before 7 pm, and for free
when spending over £50.

In 2021, ProCook opened its new Cookery School,
located above the new ProCook Tottenham Court
Road store in central London, providing a fantastic
‘facility for individuals and groups to devetlop their
own passion for cooking, and atlowing ProCook to
develop digital content for marketing and customer

engagement.
Bl PDesigner outlet centres

8 Garden centres
[[] Destination retail
[l Head Office
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At a Glance conrnues
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Trar products

At ProCook. we're passionate about creating high-quality products that appeal to a broad range of
customers. Designed in-house, our extensive. stylish range of coockware, kitchen accessories and tableware
products deliver cur customers superb functionality and high levels of performance in the kitchen,

Enabled by our direct-to-consumer rmodel. our pricing strategy targets savings of at least 30% for the
customer compared to simitar-quality products from other brands, so we're able to offer excellent-quality
products that are buitt to Last, all at great value.

e

Cookware

Offering superb quality. durability

and functionality for a better cooking
experience, our cockware has a range
to suit everyone.

British Design

Products are designed and refined by
our in-house design team

Kitchen accessories

From professional quality kitchen
knives to niche kitchen gadgets, our
extensive accessories range offers
everything far the home cook.

8.0 8 & ¢
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Guaranteed Quality

ProCook offers excellent-quality
products with strong guarantees

04 ProCook Greup ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Tableware

Cur expanding tableware range
includes stytish dinnerware to suit all
tastes and budgets. as well as drinkware
and accessories for every occasion

Why Pay More?

ProCook targets savings of at least 30%
compared (o other leading brands
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ProCook is focused on delivering sustainable and profitable growth,
creating long-term value for our customers, communities, colleagues
and our shareholders.
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Our purpose and brand proposition
Sharing our passion for cooking

We design and
source beautiful

e,
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V products a
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great value

We create
inspirational
and memorable
experiences for
customers

Wk A kN We offer friendly,

(\ knowledgeable

‘ & service customers
can trust

Our mission and strategic priorities

Our mission is to be the customers’
first choice for kitchenware

01 Attract, engage and retain more customers
02 Develop our customer proposition
03 Build on our foundations

& :
~ Trustpilot =~z k- TR EE
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Rated excellent Direct Commerce The Sunday Living wage Great place Official Woodland
Over 81,000 reviews Awards Times HSBC employer to work Trust partner
Winner 2021 International
Track 2021
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Our History

ProCook began its journey over 25 years ago, as a family business selling cookware sets
by direct mailin the UK,

The first sales were made through an advert in the Good Food Magazine featuring a 12-piece stainless steel
cookware set which retaited at £199. The pan set was sourced directly from the Far East and over 350 orders
were placed from that single page advertisement. The O'Neill family founders had spotted an opportunity in
the marketplace to offer high-quality, great-value. kitchenware products directly to the consumer

71996 © 2005

Professional Cookware Company
founded by the O'Neill Family Transactional website launched, with

a focus on proprietary platforms

1999

Opened first designer outlet centre
store in Mansfield offering extended
kitchenware ranges

® 2008

Rebranded to ProCook ~
beginning the transition
to selling own-brand
direct-sourced products
exclusively

(8]) ProCoock Group plc




Began trading on Amazon DE,
followed by Amazon FR one year later

® 2020

Accelerated online trading in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic

2021

Listed on Premium Segment of the London
Stock Exchange on 12 November 2021

Opened 8 new stores in the UK, taking
total retail estate to 55 stores

Acquired Steamer Trading. adding
scale and national footprint

ProCook Group ple o7



ProCook Group plc

| am pleased to repaort on our
first annual results as a publicly
listed company. The year has
been challenging in many ways,;
however, the business has
madle considerable progress,
During the year, we significantly
grew our customer base,
delivered another record sales
performance, and expanded
our store portfolio and product
range, whilst also completing our
initial public offering ('(POY.

| would like to thank all of our
ProCook team, suppliers and
partners on behalf of the Board
for their energy and dedication
to continually improving our
customer proposition.

The return to a more normal
life for our customers following
the Covid-19 restrictions which
dominated so much of the
previous two years offered a
welcome boost to trading in
the year as our retail stores
re-opened. Fortunately, the
impact of the Omicron variant,
which resulted in lower footfall
during quarters three and four.
was relatively short lived. Global
supply chain disruptions have
continued to present multiple
and comptex challenges and
cur buying. logistics and supply
chain teams have had to work
tirelessly to resolve these whilst
we also invested in inventory to
protect availabitity for customers
during this period.

The more recent onset of the
significant inflation and cost of
living pressures has presented
new challenges for our business,
as well as for our customers,
colleagues and suppliers.
However. we are confident that
our strategy and proposition will

deliver sustainable, profitable

growth over the medium to

longer term, and we are highly

focussed on emerging from !
these near-term headwinds as

an even stronger business,

We have a clear purpose to
share our passion for cooking,
and our mission to become
the customers' first choice for
kitchenware drives our focus
on raising brand awareness.
attracting new customers and
increasing the lifetime value of
customers. Excellent progress
has been made with these key
strategic objectives over the
tast year.

Governance

As a Board, we are committed

to the highest standards of
corporate governance, and | am
very pleased to now be working
with our Non-Executive Directors
~ David Stead. Gillian Davies

and Luke Kingsnorth - each of
whom have brought deep and
highly relevant sector experience
and skills to the Group, since we
formed the Board in October
2021, prior to the IPQ,

The Board is working very well
with the Executive Directors
and wider Leadership Team,
balancing a healthy challenge
on strategic, operational and
governance matters. with
pragmatic knowledge-sharing
and support to help achieve our
strategic ambitions.

Sustainability

ProCook is committed to

doing the right thing with

a long-standing focus on
improving sustainability and

| am encouraged by the
progress made in this area over
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growth in active customers

final dividend per share

the last year. Having already
reported carbon neutral status for
Scope |and Il emissions during
the year, the Leadership Team
are now completing the work to
establish the roadmap of actions
needed to mitigate Scope ||
emissions and achieve Net Zero
by our target date of 2030, whilst
also further eliminating waste
across the business including
single-use plastics.

Additionally, the group has been
recoegnised as a "Great Place to
Work" during the year. testament
to the effarts to create an
inclusive. engaging and caring
workplace. We also continue to
suppoert a number of important
community initiatives,

Our Chief Executive Officer. in
his review, sets out more detait
about this important topic and
the next steps we will take. | am
pleased o witness the high level
of engagement right across the
business towards sustainability
as a whole, and as a Board we
are committed to reducing our
timpact on the environment and
creating an even better pilace
to work.

Dividend

As aresult of the Group’s strong
performance in the year and our
confidence in the Group's ability
to deliver sustainable. profitable
growth over the madium to
tonger term, and in line with

our capital allocation policy, the
Board is pleased to recommend

a final dividend of 0.9p per share.

Subject to approval at the AGM.
payment is expected to be made
in tate September.

Outlook

it is clear that the current macro
environment is extremely
challenging and is having
significant impacts on consumer
behaviour. However, ProCoock
offers exceptional value acress
different price points, and our
market opportunity remains
highly attractive. We are
financially strong. with a flexible
and resilient business model and
we are continually enhancing
our customer proposition and
marketing activities.

By focusing our efforts on

the core organic UK market
opportunity in the short term.
we are confident that we can
emerge from these difficult
market conditions in a stronger
position to capture the clear
opportunities ahead of us.

-

O o0 ]
Chairman
4 August 2022

ProCook Group plc
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Strategic Report

Strategic
Report

i Our Marketplace
Our D2C Business Model
Our Strategy
Key Performance Indicators
CEOs Review
24 CFOs Review
Engaging with our Stakeholders

Sustainability

Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

Risk Management

7+ Going Concern. Viability and
s172(1) Statement
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Our Marketplace

A large and fragmented
kitchenware market
provides opportunity
for growth

Qur primary market is the UK
kitchenware market which

is large and fragmented
providing PraCook a significant
opportunity for growth.
Euromonitor! estimate the
market size was £3 4bn in the
calendar year 2021. growing
by +7.8%. We estimate that our
share of this market increased
to 2.2% in 2021 (2020: 1.7%).

Between 2015 and 2019
{being the last full year prior

to the impact of Covid-19),

the industry grew steadily at

a compound annual growth
rate (CAGRY} of +1.6% and has
historically remained resilient
during economic downturns. In
2020, the market contracted
by -6.8% driven by the enforced
store closures to counter the
spread of Covid-19. Whilst
ecommerce sales grew
significantly. sporadic access
to retail, exacerbated by major
supply chain issues reduced
sales as consumers were
uhable to access products

and brands conveniently and
consistently.

Following this decline, growth
of +7.8% in 2021 was driven

by the full reopening of retail
stores from April 2021 onwards,
as consumers continued to
place increased value on their
home envirenments, spending
significantly more time cooking
and entertaining at home.

Looking forward, Euromonitor
estimates that UK sales of
kitchenware in 2025 will grow
to £4.0bn, representing a CAGR
of +3.1% from 2019 supported
by sustained interest in cooking
and entertaining at home as
consumers on average will
spend more time at home
compared to pre-pandemic.
Stronger growth potential will
be restrained by the inflationary
macro environment which will
drag on consumer’s disposable
incomes,

We note that whilst this market
size forecast is largely driven
by price effects rather than
volume in the next two to three
calendar years, the heightened
uncertainty in the consumer
environment mean that such
forward-looking expectations
should be taken with a degree
of caution.

ProCook's wider market
oppaortunities include small
kitchen electricals which we
understand has a market size

in the UK in excess of £lbn. as
well as overseas EU markets
including Germany, France and
the Netherlands which together
had a kitchenware market size
of approximately £8bn in 2020.

UK kitchenware market size

tacroecoromic landscnns

The current UK consumer environment has
deteriorated significantly and rapidly over recent
months driven by rising inflation. reaching +9.1%
in May 2022. causing a cost-of-living squeeze
as domestic budgets are impacted by increased
energy. fuel and grocery prices, compounded by
higher interest rates and taxes.

The two key macro-economic causes are the
tegacy of Covid-19 disruption in manufacturing and
supply chains, and the Russian war on Ukraine.

Consumer confidence has deteriorated to record
low points. worse than the 2008 financial crisis

and the haight of the Covid-19 pandemic. Many
aconomists are predicting this inflationary pressure
has not yet peaked, and there is much uncertainty
around how long this will last,

Against this backdrop, consumers are increasingly
having to make difficult choices about where to
spend and how to cut back, This has already had
wide-ranging adverse effects on the Retail sector
as a whole.

1 UK Kitchenware market size data (presented in retail selling pr ces including VAT) s sourced from analysis by Euromaonitor in their
‘Homewares in the UK report catea May 2022 ProCook market share data 1s estmated by P-olock based on these market sizes

12 PraCook Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Cookware. comprising stove-top and ovenware
products, had a market size of £881m in 2021 and
we estimate we grew our share to 3.5% in 2021
{2020 3.2%). Cookware is ProCook’s heritage
category. our range features quality products at
good, better, best price points to suit custemers'
needs, tastes and cooking preferences.

[ R T N I A

Kitchen accessories, comprising kitchen utensils
and food storage products. had a market size

of £603m in 2021 and we estimate our share
increased to 4.3% in 2021 (2020 3.2%), As a
kitchenware specialist our broad range of utensiis.
knives, and other kitchen accessories provide
choice. convenience and great value for customers,

2021

This category is PraCook’s newest, and comprises
dinnerware, cutlery and beverageware. With

a market size of £1.9bn in 2021, this presents a
significant opportunity for growth as cur share is
still small: we estimate that we increased our share
tc 0.9% in 2021 (2020 0.5%). We see continued
opportunity to expand and develop our ranges and
attract more customers to ProCook in this category.

2021

ProCook Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Strategic Report

Sustainability

Customers are increasingly aware of a brand's
sustainability credentials and are making more
sustainable cheices in their own lives, This is likely
to become increasingly important for ProCook as
brands compete to retain newly acguired miilennial
consumers, a group whose interest in kitchenware
grew during the pandemic.

The durability of our products which are designed
to last many years, alongside our focus on reducing
our environmental footprint is important for our
customers. The progress we have already made

is giving us more confidence to be more vocal
about our existing credentials in cur messaging to
customers,

Increase in home cooking

The impact of the pandemic has resulted in a
substantial and sustained increase in home-
cooking and home-entertaining as consumers
spent more time in their homes, and continue

to do so with home-working remaining far more
common-place. Publicly available research
indicates that 91%2 of consumers expect to
continue to cook at home either as much. or more
than they did during the pandemic.

The current cost of living pressures are creating
significant challenges for consumers. We expect
that the trend of eating-in versus out is likely to
remain in play at least for the short to medium term
as eating-out becomes increasingly expensive.

Ecommerce growth

Physical retail still has a significant role to play

in kitchenware providing a setting for customers
to test, seek advice and take products home the
same day. Currently more than 70% of kitchenware
sales are stitl completed in a store environment.

However, ecommerce sales of kitchenware have
grown significantly during the last few years.

and we expect this trend to continue as younger
generations of customers who are typicalty more
at ease purchasing online, form a larger part of the
sales mix.

13




Our D2C Business Model
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As a direct-to-consumer brand, we have complete control of
routes to market and our customer proposition enabting us
to offer heautiful products at great value for our customers.
Our resilient and scalable model is supported by our
well-invested infrastructure, our remarkable people and our
culture which has supported our continued growth.

- Qur Purposé | Sharing our passion for cooking

We design and source
beautiful products at
great value

Engaging our
customers

We love to cock. and weara
passionate about sharing this
with our customers, Attracting.
engaging and retaining
customers is a key focus for us
in driving continued growth,
Our focus on service excellence
across all touchpoints helps
ensure customers are well
looked after. We engage with
our customers via social madia
ermail and other media channels
and increasingly in our Cookary
School.

P S

- Designing product ranges to offer durability and excellent performance

v
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e

Cutting out the middlemen; great qua

L2 8 R 2
We help create
inspirational and

memoerakle experiences
for our customers

Product design and

development

Qur in-house design teams
work closely with our suppliers
on inttial design through

to product enhancement

Our teams focus on quality.
functionality. durability and
sustainability, and style to
create products our customers
can enjoy for many years.

We launch new products
throughout the year typically
refreshing our range by 25%
each year.

N
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lity products at lower prices

Warranties of up to 25 years, offering peace of mind

+  Excellent-rated service both in our stores and for home delivery with

next-day detivery as standard
+ Inspiration including recipe ideas, “how to" guides and cookery school

lessons helping improve skills in a hands-on, relaxed atmesphere in

central London




Sourcing and supply

chain management
Working with our suppliers,
primarily in the Far East.

we bring new products to
the market and maintain
high availability across the
range. Cur supply chain
teams manage the ordering.
shipping and imparting
right through te delivery
into our stores and to
customers homes. via our
two distribrution centres in
Gloucester,

We offer friendiy,
knowledgeable service
customers can trust

Routes to market

Ecommerce

Cur Ecommearce teams manage our
trading and customer experience across
our platforms including the UK website.
and our cookery school website. We
merchandise products using high guality
imagery produced in our photography
studio ta inspire our customers

Retail

Cur Retail offer provides a convenent

and inspirational setting for customers to
seak advice browse the range. and select
products to take home today. Qur stores
are clean and unciuttered. and well-
stocked. showcasing good/better/best
product ranges effectively so customers
can make the right choice.

k- . ‘ -
AR L : ca

Continued growth in sustomer acquisition and retention

PR ¢

Contrelling pricing and promotional activity. including product
launches and replacement cycles in a way that is not possible in a

wholesale model

+ Maintaining strong product and channel operating margins

- Monitoring marketing spend and return on investment

Managing our cost base carefully, ensuring that we are being as

efficient as passible

< Investing for leang-term growth with careful business case consideration

ProCook Group ple
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Our Strategy

Becoming the Cur ingredients for success
customers’

first choice for Py, We design and source We create inspirational
kitchenware A hkh  hoautiful products at and memorable
W great value experiences for

Qur mission is to become customers

the customers first choice
for kitchenware. creating
sustainable and long

term value for all our
stakeholders.

1§ R T N, S A AR T R P e TR et s

We have a clear strategy . - "
1o raise awareness of the Attracting, engaging and retaining more

exceptional value and customers
service proposition we offer,
growing our customer base,
and sharing our passion for
cooking.

Growing brand awareness and market share through engagement
and inspiration

Developing our proposition

?  Continually improving our product and service offer,
i across all channels

Building on our foundations

" Committed to creating an even better place to work, reducing our
environmental footprint and investing for profitable growth

16 ProCaook Group plc




Strategic Report

ok hkk We offer friendty,
( « knowtedgeable service
‘ customers can trust

N

Fow we willl move forward

(e e A BT

Create and share inspirationat digital content using our own
Caokery school

Develop brand campaigns that resonate with customers
Enhancing our digital marketing capabitities
Utitise our rich customer data more effectively

P A

ks

Extend and improve existing ranges especially in tableware

Intense focus on service-excellence across atl customer
touchgpoints

Develop new categories to create more reasons to shop with
us inctuding small kitchen electricals

Improve customer experience online, making it easier to shop
with us

Develop our Retail estate, adding more locations, and
increasing the size of our stores to better showcase product

' Entering into additional overseas markets at the right time

Open our new Distribution Centre to improve efficiency and
add capacity for growth

Continually develop our Tech capabilities to support
operations and custemer insight

Create a fantastic new office environment for our colleagues,
improving personal development and collaboration
across teams

Improve how we engage with, listen and learn from our
colleagues

Develop and implement our roadmap to Net Zero emissions
by 2030

Further eliminate waste, and develop our product ranges to
be more sustainable

ProCook Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 17




Key Performance Indicators

The Board menitors a range of financial and non-financial measures ta assess performance and to determine remuneration
targets for senior management.

Finnnaial ke

Total revenue
£mand %

Gross profit
Emand %

Underlying Profit
Before Tax?
€m and % of revenue

Performance

Total reveriue of £69.2m
reflects continued
strong sales growth

of 29.6% (+78.0% vs
FY20) with retail stores
re-opened following
the end of Covid-19
restrictions, and our UK
wehsite up ~2503% vs
FY20. Fhis highlights
the strength of our
multichannel proposition,
as we significantly
outperformed the UK
Kitchenware market by
+36.0%pts,

Why this measure
matters

Total revenue is an
important indicator

of how uttimately
successful we have been
in attracting and retaining
customers, and offering
high-quality, great value
products accompanied
by excellent service
across all of our channals.

Link to strategy
Becoming customers first
choice for kitchenware

Developing our
customer offer

1 UK Kitchenware market,
growth lexcluding
ProCeok) calculated
using weekly GfK data
and managemaeant
estimates

Performance

Gross profit increased
to £45.0m (FY2L:
£35.9m) driven by our
continued sales growth.
As expected, our strong
gross margins reduced
to 65,1% {-210bps YoV)
prirmarily as a resutt of
the considerable global
supply chain challenges
which led to higher
marine freight costs,

Why this measure
matters

This measures cur
success in sourcing
high quatity products
which offer customers
great value (with pricing
targeting savings of

at least 30% less than
comparable products
from competitor
orands). whilst stitl
achieving strong gross
margins to support the
business model.

Link to strategy
Becoming customers first
choice for kitchenware

Developing our
customer offer

18 ProCook Group plc

Performance
Underlying Profit Before
Tax increased to £9.5m
representing 13.7% of
revenue (FY21: £8.3m,
15.5%) reflecting a
return to a mare normat
Ecommerce mix as Retail
stores reopened, and

a more normal level of
operating costs post-
pandemic.

Why this measure
mailters

This measure highlights
the underlying profit
performance of the
Group and demonstrates
our ability to deliver long-
term profitable growth,

t.ink to strategy
Developing our
customer offer

Build on our

foundatiens

2 Further information on
how Underlying Profit

Before Tax is calculated 1s
set out on page 114

Free cash Flow?
£Em

22

Performance

Free cash flow of -£3.0m
in FY22 includes £2.2m of
cash outflows in relation
to the IPQ, net capital
expenditure of £3.8m
{FY2ZL net proceeds

of £3.1m) and £3.2m
investment in net working
capital (FY21 £3.9m)

to protect inventory
availability during

the current period of
increased global supptly
chain disruption.

Why this measure
matters

This measure is useful
to understand the level
of free cash generated
which could be retained
for future investment
by the business.
utilised to repay any
debt or distributed to
shareholders.

Link to strategy
Developing our
customer offer

Build on our foundations

3 Further information on
how Free Cash Flow is
calculated is set out on
page 26.

Customer KPis

Number of new
customers
('000)

Performance

The Group attracted
723.000 new customers
1o shop with ProCook
during FY22, +73.8% more
than in FY21 continuing
the trend of attracting
mare customers each
year. New customers are
those whao shopped with
ProCoak for the first time
in the year and at that
paoint first registered their
customer details on our
customer database.

Why this measure
matters

Attracting new customers
to shap with ProCaok

is a strategic pricrity as
we continue to increase
brand awareness in

the markets in which

we operate. The Board
monitors this measure
as an incicator of both
the effectiveness of

the Group's marketing
activities, and the growth
of the brand’s profile in
the marketplace.

Link to strategy
Becoming customers! first
choice for kitchenware

Attract, engage and
retain maore customers
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These Key Performance Indicators (KPJs) provide a range of information pertinent to the Groups strategic mission to be the
customers’ first choice for kitchenware whilst also considering financial performance and the delivery of sustainable and
profitable growth. Furthermore, they reflect People and Environmental measures which the Board considers to be critical to
cur long-term success by making ProCook an even better place to work and by reducing our environmental footprint.

Number of active
customers (L12M)
('000)

Performance

During FY22 the number
of active customers in the
last 12 months increased
to 974.000 (+74.9% YoY)
reflecting the combined
effect of new customers
acquired in the year and
increasing repeat rates.
Of these customers,
251000 were repeat
customers ariginally
acquired in previous
periods (FY21 141.000).

Why this measure
matters

This measure of the
Group’s active customer
database is important as
an indicator of continuec
penetration into the
markets we operate in.
This database allows
ProCook to understand
shopping behaviours ang
better target marketing
activities.

Link to strategy
Becoming the customery
first choice for
kitchenware

Attract, engage and
retain more customers

12-month
repeat rate %

Trustpilot
score
{max 5}

Performance

Our custamers 12-month
repeat rate improved
+6,9 percentage points
year on year to 25.5%
reflecting strong
progress made Lo re-
engage customers and
the increasing mix of
Ecommerce customers
which have a higher
repeat rate than Retail
customers,

Why this measure
matters

We use this metric to
understand the Groups
ability to retain customers
and as an indicater of the
Group's ability to increase
the lifetime value of
customers,

Link to strategy
8ecoming the customers’
first choice for
kitchenware

Attract, engage and
retain more customers

Performance

During the year we

have retained our 4.8
excellent-rated Trustpitot
score with over 8L.00Q0
reviews now received by
the Group.

Why this measure
matters

The Group uses the
Trustpilot review service
to gain valuable customer
service and product
feedback. These reviews
provide other customers
confidence in our overall
brand proposition.

Link to strategy

We offer friendly.
knowledgeable service
custormers can trust

We design and source
beautiful products at
great value

L PR - -t &
Lrecrgmepoantial &

Colleague
engagement
score %

22

Performance

Our inaugural colleague
engagement survey
which was completed in
Navember 2021 provided
an overali engagement
score of 77%. Historically
engagemaent was
assessed across the
business at different
points in the year. We
have now created
consistent approach to
measure our progress
each year,

Why this measure
matters

This is important to us
as colteague feedback
helps us to understand
what we are doing well
and what we need to
improve, Qur colleagues
are key to our long-term
success.

Link to strategy
Make ProCook an even
better place to work

ProCook Group plc
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CO, emissions
intensity*
tCO,/£1lm of Revenue

Performance

CO, emissions intensity
reduced further in FY22
to 6.5 tennes of CO,

per £1m of revenue
generated by the Group.
The Group appeinted

a new ESG Director in
2021 to increase the
level of facus on this
important topic,

Why this measure
matters

ProCook is committed
to doing the right
thing. and reducing
our environmental
footprint is a key part
of this. This measure
highlights how well
we're doing in reducing
harmful greenhouse gas
emissions.

Link to strategy
Reduce our
environmental footprint

4 CO, emissions are
defined as emissions
from all Scope | and |l
achvities relating to the
Group's operaticns,

19
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Over the last year we

have made considerable
progress in developing our
customer proposition and
direct-to-consumer madel.

| am pleased with our trading
performance and the strategic
progress we have made during
what has been a challenging
period. Despite these challenges,
our business is now much

larger and stronger than pre-
pandemic, with more customers
and significantly improved sales
and profits.

The Group has achieved a great
deal during the last year in
pursuit of cur mission to become
the customers first choice for
kitchenware, and | would like

to persenally thank all of our
pecple and partners, whe have
accomplished so much together
over recent years.

Current market conditions
have changed rapidty due to
rising inflation and the cost-of-
living squeeze, with consumer
confidence deteriorating to
lows not seen for many years.
We have adjusted quickly to
the reality of this new trading
environment, but uncertainty
remains around how prolonged
this difficult trading environment
may be.

Despite this backdrop. as a
direct-to-consumer kitchenware
specialist, our attention remains
on providing our customers
with great products, exceptional
value and the best possible
service. We are confident that
our proposition will continue

to attract new customers to
ProCoock and that we can cater
far all budgets and tastes, with
our commitment to ¢creating
exceptional value through pricing
which is at least 30% cheaper
than comparable products from
competitor brands,

We are energised by the longer
term opportunities we see ahead
of us to develop the ProCock
brand and our sharpened

focus on the core UK market
opportunity during these difficult
times, will give us the capacity
to reinforce and strengthen our
market position and customer
proposition, leaving us better
placed to capture wider

growth opportunities as trading
conditions improve.

Performance in FY22
Strong trading momentum
We are pleased with our strong
revenue growth of 20.5% in
FY22. which represented a
+78.0% increase on FY20 {pre-
pandemic) and a compound
annual growth rate exceeding
+30% over the last five years.
This performance reflected our
consistent outperformance of
the UK kitchenware market,
which enabled us to furiher grow
our market share.

Early in the year we were
pleased to re-open our Retait
stores following the disruption
and closures retated to Covid-19
restrictions in the previous
financial year. Our like for like
Retail revenue was +69.3%
compared to FY20 supported by
strong conversion and increased
average transaction values.
Additionally, we opened eight
new stores during the year (and
closed two) in retail destination
locations extending our tetail
portfolio to 55 stores, as well

as launching our first Cookery
School an Tottenham Court
Road, London.

QOur Ecommerce performance
reflected two key factors;

the shift back to retail-based
shopping by consumers and the
strategic exit of the Amazon UK
Marketplace at the end of June
2021, Whilst total Ecommerce
revenue declined by -18.9% as
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a result of these factors. our like
for like Ecommerce revenue
remained up +197.1% compared
to FY20 reflecting the step
change in performance achieved
through our own website,

Gross margin declined by
-210bps year on year due to the
continued global supply chain
disruption and the higher costs
incurred to import products,
During the year revenue growth
was driven by velume and
product mix as we chose to hold
our pricing to maximise value
for customers, We maintained
our disciplined focus on our cost
base throughout the year, whiist
investing in specific initiatives to
support our growth ambitions.
We delivered underlying profit
before tax of £9.5m (FY21: £8.3m)
after the return to a more normatl
level of operating costs post-
pandemic, higher central costs
reflecting our becoming a ple,
and as we continued to invest for
long term growth,

Customer first focus

drives growth

As a direct-to-consumer
business. our customers'
experience is key to our
continued success and we are
pleased to have retained our
excellent-rated Trustpilot score
of 4.8. Our growth opportunity
is significant and successfully
attracting and retaining
customers is our highast
strategic priority.

During the year we accelerated
new customaer acquisition,
attracting 723.000 new
customers to shop with ProCook
(+73.8% year on year). Cur active

customer database reached
974,000 customers at the end
of the year (+74.9% year on year)
and our total customer database
was approximately 3.2 million
customers,

Additionally, we have made
strong progress with customer
retention activities including
improved re-targeting, better
email coliection in-store

and enhanced customer
segmentation, resulting in our
12-month repeat purchase
rate increasing during the
year to 255% (FY21 18.6%). In
Ecommerce this rose by +3.8%
paints to 27.9%. and in Retail by
+4.3% points to 21.4%.

Average Transaction Values

{ATV) continued on an upward
trajectory driven by the customer-
focused improvements we have
made. In Retail we increased
overall value for customers
through add-on items and
enhanced product training for our
colleagues with ATV increasing

to £35 (+7.3% year on year). In
Ecommerce, we have improved
the overall shopping experience
on our website with improved
navigation tools. increased
payment options and redesigned
product landing pages.
Ecommerce ATV increased to £67
(+8.9% year on year) which was
also supported by the higher mix
of customers transacting on our
own direct website.

Focused on sustainability
Our business has always been
focused on doing the right
thing, and we are pleased
with the progress we have
made in the last 12 months.

Strategic Report

The appointment of our ESG
Director this year has helped
us gain further momentum in
the implementation of our ESG
strategy.

We are committed to making
ProCook an even better place
{o work and were delighted to
be certified as a Great Place

to Work™ during the year as
well as receiving two awards
from the UK's Best Workplaces
for being ranked 60 in the top
100 large organisations and
being ranked 45 in the top

100 targe crganisations for
Colleague Wellbeing. We have
made good pragress with our
B Corp application. Of course,
there is more to do, and we
will be shortly launching a new
colleague advisory panel to
help us listen more and capture
feedback and ideas from right
across the business,

We are passionate about
reducing our environmental
footprint and our partnership
with The Woodland Trust to
mitigate unavoidable Scope ! and
tl emnissions has enabled some
of our colieagues to utilise their
"Great Causes’ day (which we
offer all colleagues) to support
replanting activities in the UK.
We have taken further steps

to eliminate single use plastics
in our operations and now

have minimal plastic product
packaging left in cur ranges.
Having now developed our
environmental management
framework we are finalising our
roadmap to achieve Net Zero
emissions (including scope [II} by
our target date of 2030.

As a responsible employer and
corporate citizen, we continue to
promote equality, diversity and
inclusion, and our work with the
GEM Project, supports people

in Gloucestershire overcome
challenges to employment and

ProCook Group ple 21
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helps them move closer towards
or into work. In March we were
awarded the Gloucestershire
Inclusive Employer award.

We began participation in the
Disability Confident Committed
scheme this year, and plan to
mave this forward another level
in the coming months.

Becoming the customers’
first choice for
Kitchenware

Well positioned in a large
market opportunity

The UK kitchenware market in
which we operate in is large and
typically quite stable. Experience
tells us that the market is
retatively resitient in difficult
economic times as consumers
eat out less and entertain more
in their homes.

As a diract-to-consumer
specialist retailer, our business
modet allows us to offer
customers excepticnal value
through our high quality direct-
sourced preducts. designed by
our own team, and which span a
range of styles and price points
to suit individual needs. tastes
and budgets, These value for
money credentials, accompanied
by ocur conveniently located
stores and strong service,
provide a level of resilience to
the current macro challenges.

In our core UK market, we

have a significant opportunity

to raise brand awareness and
increase market share, which we
estimate was 2.2% in 2021, as we
pursue our mission to become
the customers first choice for
kitchenware.

Attract, engage and retain

more customers

Prompted recall of the ProCook
brand is still below 40% in the UK
fwith some of our competitors
enjoying over 70%).

ProCook Group plc

Our opportunity to raise
customer's awareness of what
we offer is therefore significant.
Showcasing our passion for
cooking through 'how to' guides,
recipes and lifestyle content
combined with our quality
product range and leading
pricing will altow us to inspire
and engage our customers.

Having recently welcomed our
new Chief Marketing Officer,
Angela Porter, we are now
refreshing our brand marketing
strategy. We will be accelerating
our top-of funnel campaign
activity utilising digital content,
much of which we will create in
our own caokery school which
doubles as a studio and media
hub. We are optimising our paid
media activities implementing
automated bidding and
integrating customer data to
deliver enhanced conversion
tracking.

We are in the process of
implementing a powerful new
customer experience ptatform
which will also serve as our email
service provider. We will use this
new technology to drive forward
our retention marketing activities.
We will improve segmentation

of customers cohorts, enhance
our targeting and re-targeting
activities across our sales
channels and intraduce greater
personalisation all whilst gaining
valuable and deep insights into
customer behaviour and activity.

Developing our proposition

We are committed to developing
our own ecommerce platforms
to enable us to engage more
effectively and directly with our
customers. As a result, we expect
to withdraw from our remaining
Amazon EU activities during

the next few months in order to
focus fully on this priority.

Our own website already
performs well. as our recent
benchmarking exercise
conducted by external specialists
has concluded, however we
have identified where we can
make further improvements,

and we have developed an
experimentation roadmap for
user experience and conversion
optimisation in the months
ahead. We are planning tc
migrate the website to the new
codebase that we developed for
the EU during FY22 to benefit
from improved site speed,
enhanced security and reduced
ongoing development time,
Focusing on the UK first will
deliver benefits more quickly and
allow us to optimise the website,
ready for when we choose to roll
out Ecommerce trading to new
territories,

Qur 55 retail stores. which are
designed to inspire customers,
provide a convenient opportunity
to test, seek advice and take
products home the same day.
Our focus in the short term is

on the key retail metrics that
drive performance, so we are
rolling out further training for
our colleagues and elevating
our customer service focus. In
the year ahead we are planning
to open approximately four

new stores in the UK, as well as
relocating at least two stores to
larger sites within existing retail
centres to provide more space
to better display product ranges.
particularly tableware.

Our comprehensive product
range across Cookware, Kitchen
Accessories and Tableware

has over 1600 SKUs which are
ProCook own-brand, designed
by us and direct-sourced from
our manufacturing partners.



We construct ranges within
clear price and gquality/feature
hierarchies providing customers
choice over what suits their
needs best, We are committed
to our pricing model, saving the
customer at least 30% against
comparable products from
competitor brands, and are
confident that this offers cur
customers exceptional value for
money. Looking ahead we are
excited by the opportunity to
extend our Tableware offer as
we further penetrate this large
segment of the kitchenware
market. Equally, we expect to
launch the first phases of our
new ranges of Kitchen Electricals
within the coming year, which
will provide another reason for
our existing customers to shop
again with ProCock and allow
us te attract new customers to
the brand.

Building on our foundations
The rapid growth of the business
over recent years has meant our
head office werking space and
Logistics efficiency has been
compromised, We are very
much locking forward to moving
into our new BREEAM certified
Distribution Centre and HQ

later in FY23. This will improve
efficiency and capacity in our
logistics operations and provide
an inspiring environment for our
colleagues to flourish and teams
to collaborate, pushing us on

to greater achievements in the
years ahead.

Our proprietary techniology
platforms support our operations
across the business and coupled
with best-in-class third-party
technologies, allow us to be
nimble, efficient and highly
customer-oriented. We have

a full development readmap

for the year ahead. including

the implementation of the

new customer experience
platform, migration to our

new codebase for our UK
website, improvements to our
warehouse management system
and security enhancements,
alongside continual website
performance improvements,

We remain fully committed to
investing in our infrastructure
and foundations to ensure we
have an agile and scalable
platform that will support future
growth.

Current Trading

and OQutlook

Based on GfK data we estimate
the UK Kitchenware market
contracted during the first
quarter of our FY23 financial

year by approximately -12%. In
light of this macro-economic
backdrop. cur exceptional
outperformance of the market in
the first quarter of last year which
provides tough comparatives
(FY22 Q1 Total revenue +84.9%
LFL revenue +86,7%, UK revenue
excluding Amazonr +143.3%). and
our strategic exit of Amazon

UK in June 2021 our sales
performance in the first quarter
of FY23 has declined year

on year. Revenue in the UK,
excluding Amazon, was -9.0%
year on year, outperforming the
market, and «49.9% compared to
Q1 FY20, Total revenue in the first
guarter of £11.4m was -21.6% year
on year, but «35.5% compared to
Q1 FY20 (pre-pandemic),

The rapid deterioration in

the consumer and macro
environment means that we
have now had to adjust and
re-prioritise our focus. We

are well placed to manage
these current challenges with
a strong financial position, a
resitient business model. a
clear strategy for sustainable

Strategic Report

and profitable growth, and a
customer proposition focused
on exceptional service. quality
and vatue. We will continue

to invest in the initiatives that
will drive our brand forward,
making ProCook a stronger.
more sustainable business for all
of our stakeholders and with a
sharpened focus on our core UK
market in the short term,

In line with our recent trading
update on 10 June 2022, the
Board expects that revenue for
FY23, will be broadly in line with
the last year, with underlying
profit before tax of between
£4-6m, reflecting ongoing
investment in future growth,
cost inflation and areturnto a
more typical seasonal second
half weighting. We are confident
that the Group remains well
pilaced to capture increased
share of its large and growing
market and deliver medium to
long term growth and value to all
stakeholders.

Lrarepl L apan
Chief Executive Officer

4 August 2022
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Revenue

Revenue
Ecommerce
Retail

LFL Revenue
Ecommerce
Retail

Fr2z2 Yoy grawth Yo2Y¥ growth

o E e
69.2 29.5%
323 (18.9%} 124.9%
368 1718% 50.55%
55.0 321% 123.5%
310 (2.2%) 1871%
24.0 140.7% 69.3%

Total revenue in FY22 {the 52~
week period ending 3 April 2022)
increased by +29.5% to £69.2m
(FY21 the 53-week period
ending 4 April 2021: £53.4m;,
Compared to FY20, total revenue
growth was «78 O%. reflecting
like for like growth of 123.5%,

We have continued to grow

cur market share, significantly
outpertforming the UK
Kitchenware market. Based on
cur analysis of weekly GfK data.
our year-on-year growth was +36
percentage points ahead of the
market. Basad on Euromonitor's
updated total UK kitchenware
market size for 2021 calendar
year', we estimate that our share
of the market grew from L7% in
20200 2.2% in 2021

Ecommerce revenue decreased
by -18.9% to £32.3m {(FyY2L
£39.9m) reflecting the strategic
decision we took at the end of
June 2021 to exit the UK Amazon
marketplace which reduced our
overall Ecommerce revenue by
-£6.8m (-17.27). Revenue from
own website declined by just -15%
year-on-year. remaining ~250.3%
compared to pre-pandemic
petformance in FY20. despite the
return of customers te physical
retail stores very eartly in the year,

Retail revenue grew hy «171.8% to
£36.8m (FY21 £13.5m). benefiting
from the stores being open for
almost all of the year (Covid-19
restrictions in FY21 meant that
our stares were anly open for
approximately 50% of the year).
On a two-year like-for-like basis.
revenue in existing stores in
FY20 grew by +63.3%, During the
year we opened eight new stores
in destination retail centres and
closed two high street stores
increasing our retail store estate
to 55 stores.

Gross profit

We delivered gross profits of
£450m in FY22 (FY21: £35.9m)
maintaining strong gross margins
of 85 1% (FY2L 87 2%, despite
choosing to hold selling prices
to maximise value for customers.
whilst in the midst of significant
global supply chain challenges.
The cost impact of increased
marine freight costs during the
year was approximatety -20Q0bps
year-on-year.

Prior year adjustment
Following careful review of
the costs associated with
transporting inventory to its
final selling location we have
concluded that it 15 appropriate
to recognise such costs within
gross profit. We have adjusted
for this in the current and prior
year to aid comparability. This
adjustment has reduced gross

1 Inthe May 2022 "Homewares in the UK -epart” from Euromenitor the 2220 UK Kitchenwarg
market 51ze has been revised downwards. as a result of subsequently abtaning more
accurate and complete histone numbers for the full year. to £31bn from £3 8bin as reported

1 Aprit 2021



margin in FY22 by approximately
-210hps (FYZ21: approximately
-140bps}. A corresponding
credit has been made to reduce
operating costs resulting in nil
net effect on profits in either
financial year

Operating expenses and
other income

Underlying operating expenses
net of other income

Total underlying operating
expenses net of other income
were £359m (FY2L £26.2m)
representing 51.9% of sales (FY2L
49.0%). This growth in costs

was driven by a number of key
factors:

1. Year-on-year effect of
existing retail stores fully
reopening. +E57m

2. New costs in relation the net
six new stores openad in the
year +£L7m

3. Variable costs in relation
to continuing ecommerce
channels as cost per
acquisition returned to
maore normal pre-pandemic
tevels: +£C.7m

4. Variable cost savings from
the exit of the UK Amazon
marketplace: -£0.6m

5 New headcount related costs
in central functions to support
growth: +£0.7m

&, Additional spend on brand
marketing to increase
customer awareness: +£0.9m

7. Other central overhead cost
increases including audit
and professional fees, IT and
facitities: +£0,7m

Retail costs benefited from the
continued property rates holiday’
during the year by approximately
£1.3m. This temporary relief came
to an end in April 2022,

Other income

Total other income of £E0.4min
Fy22 (FY21: £2.8m) relates to the
Government's Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme and Business
Rates Relief scheme which
came into effect during the
pandemic whitst our stores (as
‘non-essential retail stores) were
closed for significant periods of
time. These have been included
in the above explanations on a
net basis as they relate directly
to operating costs in relation to
our Retail stores.

Non-underlying operating
expenses

Non-underlying cperating
expenses in FY22 of £9.4m
include non-recurring costs

in relation to the IPO of £2.7m
{2021 £nil) and costs in respect
of employee share-based IPO

Expenses in relation to these PO
awards are expected to continue
through relevant vesting periods
to FY25, albeit these costs
reduce over time,

Operating profit

Total underlying operating profit
for the period was £8.2m (FY21
£9.7m). The significant change

in channel mix year on year. as
retail fully re-cpened, resulted

in a large year on year shift in
channel profitability. Ecommerce
operating profitability declined
from 35.5% of revenue to 24.9%
as demand reduced and costs
per acquisition rose back to
pre-pandemic levels. Retail
profitability doubled from 13.1% of
revenue to 26.2%. benefiting from
the significant growth in sales year
on year The total operating profit
from our Ecommerce and Retail
channels combined was £17.7m
(FY2%L £159m} an +111% increase.
This growth was offset by the
investment in brand marketing
and other central costs as set

awards of £6.7m (2021. Enil), out below,

T e YRR FYL
Underlying operating profit

Ecommerce 81 14.1
Retail 9.6 18
Central cosis (8.5) 8.2)
Total 92 27
Undertying operating profit % of revenue

tcommerce 24.9% 355%
Retail 26.2% 13.1%
Central costs (12.3%) (11.725)
Total 133% 18.2%

ProCook Group plc
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Total reported operating loss.
after the £9.4m of non-underlying
costs relating to the IPO in the
current year was -£0.2m (FY21L:
profit of £9.7m).

Profit and earnings

per share

Underlying profit before tax
was £9.5m representing 13.7% of
revenue (FY21 £8.3m, 15.5%).

During the year there was a net
gain of £0.3m (FY21 -£1.4m net
toss) in respect of financial items
in the period. Financial items
included interest expenses on
lease liabilities and borrowings
of -£0,6m (FY21 -£0.5m) offset
by unrealised gains of +£0.9m on
derivatives and foreign exchange
differences on the translation of
dollar denominated assets and
liabilities, (FY21 -£C.9m loss).

After non-underlying costs, we
reported a profit before tax of
£0.1m (FY21: £8.3m). Reported loss
after tax was £0.1m (FY21. £6.4m
orofit).

The effective tax rate based on
underlying profit before tax was
20.0% (FY21: 22.5%).

Earnings per Share

Underlying basic earnings per
share for the year increased to
7.34 pence (FY21l: 642 pence) and
undetlying diluted earnings per
share increased to 6.76 pence
{FY21 592 pence).

Reported basic earnings per share
for the year were (0,01 pence
(FY21: 6.42 pencel and reported
diluted earnings per share were
(0.01) pence (FY21: 592 pencel.

Cash generation and net
cash/debt

The Group had a free cash
outflow of £3.0m in the current
pericd {FY21: inflow of £8.2m) and
ended the year with net debt of
£1.8m (FY2L net cash £3.1m).

ProCock Group plc

£m R Y22 Fyal

Reported profit before tax 01 8.3

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and

profit/loss on disgosal 41 38

Share based payments 58 -

Finance expense 0.8 05

Unrealised FX (gains)/losses (L1} 0.8

Net working capital outflow 3.2 (3.8
Tax paid 2.0 (2.0)
Net operating cash flow 4.3 7.7

Net capital expenditure {3.8) 31

Interest 0.6 (05)
Payment of lease liabilities 2.9 20
Free Cash Flow (3.0} 82

Cash and Cash equivalents 38 58

Borrowings (5.5} (2.8]
Net (Debt)/ Cash e 31

The lower reported operating
profitin the year includes

the £9.4m of norn-underlying
expenses which resuited in
£2.2m additional cash outflows
compared to FY21

Our increased net working
capital position resulted in a
cash outflow of £3.2m in the
year (FY21: £3.8mi reflecting
our continued investment in
inventory to protect trading

and ensure strong levels of
availability during this period of
global supply chain disruption.
Inventory on hand at the year-
end (excluding inventery in
transit) was £15.2m (FY21 £8.1m)
up *86.4% year on year. Total
inventory at the year-end was
£16.8m (FY21 £10.1m}. The
increase in inventory was partly
offset by higher trade and other
payables including a higher VAT
payable (£1.9m). as a result of
the Groug's creation of a VAT
Group earlier in the year, which
will be paid early in the new
financial year.

Net capital expenditure of £3.8m
in the year primarily related to
the eight new stores opened

during the year including

the new Cookery School at
Tottenham Court Road. London.
In the prior year, there was a net
capital expenditure cash inflow
of £3.1m after net proceeds of
£5.1m in relation to the sale and
leaseback of the head office site
in Gloucester.

Tax payments of £2.0m (FY21:
£2.0m) reflect payments

in advance based on the
anticipated full year current tax
charge. which has reduced as we
have finalised our assessment of
disallowable costs and share-
based awards in relation to the
IPO and completed our transition
to {FRS as part of the year end
close. As at 3 April 2022. we
have a current tax asset of
£0.3m which is currently being
recovered.

Banking agreements

After the year end, on 20 April
2022, the Group entered into

an agreement for a committed
£10m Revolving Credit Facility
(RCF) to provide additional cash
headroom to support operational
and investment activities. This
facility expires in April 2025 and



has two ona-year extension
options. The terms of the facility
are consistent with normal
practice and include covenants
in respect of leverage (net

debt to be no greater than 2.0x
EBITDAY and fixed charge cover
{(EBITDAR to be no less than 1.7x
fixed charges). Both covenants
are calculated on a pre-IFRS 16
basis. The Group's ability to meet
these covenants has been siress
tested as part of going concern
and viability considerations.
which is described in mare detail
elsewhere in this report.

As part of this new agreement,
the Group has retained its
access to the existing £6.0m
trade finance facility (although
this is now an uncemmitted
facility). which is due to expire in
September 2023. The terms of
the facility are consistent with
normal practice.

Additicnally. the RCF agreement
provides an accordion option,
subject to the lender's approval,
to extend the facility by a
further £5m.

Capital allocation

and dividend policy

In normal circumstances. the
Board currently believes that.,

to ensure operating flexibility
through the business cycle.

it must maintain a Mminimum
unrestricted cash / debt
headrcom which the Board
reviews on an annual basis, or
mere frequently as required.
Maintaining this headroom
provides a level of flexibility
sufficient to fund the working
capital and investment needs of
the Group (as well as set aside an
appropriate cperating reserve for
unexpected events). The Group's
dividend policy targets an
ordinary dividend pay-out ratio
of 20% to 30% of profit after tax
during the financial year to which
the dividend relates,

The Board anticipates. undser
normal circumstances, that it

will consider returning surplus
cash te shareholders if average
cash/debt headroom over a
period consistently exceeds

the minimum headrcem target,
subject to known and anticipated
investment plans at the time. The
Groups full capital and dividend
policy is available on our website
at www.procookgroup.co.uk,

Dividends

Prior to the IPQ in FY22 the
Group paid dividends to the
existing shareholders at that
time. totalling £1.9m (FY2L
£1.5ms. of which £1.0m was paid
in the first half of the year, and
the remaining £0.9m was paid in
November 2021,

As a result of the Group's strong
performance in the year and
the Board's confidence in

the Group's ability to deliver
sustainable. profitable growth
over the medium to longer
term, and in line with our
capital allocation policy, the
Board has recommended to
pay a final dividend of 0.9p

per share, Subject to approval
by shareholders at the AGM,
the final dividend will be paid
on 30 September 2022 to
shareholders on the registeron 2
Septermnber 2022

Treasury management
The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk through its trading
activities. The main source of
this relates to stock purchases
from non-UK suppliers. which
accounts for approximatetly

95% of the Group's annual stock
purchases. To manage the
exchange rate risk, a mixture

of standard {"vanilla” forwards
and ocutperformance trades are
utilised. Tha Group seeks target
levels of coverage for future USD
payments, as determined by
internal forecasts and the Group’s
Treasury Management Policy.

Strategic Report

Given the level of USD
transactions and cover obtained
via financial instruments, the
Group is exposed to a counter-
party risk with each of the
financial institutions where
arrangements are held. The
Group manages this risk by
ensuring only highly credited
institutions are used and limiting
the level of exposure with each.

The Group is also exposed to
interest rate risk where the Group
has financial obligations that give
rise to a variable interest charge.
To minimise the charges and
exposure driven by interest rates.
the Group ensures that credit
facilities are used optimally in
paratlel with the latest interest
rate information and forecasts.

Tax Strategy

The Groups tax policy is to
manage its tax affairsin a
responsible and transparent
manner in line with our
commitment to high corporate
governance standards. This
ensures the Group complies with
the relevant legislation and has
due regard to our reputation and
thus seek to promote the long-
term success of the Group and
deliver sustainable shareholder
value.

A copy of the Groups tax strategy
is available our website at
wWww.procookgroup.co.uk.

IPO

On 12 November 2021 the Group
successfully completed its Initial
Public Offering and was admitted
to the premium segment of the
L.ondon Stock Exchange.

A Group recrganisation was
completed prior to admission,
with ProCook Group plc
incorporated as a holding
company above the existing
trading entities. Further details
on this re-organisation are set
out on pages 118 and 144,
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CFO's Review conrinueo

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

We monitor a range of measures to track our financial and operating performance. As some of these measures
are not determined in accordance with statutory measures (IFRS), they are therefore prone to varying
calculations and may not be comparable with similarly titled measures presented by different companies.

To support the understanding of APMs presented by the Group. further explanations are set out below.

Definition and reconciliation

Rationale

The 12 month repeat rate reflects the percentage of
customers who have made at least one subsequant
purchase in the 12 months since their first purchase.

This measure is useful to understand the Groups
ability to retain customers and as an indicator of
the Group's ability to increase the life time value of
customers,

Tax expense taken as a percentage of profit before tax.

This measure is usefut to understand the tax
expense recognised in the Income Statement
compared to the headline tax rate in force for the
financial year.

Net {decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents
before dividend payments, proceeds from the issue of
shares, and proceeds/ (repayments) from borrowings.

This measure is useful to understand the level of
free cash generated which could be retained for
future investment by the business, utilised to repay
any debt or distributed to shareholders.

Gross profit presented as a percentage of revenue.

Gross profit represents revenue less cost of goods sold
inclusive of costs incurred to get inventory to its final
selling location and condition.

This measures our success in sourcing high quality
products which offer customers great value (with
pricing targeting savings of at least 30% less than
comparable products from competitor brands)
whilst still achieving strong gross margins to
support the business model.

LFL % is a revenue performance measure which reflects
continuing retail stores which were trading for at least
one full financial year prior to 28 March 2020 inclusive of
any stares which may have moved location or increased/
decreased footprint within a given retall centre. and
continuing ecommerce websites and marketptaces that
have been trading for at least one full financial year prior
to 29 March 2020, excluding the UK Marketplace which
ceased trading on 28 June 2021,

This measure is useful to provide an
understanding of the perfaormance of the existing
business on a consistent basis year on year before
the effect of new stare openings or new website
launches,

Capital expenditure in respect of purchases of Property
Plant and Equipment assets, Intangible assets, and costs
associated with lease arrangements, less proceads from
sale of fixed assets.

This measure is useful to highlight the net cash
investment made by the Group in long term assets
which will provide economic benefits over a longer
time frame,

Cash and cash equivalents less borrowings.

This measure is usefut to understand the financial
stability of the business and as an indicator of
leverage,

Active customers are those that have completed at
least one purchase during the last 12 months and whase
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Chief Financial Officer

4 August 2022
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customer details are recorded on our customer database,

This measure of the Groups active customer
database 15 useful as an indicator of continued
penetration into the markets we operate in, This
database allows ProCook to understand shopping
behaviours and better target marketing activities,



Engaging with our Stakeholders

The Directors have been
planning our new home

for over twelve months

to create capacity for
continued growth and a
new. more sustainable,
working environment to
support our people and our
communities. The Board
has reviewed and approved
the plans for the new
development taking into
account both the merit of
the business case, as well
as the broader impact the
development will have on
our people, our customers
and our communities,

By working together with
one of our long-standing
property partners. we have
customised the specification
of the new site which will be
BREEAM certified, utilising
the latest construction
technigues to harvest

water, reduce energy loss
and use more sustainable
construction materials.
Once operational, the new
Distribution Centre will allow
ProCook to be more efficient
in use of transportation,
reducing deliveries between
sites, and cutting back on
emissions.

ProCook Group ple
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As part of the development
preparation, ProCock has
established a team from
across different departments
to lead the project. This is
chaired by our CCO who
reports on progress to the
Board.

A key part of the project

has been engaging with

our colieagues. Regular
progress updates are
shared, and cotleagues have
participated in surveys to
highlight what really matters
to them in their new working
environment. As a result,

we have incorporated an
indoar and cutdoor gym.

a running track, outdoor
eating spaces with trees and
shrubs, and a new open-
plan office environment with
a colleague restaurant to
support cotlaboration and
wellbeing.
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Engaging with our Stakeholders conmnuen

Our customers

Our mission is to hecome the
customers' first choice for
kitchenware, and we recognise
that delivering an excellent
customer experience is key

to customer retention and

developing the brand's reputation,

Listening to and learning from
feedback and using customer
insight to improve our proposition
is essential to allow us to grow
cur brand awareness and market
share.

The Board has already held a
number of discussions on the
topic of customer experience

in the recent months since

IPO, and as a result of these
discussions have decided to.
and have recently concluded,
the appointmant of a new Chief
Marketing Officer to elevate our
customer focus further,
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How we engage
Customer feedback

We gather feedback frem our
customers on the quality of
service they received and their
satisfaction with the products
they purchased. This data is
analysed and presented to the
Board to review and discuss
each month as one of our Key
performance indicators,

This feedback is used to help

us identity where we need to
make improvements. and also to
identify opportunities for future
developmants.

Store visits

Qur Board regularly visit our
stores providing opportunities
ta interact with customers and
experience for themselves how
our offer resonates.

Customer data

PraCook's direct marketing
heritage has meant that
customer data was collected
from day 1. We now have over
3 million customers on our
database, and we analyse

and interpret information

to create a more tailored
communication plan, including
frequency. content and product
recommencdlations. to create a
better experience

Marketing activities

We engage with our customers
through a range of marketing
activities including social
media. emails and digital
content. providing inspiration
and guidance. Through these
channels we review and respond
to customer's comments and
other interactions. Qur new
Cookery School in central
London is providing the
opportunity for us to spend time
with customers, interacting with
them, showcasing our product
ranges, and sharing our passion
for cooking.



Our people

Qur talented and committed
people are key to the long term
development of our brand. The
Board is focused on protecting
and developing our culture.

the training and development
needs of individuals, succession
planning. and creating great
career opportunities for all.

For more information on

our people please see our
Sustainability section on pages
35to 41

How we engage

OQur People strategy

In the last year we have

made substantial progress

in implementing colleague-
focused initiatives ranging from
mental-health first aiders, new
training programmes including
professional development,
improving our diversity and
inclusion policies, and re-
launching our ‘Great Causes day
after the pandemic.

We were pleased to be certified
a Great Place to Work™ but there
is much more we can do and we
are making continual headway.
The Board receives updates
from the People Director twice
ayear. providing the opportunity
to discuss and approve our

people strategy. as well as
receiving a monthly update
report highlighting progress and
key issues, and setting out our
People-related KPIs,

Colleague engagement surveys
We have recently introduced bi-
annual colieague engagement
surveys to gather feedback
from our colleagues. These are
anonymaus ana contain a mix
of quantitative and qualitative
guestions. capturing free-

text comments allowing the
Group to understand what the
key issues are directly from

our colleagues. Results are
analysed and presented, along
with action plans, to the Beard
by the Pecple Director. Once
agreed, these action plans are
communricated back to our
colleagues. demenstrating our
commitment to listening and
making improvements.

Colleague advisory panel
The Board recently committed
to forming a new Colleague
advisory panel, to launch

this summer. This will be
attended by Board members
and colleagues from across
the business in an informal

discursive setting. We plan

to have key discussion topics
shared in advance, allowing
colleague representatives to
collect input from their pears,

as well as allowing time for
broader discussions. The Boardl
anticipates that this will provide a
new inclusive way teo listen to and
respond to colleagues feedback.
ideas and recommendations.

Fair reward

ProCook is committed to a fair
reward and understands that
clear benefits and an equitable
pay structure is key to attracting
and retaining talent. We are
proud to be a Real Living Wage
employer as a minimum for

all our employees and our
benefits programme includes
monthly and Christmas bonus
opportunities. The Beard
recognises the importance of
incentivising employees over the
long-term. as demonstrated by
its IPQ colleague award. and its
commitment to Company-wide
all-employee share plans. For
more information, please see
our Remuneration Committee
Report from pages 93 to 97 of
this report,
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Engaging with our Stakeholders conrinueo

Our suppliers

We have worked with many of
our suppliers for many years,
some since the business began
in the 19905, developing
enduring and collaborative
relationships. As a D2C
business. our suppliers are a
key component of what we do,
working together to design
and bring to market new
products and customer offer
developments.

ProCook Group ple

How we engage

Trade fairs and supplier visits
Whitst trade fairs and supplier
visits have theen more
challenging to attend recently
due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
they typically provide a
fantastic opportunity for our
teams including our Executive
Directors to meet and develop
relationships with our supplier
base. work on new products
together. and understand

the tatest in manufacturing
developments. We (ook forward
to being able to attend these
more fully again in the months
ahead.

Sedex

Our membership of Sedex allows
us to work with suppliers to
promote and improve ethical
and environmental standards,

We set rigorous expectations
with our supptliers and help
them to develop improvement
plans where needed. We work
together to identify ways to
reduce our environmental
footprint, identifying more
sustainable input materials and
packaging.

Product design and supply chain
Our design and purchasing
teams interact with suppliers
freguently. working on new
design concepts and range
development, through to intake
management and planning. The
relationships we have nurtured
over many years are bullt on
openness and trust. we are
honest and reasonable in our
approach. and work together to
solve challenges that arise.
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Our communities

Strategic Report

ProCook is committed te doing
the right thing and to reducing
our environmental footprint. The
impact on our environment anc
the communities in which we
operate are key to how we do
business. In January 2022, the
Board approved our ESG strategy
agreeing our key sustainability
commitments, The Board
worked with senior management
to understand areas where
progress has been made already,
and areas where there are
further opportunity to make a
positive impact,

For further details please see
the Sustainability section of this

How we engage

Supporting local grouips

and charities

ProCeock raises funds to support
Life's a Beach - a charity whose
aim is to fund schemes to help
eradicate single-use plastics
from our beaches via education,
beach cleans and the promotion
of multiple-use preducts.
Additionally. we support the
locat charity. Going the Extra
Mile {GEM) Project, who are
working help people overcome
challenges to employment and
move them closer towards or
into work.

Reducing our

environmental footprint

Qur partnership with the
Woodland Trust is providing
opportunities for our colleagues
to participate in creating
woodland spaces for their
communities whilst also
mitigating unaveidable Scope |
and It emissions. Cur beach and
canal clean-up days with Life's

a Beach allow our colleagues to
get out and make a difference
for the communities they Live
and work in. We engage with

our customers on environmental

matters too, offering product
ranges that allow them to make

more sustainable choices to help

protect their own communities.

Creating employment

As ProCook has grown, the
number of people employed
by the Group has also grown.
We continue to recruit locally
wherever possible, providing
opportunities for those in our
communities. and are committed
to training and developing our
pecple to provide fulfilling
careers as ProCook continues
to grow,
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Engaging with our Stakeholders conmwe

Our Shareholders

34

The Board recognises that the
support of our shareholders,
hoth before and after (PO,

is integral to our continued
growth and development. As

we prepared for IPO, the Board
maintained open dialogue with
existing shareholders and new
potential investor. A new CFO
was appointed to strengthen the
Executive team and (ead nvestor

Relations activity ensuring How we engage

ongoing clarity of engagement. Investor meetings

External advisors provided useful  Both prior ta. and following the
guidance to the Board prior IPO. the Executive Directars

in the run-up to IPO. and their have presented on multiple
appointment since continues to occasions to investors as part of
help the Board determine the a scheduled an ad-hoc meeting
best approach to key invastor cadence. These presentations
matters, have covered key areas of

investor focus. including our
investment case, trading updates
and financial results.

Timetable of investor/shareholder meetings

Meeting

investor roadshow (pre-IPO) attended by Executive Directors

Corporate website

Our procookgroup.co.uk website
provides helpful information
and latest news updates to our
investor community. Included
here are video recordings of
our interirm results, final results
and an Intreduction to ProCook
featuring a number of our
Leadership Team. We publish
all key financial information,
including RNS announcements
and highlights on the Investor
section of our website.

Datel(s) ~
Octobor 2021

interim results presertation and one to one investor mestings with CEO and CFO

16-17 December 2021

Shareholder meetings and Q&A sessions held with CEQ and CFO following Q3 18 January 2022
trading update

CFO presents on Digital Strategy at FinnCap's D2C conferance 27 January 2022
Shareholder meetings and Q&A sessions held with CEO and CFO following Q4 21 April 2022

trading upda
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Sustainability

Cur Product

Sustainability

Our people

Making ProCook an even
better place to work

We are committed to making
ProCook an even better place
to work, continually listening to
our colleagues. customers and
supplier partners to improve our
business for the tong term.

Our code of conduct and
welcome handbook which we
provide all new colleagues when
they join sets out our vatues and
provides helpful hints and tips
to help colleagues setile in. We
share and explain our policies
including anti-corruption and
bribery, equal opportunities

and data protection with all our
colleagues, providing regular
training updates.

Our colleagues are key to our
ongoing success. and we are
committed to paying fairly
(including the Reat Living Wage).
promoting diversity and inclusion,
and supporting colleague
welibeing and development. Wa
provide workplaces which are
collaborative and safe spaces,
and we encourage and support
our colleagues to give back to
our communities as a socially
responsible employer.

Exec responsibility

Daniel O'Neill, Chief Executive

Officer and Founder

Link to principal risks

+ Brand and custormer

- People and culture

Link to strategy

+  Create an even better place
to work

Key stakeholders

Colleagues, customers.

communities

Recent recognition, awards

and memberships
Great Place to Work Certified™

Ranked #60 in the 2022 UK's
Best Workplaces™ (large
category) and #45 for Wellbeing

Real Living Wage Foundation
Glassdoor ranking 4.6/5

ProCook Group plc
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Colleagues split by gender

All
colleagues

Leadership
Team

Female
M Male
Other/Prefer not to say

Colleagues split by ethnicity*

White British
Asian Bntish

¥ Black

4 Other

M Mixed or roultiple ethnic groups

1 Ethricity information sourced from a
voluntary internal survey complated
during May 2022 with Bo% of colleagues
providing responses

Colleagues split by age group

Under 18 45-54
Wi3-24 W 53-64
25-34 65+

T35-44

Fult time/Part time roles

Full time Ml Part tme
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Sustainability conmvues

Qur commitments Prior achievements

FY22 achievements

What we will do next

Welcome boxes for new
caotleagues

Bi-annual colleague
conferences

Certified by Great Place to Work'™ and ranked
60th In the UK's Best Workplaces™ amongst large
crganisations

Comptleted two six-monthly all-colleague
engagement surveys, with clear action plans
implemented

Set up a 'Green Team” with monthly meeting

of employees across the business interested

in making our company more sustainable

Develap our internal comms and
portal on sustainability and wellbeing
ta celebrate and share progress

Continue to improve employee
engagement - using 2021 results as
a benchmark

We will ntroduce advisary panals
from Summer 22 across the business
to increase communication and
ensure any suggestions and ideas
are captured from the ground up

Annual Good Cause
volunteering <charity day
available to ail colleagues

Product sales and
charitable collections
supporting Life's a Beach
charity in our retail stores
and entineg

Donations of taptops
to local schools, and
products to a tocal
wamens refuge

Launched work with The GEM Project to support
individuals with barriers returning to education
or work

Re-launched our Good Causes charity days post
Covid-19 restrictions

Became a member of the Disability Confident
Government schems

Contributed to community groups. charities

and schools

Worked closely with Gloucester Ukrainian Aid to
support Ukraine by donating ProCook products and
raising fundraising efforts by our colleagues

Expand our charitable werk and
relationships 10 the local community
Provide local pecple struggling with
barriers to work with mentoring and
work experience days

Increase our valunteer work with
Life's a Beach, participating in beach
and canal cleans

Similar pay across
genders

722 of our managers
are women

Real Living Wage
Foundation member

Maintained our commitment to the Living Wage
Foundation as a Real Living Wage emplayer

Continued to review and imprave our total reward
package intraducing new benefits for colleagues

Intreduced a new Whistlablowing Policy and
a new Diversity and Inclusion Policy

Continual review of our total reward
package

Continually reviewed and improved health and
safety compliance ensuring a safe environment for
averyona

Committed to our new Head Office site in
Gloucester ippening 2023) and began design work
on our new collaborative office warkspace

Regular audits carried cut by aur
Facilities and Operations Manager te
ensure that we adhere to high health
and safety practices at all times,
A feedback process 15 in place for all

to highlight any potential health and
safety issues and near misses

Launched a learning and
development platform

to support persarnial
development

Colleague gym on-site at
Mead Office to promote
exercise and wellbeing
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Ranked #45 in UK's Best Workplaces™ large
organisations for Wellbeing 2022

Monthly training madules launched including product
and service training. diversity and inclusion, data
protechion and environmantal awasreness

Supported 12 colleaguss to complete Mantal Health
First Aiders courses

19 Retal internal promotions to Supenvisor or
Management positions. 10 intarnal promotions

in Head office and warehouse

Rart our first “Wellness month in January providing a
range of engaging activihies. podcasts and training for

Relaunch of personal development
planning and training for developing
careers

Provide traming opportunities which
support personat and business
performance

Develop our Mental Heatth

awareness and wellbeing
programmes



In January 2022 we held our inaugural
wellbeing month. We created a
wellbeing calendar with a variety

of inclusive activities and training
sessions including meditation sessions,
yoga training and healthy eating
awareness. We provided a library of
learning content and podcasts with
wellbeing hints and tips shared with
colleagues to try out each day. We
also provided a series of additional
reading recommendations offering the
opportunity for colleagues to reflect on
their achievements and learnings and
focus on their personal wellbeing.

Strategic Report

We used our learning and development
platform to make additional modules
available including topics such as
wellbeing and resilience, stress
management and the irnportance of
movement.

During wellbeing month, we supported
12 colleagues to become mental
health first aiders with training sessions
organised across the business in

our retail stores, head office and
warehouse. These colleagues are
now trained to spot signs of mentat

ilt health, provide initial support

and help facilitate the provision of
additional support where required.
We relaunched our Good Causes Day.
where employees can take a full paid
day off work to volunteer at a charity
or project of their choice, helping to
give back, boost morale and increase
the focus on our communities within
our teams. We also launched our new
Lunch and Learn programme for the
year ahead, including sessions on
healthy eating and exercise, diversity
and inclusion, inclusive recruitment,
and personal and professionat
development.
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SUStainability CONTINUED

Our planet

Reducing our
environmental footprint
We are committed to reducing

Exec responsibility
Steve Sanders, Chief Operating
Officer

Recent recognition, awards
and memntberships
Woodland Trust Woodland

our environmental footprint
with our target of Net Zero
greenhouse gas emissions
{full scope) by 2030, whilst
continually reducing and
eliminating waste and single-use Link to strategy
plastics throughout our business. -

Link to principal risks
Climate change

- Brand and cusiomer

footprint

Our commitments Prior achievements

- Regulatory compliance

Reduce our environmental

Carbon Partner

Certified Zero Waste to Landfiil
{for our Head Office and

Distribution operations)

Key stakeholders

Suppliers, colleagues,

customers. communities

FY22 achievements

Introduced 10C% LED lighting in our
Head Office and Warehouses, and 98%
LED lighting sn stores

Introduced carbon-neutral rome
delivery service with DPD

Partnered with the Woodland
Trust to mitigate our
unavoidable Scope land 1l
emissians

Completed the nmigration
to a fully electric company
car fleet

Proegressed cur B Carp
application which is now
under review

What we will do next

Further reduce our energy
consumption across our cperations

Progress towards 100% renewable
energy sources

Align to the UN backed Science
Based Targets! initiative for a long-
term carbon reduction strategy and
aim to achieve Net Zero emissions
by 2030

To open a new BREAAM certified
sustainable Distribution Centre
and HQ

Complete 15014001 accreditation
by 2025

Zero waste to landfill certification at our
Distribution and HQ sites

Reduced single-use plastic across the
business. all employees are provided with
reusable bottles

Carrier bags in store made from recycled
bottles

Offered a recycling scheme for small home
electrical items (WEEE waste)

Introduced 100" FSC-
certified cardboard packaging
for home delivery parcels

Utilise 100% FSC paper and
cardboard products throughout our
entire supply chain

Set individual environmental targets
for retait stores

Complete a review of home delivery
packaging. further eliminating
remaining non-recyclable materials

Roles and responsibilities assignad
throughout the business

Appointed external experts
to support the preparation
of a coherant environmental
management system for
monitoring

Developed ouwr environmental
risk register

Aim to be 150140001 certified
by 2025

Develop our rcadmap to Net Zero by
2030 setting out the detaited targets
we will aim to deliver

1 The United Nations' Science Based Targets provide a clearly defined sathway for companies 1o reduce greenhovse gas (GHG) emissions and improve

sustanability helping prevent the worst impacts of ¢l mate change
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tCO, emissions

tCo, /7£1m revenue

Energy Megawatt hours

g

We recently announced
our partnership with the
Woaocdtand Trust to mitigate
our current unavoidable
Scope 1and 2 carbon
emissions, as part of the
Company's long-term
sustainability strategy.

The strategy follows the
Environment Agency’s road
map for reducing carbon
emissions and reaching net
zero by 2030,

We have proactively begun
reducing carbon emissions
through a number of
initiatives which inctude
partnering with DPD for
carbon neutral parcel
delivery, operating an all-
electric fleet of company
vehicles, switching to LED
lighting and operating

a zero waste to tandfill
policy at our headquarters.
Our partnership with the
Woodland Trust helps

us mitigate remaining
emissions.

ProCook Group plc
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The Woodland Carbon
scheme is designed to
transform businesses’
carbon emissions by
planting trees and creating
new woodland areas.

This, in turn, removes
carbon dioxide from the
environment and boosts
biodiversity through the
generation of new habitats,
providing a beautiful
community where peopte
can enjoy nature,

In addition to the core
purpose of the parthership,
our colleagues have the
opportunity to get their
hands dirty and join the
Woodland Trust on crucial
planting days throughout
the year.
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SUStainability CONTINUED

By
‘II Qur product

We are committed to Link to principal risks
encouraging our customers to - Supply chain
make cholces for the long term - Climate change
and do so by offering guarantees
of up to 25 years on our products,
thus ensuring better value for Link to strategy

customers and lesser impactson  +  Developing our customer
the environment, proposition

Helping our customers
make more sustainable
choices

Our product, which we design
and source ourselves, is a key
ingredient to our continued
success and we believe that

we can help our customers
make better choices by making
it easier for them. We are
committed to only bringing to
market products which have
been responsibly manufactured,
are of high quality and longevity
and are built to last.

- Brand and customer

Exec responsibility Reducing our environmental

Daniel ONeitl, Chief Executive footprint

Officer and Founder Recent recognition, awards and
memberships
Sedex membership

Key stakeholders
Suppliers, customers

Our commitments Prior achievements FY22 achievements What we will do next

Broad range of product Recruited Quality Assurance Expand breadth of tasting and tongevity
guarantees up to 25 years expertise to enhance product assessments
quality. reduce fault rates and
improve longevity

Develop more innovate product ranges
helping customers to be environmentally
friendly

Joined Sedex {ethical and
environmental compliance
monitoring). and promoted
membership across our supplier
base (25% of our suppliers are now
registered)

Ensure any new suppliers are signed up to
Sedex or equivalent programme prior to
placing first orders

Maenitor supplier compliance resuits
ensuring action plans are in place and
being implemented within agreed
timeframes for any high to medium risk
grade audit result within the last 2 years

plastics

packaging
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Introduced more
sustainable options where
possible. using materials
like twing, string and
paper instead of single use

Achieved over 90% plastic-
free for in-stare product

Environmental impacts
of new ranges assessed
before design sign-off

We have recently phased out
elastic bands and plastic bags in
cutlery packaging to use tissue
paper and paper ties

Raduced average plastic use in
product packaging by 24.6%

Improved recycling instructions
on packaging to make recycling
clearer to the consumer

Launched mare environmentally
friendly product protection
solutions for home delivery
customers (e.g., recycled paper

void, bubble wrap alternatives)

Continue to reduce single-use plastics
and improve environmental credentials
of product protection solutions for home
delivery

Enhance our working retationships with
suppliers to improve our product and
packaging requirements

Investigate an in-store return scheme to
bring back faulty or end of life products
to be recycled helping move kitchenware
towards a circular econarmy

Ensure that any remaining unavoidable
single-use plastic used s made from
recycled content



Throughout the Last year we have triatled
a range of initiatives aimed to reduce the
net environmental impact of our home
delivery packaging. whilst still protecting
products from damage in transit, as

part of our commitment to reducing cur
environmental footptint.

Strategic Report

Initial results are encouraging. and

we have already made positive steps
forward, We have trialled utilising 100%
recycled paper for box void fill — this

has been successful and is being taken
forward, We have trialled and introduced
paper tape to seal boxes. in place of
plastic tape - this too has now been
adopted. We have arranged a review of
box dimensions and quality of packaging
with independent packaging experts,
who have fed back opportunities to help
us reduce sizes to avoid unnecessary
packaging materials which we are now
imptementing.

Additionalty, where we have considered
bubble wrap is required to protect fragile
item, we have identified opportunities

to utilise thinner grade plastic materials
which are now on order.
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Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD)

Over the last year, we have made significant progress in the approach we take to
monitor, measure and manage climate change risks and opportunities.

Doing the right thing and reducing our impact on the environment is engrained in our cuiture and key to
our long-term success as a brand customers and colleagues alike, want to be associated with.

Area of focus

Progress to date

Future focus

£5G Strategy approved by the Board including our 2030
Net Zero targets

The Board has received regular progress updates
and deep dive presentations on ESG topics including
Climate Change

"Green Team” launched to improve sustainability and
climate awareness across the business and to generate
ideas and implement initiatives which will reduce our
environmental impact

Board to review £5G progress at least every six months as
a standing agenda item

ESG steering group has been launched for FY23 and is
chaired by the CEQ

Intreduction of additional werking groups and senicr
management oversight / responsibility for different
environmental and climate-related issues

Sustainability / ESG confirmed as a key area for strategy
moving forwards - "reducing our environmental footprint”

Partnered with the Woodland Trust to mitigate
unavoidable Scope | and !l emissions planting more than
115 hectares of new UK woodland. which also supports
biodiversity

Undertaken a range of initiatives to reduce packaging
{including single use plastic) consumption and increase
reuse and recycling of packaging

Reduced emissions and improved our broader
environmental management capabilities

Appointed external expertise to support the development
of an environmental management system. an
environmental risk register, and undertake a climate
change risk assessment

Completed an assessment of potential climate change
risks and opportunities that could affect our business
aver the following time scales short term (O to 2 years).
medium term (2 to 5 years) and long term (over 5 years).
Please see the table on page 51

Build our detailed roadmap in partnership with our
carbon consultants to meet our targets gaining a better
understanding of the key drivers of carbon reduction
through our supply chain

Develop and implement the next steps of our ambitious
Scope | I} and Il carbon reduction strategy (o meet our
target of Net Zero by 2030

Alignment with the United Nations Science Based Targets
initiative

Raise awareness and increase engagement with
sustainability and climate related initiatives both internally
and externally through ESG quarterly updates and our
Bitesize CSR nawsletter

Continue to review and adopt circular economy principles
into our product and packaging design and use, Future
focus from Quality Assurance and the Buying team will
nclude prioritising materials that have a lower impact on
the environment

Developed the climate risk register and incorporated
short. medium and long-term climate-related risks

Clearly defined roles and responsibilities have been
established with regards to environmental management

Complete cimate change risk assessments with our
external bartners

Monitor and identify changes to climate related risk
lincrease. no change, decrease}. and review this at (east
bi-annually with the Board

Develop a more in depth understanding of possible
climate change related risks and impacts

Complete a agtailed risk assessment of our entire supply
chain, particularly with regards to water, biodiversity loss.
physical climatic changes, under different climate change
scenarios

Scope | and Il Emissions reported
Company Vehicle fleet 100% electric

Zero Waste to landfill certification of our head office and
warehouse sites

100% of remaining Scope 1and 1l emissions mitigated with
the Woodland Trust

100% F3C certified paper used business-wide

100" F5C certified home delivery cardboard boxes and
paper packaging
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Work with our carbon consultants to produce a Net Zero
road map during FY23 to include

An energy system audit report with recommendations
for improvements

GHG footprint analysis of Scope |, I and at least 80% of
Scope lll emissions, with recommendations

Committed to mitigating unavoidable Scope land Il
emissions with the Woodland Trust for FY22



Net Zero 2030 target

The Beoard approved our ambition to
achieve Net Zero emissions by 2030
across Scope | ll and Il at the January
2022 Board meeting.

We have already taken steps to
substantially reduce and mitigate

(offset) remaining Scope land |l
emissions effective from FY21 and

we are committed to maintaining and
improving this position in future years.
Our focus is on the reductian of carbon
emissions as a priority over mitigation
and we are working with external

experts to complete a Net Zero gap
analysis and detailed roadmap. This will
include a comprehensive assessment
and measurernent of our Scope I
emissions, and the development of a
means to measure and monitor this on an
ongoing basis through our Environmental
Management System.

We are committed to reducing our
environmental footprint and look forward
to reporting on our progress in the

years ahead.

Governance

Board oversight

In January 2022, a format
presentation on sustainability and
ESG strategy was presented to the
Board for review and approval, This
included our roadmap for the future
and set out our ambitions and the
actions which will be taken to make
progress. Information was shared
with the Board about our current
Scope | and Il emissions. the carbon
reductions we have achieved to date.
and the approach we are taking to
mitigate remaining Scope | and ||
emissions.

Management's role

In FY22 an ESG Director was
appointed. reporting into the CEO to
increase oversight and leadership
of this topic. Throughout the year,

the Executive Directors have
worked with the ESG Director
to support activities and make
progress on a range of related
initiatives throughout the
business. The Leadership Team
as a whole are engaged with
climate related initiatives as
part of our strategic objective
to reduce cur impact on the
environment.

Next steps

+ Monitor progress at the
Board, extending our
discussion to include new
and emerging climate
change risks, challenges and
oppertunities

Consider the short, medium
and long-term climate

risks and the importance
of managing these moving
forward

New ESG steering group will
meet at least 4 times per
year. chaired by our CEQ.
who will provide regular
updates to the Board

The Audit and Risk
Committee will continue to
review and assess new and
emerging risks in relation
to climate related risks and
mitigations

Strategy

Climate-related risks

and cpportunities

Climate related risks and
opportunities are already widely
considerad in our day-to-

day business operations and
integrated into our strategic
objectives. Whilst we may
initially incur higher operationat
costs from implementing.
preventing and responding to
climate risks. we firmly believe
that doing the right thing now
will help us create a stronger
and more resilient business for
the long term. Climate related
factors are considered across a
range of activities for example
new stores, our new head office
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Strategic Report

and warehouse sites. product
design, packaging design.
supplier selection, transport
including company vehicles
and home delivery partners.
Responsibility to make the
right decisions is assigned to
appropriate functional owners
throughout the business and
is overseen by the Executive
Directors.

Developing our environmental
management system

We have appointed external
partners to support us in
developing a robust system to
measure, manitor and identify
climate and environmental
factors which impact our
business. We consider this
important to the success of our
strategic objectives as it will
enable us to be more preactive
i making the positive steps
we need to take to reduce our
impact on the environment and
achieve Net Zero by 2030.

Next steps
Further develop our detailed
roadmap to reduce our
impact on the environment
and achieve Net Zero
by 2030

+  Complete the development
of our environmental
management system

+  Increase colleague and
supplier engagement.
sharing objectives and
timescales for completion

Work with our Green-
team to identify additional
opportunities to make a
difference

«  Extend our networks outside
of ProCook, to share insights,
gain collective support and
make faster progress
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Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) conmmuso

Risk management

Climate change is considered a
principal risk in our risk register,
and is discussed with our Board,
Audit and Risk Committee and
Executive team as part of a
twice-yearly formal review of our
principal risks. The key elements
of climate change risk and the
opportunities these provide are
set out in our Climate-related risk

Developing our detailed
climate risk register

We have appointed external
partners to support us in
developing a more detailed
climate change risk register
which we anticipate completing
within the next financial year.
This will help us develop a
more in depth understanding of
possible climate change related

Next steps

Complete the detailed
climate risk register

during FY23

|dentify actions to help
mitigate risks, and assign
business owners to progress
these in line with the overall
climate and environmental
strategy

Launch regular review of
the register, to identify new
and emerging risks, and to
monitor our progress with
mitigating activities

risks and their impacts. We will
also undertake a more detailed
risk assessment associated

with our entire supply chain,
particularly with regards to water.
biodiversity loss and physical
climatic changes. under different
climate change scenarios.

register on page 51.

Further information abaout our
approach to risk management
can be found on page 486, this
explains how responsibility for
risk management is allocated
and how that responsibility

is discharged by our Board,
Audit and Risk Committee. and
fxecutive team. Detail on ouy
Climate change risk is set out
in the principal risk section on
page 47,

Cumadesreiated risk registar
Link to
principal risks

Indicative
timeframe

Risk Cpportunity

Transition Risks (associated with moving towards a greener. less polluting economy)

Regulatory risk

Increased compliance costs and reporting
obligations. Increasing extended producer
responsibility, driving operational waste
disposal costs up. for example packaging
and product waste

Short/
medium term

Although there may be initial costs, there
are also potential operating savings from
transitioning towards a more circular
business model.

Regulatory
compliance

Reduction in single-use plastic packaging
could decrease waste management costs
and improve recycling rates.

Risk of higher climate regulatory Medium term
requirements. complicating business
practices. Increased costs from introduction
of carbon taxes. as well as increased taxes
for plastics. energy, waste and fuel as the UK
Government aims to meet Net Zero by 2050

atongside other enviranmental commitments

Higher initial costs with new legislation,
possible long-term savings through a
maore thorough sustainability strategy with
ambitious targets. improving ProCoak’s
environmental management system,
reducing carbon/ energy consumption and
single-use plastic use.

Ragulatory
compliance

Higher costs related to legislation and
changes in building efficiency standards

Medium.”
long term

Savings from more efficient building

standards (lower heating costs). as well as
opportunity to transition to predominately
renewable energy.

Regulatory
compliance
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Risk

Technology risk

Opportunity

Indicative
timeframe

Strategic Report i« il mé

Link to
principal risks

Substitution and transition costs of shifting
to lower emissions products, services and
technologies

Long-term cost savings from using more
efficient. economical and sustainable
products, services and technologies

Short/

medium term

IT platforms,
data toss and
cybersecurity

Internal systems becaming inefficient /
investments in new technologies becoming
outdated

Accelerated technelogy capabilities could
drive operational efficiencies.

Medium/
long term

T platforms.
data loss and
cybersecurity

Changing consumer behaviour. increasing
demand for limited but more sustainable
materiats {e.g.. recycled). Harder to source,
could increase manufacturing costs

Using novel and alternative materials

may become mere cost efficient. More
ranges with these materials will appeal to
sustainability focussed customers and will
increase brand image and reputation.

Short/

medium term

Brandct and
customer

Increased costs of raw materials for product
production

Raw material pnices may fluctuate. Using
novel and alternative materials may become

Short/
medium term

Competition
market and macro-

more cost efficient. economic
Higher demand for products that atign to the Sustainable product ranges and those Medium, Brand and
circutar economy (reuse and repair), reducing  assocrated with the circularity (reuse and long term customer

new product sales and/or loss of sales to
competitors with more sustainable options

rapair) may increase in sales. Work on
creating a greater number of these ranges.

Reputationat Risk

Unable to recruit and retain top talent if we Continual improvement of sustainability Medium,/ People and culture
are not recegnised as a responsible business  strategy/ credentials mproves reputation long term

and brand image attracting a breader range

of talented and loyal colleagues
Shifts in consumer preferences. unable to Continually improving sustainability strategy/  Medium/ 2rand and
retain and attract customers if we are not credentials will lead to a better reputation long term customer
recognised as a responsible business and brand image. attracting a broader range

of loyal customers.
Increased stakeholder concern, investors Continually improving sustainability strategy/  Medium/ Financial and
divest if we are not recognised as a credentials and enhanced transparency will long term treasury
responsible business lead to easier access to capital and improved

investor sentiment.
Physical Risks (associated with the physical impacts of climate change)
Increased risk of extreme weather events Continue to strengthen links with suppliers Short/ Climate change

(heatwaves. storm surges. drought. fleoding.
wildfires), Could lead to disruption within the
supply chain - damage of buildings. products.
and transportation

and distributors, Great communication
throughout the supply chain to maximise
resilience and minimise disrupticn

meadium tarm

Increased risk of extreme weather events Strengthen links with suppliers and Medium. Climate change
may impact raw material production and distributors. Improved communication long term
access. Lower supply and higher prices throughout the supply chain improves

resilience and minimises disruption.
Risk from reduced employee productivity Continue to improve colleague working Medium/ Climate change
due te infrastructure disruptions and environments and improve communication long term

extremes in weather (predominantly higher
temperatures}

throughout the business te maximise
resilience and minimise disruption.
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Risk Management

During the year we have made
substantial progress in developing
our risk management framework,
enhancing our internal controls, and
establishing greater focus on risk
across the Group.

We have identified three risks where the

potential impact has increased; climate
change (added as a new principal risk),
market and macro-economic factors
related to the challenging consumer
environment and continued national and
global supply chain disruption,

Our approach to risk
management

Risk management is an
integral part of the gverall
governance and management
of the Group. As part of the
greparation for the IPO in
2021 certain elements of risk
management were enhanced
and formalised including the
imptementation of a more
formal risk management
framework. We continue

to develop our procedures,
processes and internal
controls environment. as well
as raise awareness amongst
colleagues throughout

the Group.

Risk management framework

Ultimately responsible for the
Groups risk management system
and reviewing its effectiveness

Establishes and
communicates the Group's
risk management policy

- Sets the tone and culture
for managing risk across
the Group

- Reviews overall Group
principal risks at least
annually
Sets the risk appetite of
the Group

Ensures Executive Directors

have responsibility for
managing specific risks
Undertakes annual horizon
scanning exercise for
emerging risks

Assesses recommendations

from the Audit and Risk

committee on requirements

for independent assurance
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We have established formal
processes for identifying. assessing
and reviewing risks. The Board

has overall responsibility for the
management of risk acrass the
Group. In addition, our Audit and
Risk Committee monitors key

risk management processes as
part of its duties. The day-to-day
responsibility for risk management
activities sits with the Executive and
wider Leadership Team,

Responsible for the oversight of
risk management processes and
controls

Examines and reviews the

Groupss risk register and

internal controf environment

at least twice a year
Reports to the Board

on the status of the risk
management processes
Provides guidance on risk

and control improvements
Highlights where minimum
expected standards are not
complied with

Makes recommendations
to the Board about

any requirements for
independent assurance
Maintains relationships with
the independent Auditor
receiving their reports on
the control environment
and any recommended
improvements

Day-to-day responsibility for
risk management activities,
processes and controls

Ensures the day-to-day
effectiveness of risk
management activities
Responsibility for risk
prioritisation and assessment
at Functional level
Reviews risk assessments.
sharing relevant material
to the Audit and Risk
Committee / Board
Keeps abreast of identified
risks in their area and any
potential risk exposures
Completes an annual
horizon scanning exercise for
emerging risks
Reviews the Groups risk
register on a quarterly basis
Develops functional risk
registers aligned to principat
risks where appropriate and
required, ensuring regular
review of the performance of
mitigating controls

+  Takes action to improve the
overall control environment,
increasing mitigating
activities where necessary
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The Board has undertaken a
detailed consideration of the
Group's principal risks. including
new of emerging risks, and those
that could damage its business
model, or adversely impact its
operational activities or financial
performance and position. These
principal risks are not exhaustive.
and the Group may be exposed
to risks wider than those listed,
including risks not currently
known or identified. or currently
deemed to be less material.
which may alse have an adverse
effect on our activities.

The heat map diagram illustrates
the Board's assessment of the
principal risks after the effect

of mitigating internal control
activities that are in place.
Further detail on each of the
principal risks 15 set out on pages
48 to 57.

Emerging risks

and changes to
principal risks

We did not identify any new

or emerging risks during the
financial year, however we

did formatly identify climate
change as a new separate
principal risk. in its own right,
given the increasing importance
of this topic to cur customers.
colleagues. investors and other
stakeholder groups and the
link to our strategic objective
of reducing our envirchmental
footprint.

The Covid-19 pandemic has
continued to have an impact

on the Group during the

Last financial year. including
retail stores re-opening and

the impact of the Omicron
variant late in 2021, The Board
considered whether to present
this as a separate principal risk,
however concluded that this was
adequately incorporated into the
‘competition. market and macro-
economic’ principal risk.
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Additionally. the Board has
determined that there is currently
a heightened level of risk around
two of our principal risks.

The recent developments in

the economic and consumer
envirenment, including the
impact of the Russian war on
Ukraine, has led to a significant
and rapid downturn in consumer
confidence caused by the
combined adverse impacts of
significant inflation (including
the costs of energy. fuel, food
and other goods and services).
interest rate rises. tax increases
and stower wage growth. The
Board has determined that the
potential impact of competition,

Principal risk

Strategic and business change

Brand and customer
Climate change
Supply chain

People and culture
Marketing effectiveness

WO s W N

Financial and treasury
10 Regulatory compliance

Principal risks heatmap
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Competition, market and macro-gconomic

IT platforms. data loss and cybersecurity

Strategic Report

market and macro-economic
risks has increased.

Global supply chain and
manufacturing activities have
remained disrupted throughout
the financial year following on
from the Covid-19 pandemic and
continue to be impacted by the
current macro-economic and
geopolitical factors. Compared
to FY21. the Board considers
this risk to have increased. with
higher costs to source and
transport products, and shipping
delays creating risk of lower
availability and requiring higher
levels of inventory to mitigate.

Impact compared

to Fyzl
No change
Increase
No change
New
Increase
No change
No change
No change
No change
No change

Impact

. Strateguc " Operational

ProCock Group plc

Financial and compliance
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Risk Management coninueo

Strategic risks

Description
Faiture to develop the right strategy or
execute the strategy effectively

Change projects are not completed so
benefits are not fully realised

The Board must adopt the correct
business strategy. implement its
strategies effectively and understand
and manage strategic risk, considering
specific retail sector risks and wider
economic risks

Link to strategy
+  Developing our proposition

Building on our foundations

KPIs
- Sales growth

- Underlying profit before tax

Impact change in FY22
No change

Current factors: Established strategy.
newly listed plc status increases risk,
however Covid-19 related factors have
diminished cver time

Exec responsibility
Daniel ONeill, Chief Executive Officer
and Founder

Potential impacts

Failura to achieve financial and other non-financial targets

Loss of customer confidence and potential damage to brand reputation
Reduced or limited business growth

Reduction in colleague engagement and/or loss of colleagues

Loss of focus on core business activities and risk management

Delays in strategy execution may (ead {0 a (0ss of investor confidence
An increased cost base to manage/resolve strategic failure

Mitigations

Long term business strategy is considered and approved by the Board at least annually

Experienced teadership for key business change projects reperting on progress to
the Board

Steering Groups established for major change projects

Clear accountability for strategic devetopment established and monitored by the Exec
and Board

Stability in the leadership team, culture of long-term growth and clear communication of
business changes as they are being planned and executad

Strang balance sheet with cash/ debt headroom

Proagress in FY22

Enhanced long term strategy planning processes and key initiative accountability
Developed various functional strategic plans, reviewed by the Board

Developed strategic prionty working graups with frequent Board reporting
Improved test and deployment capabilities for technology change programmes

Board oversight

Long term strategy and progress with key strategic priorities reviewed by the Board
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Description

Failure to adapt to changing consumer
needs and to maintain a compelling
customer offer compared to competitors.

Changes in macroeconomics and
geopatitics. particularly relating to China
could impact ProCook’s strategy

txamples include a broad range of
consumer needs including channel shift.
value proposition (price and quality}
guality of service and advice, product
longevity and sustainability

The Group continues to maonitor the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and
the Russian invasion of Ukraine on its
business and the economies of the
countries where the Group operates

or in which its products are sold, it
believes that there (s still potential for
further disruption to its supply chain and
distribution channels

Link to strategy
Purpose and mission

KPls
Sates growth

Underlying profit before tax

impact change in FY22
Ingrease

Current factors Heightened mflation.
consumer cost of living squeeze. supply
chain disruption. Russia invasion of
Ukraine, Covid-12

Exec responsibility
Daniel O'Neill. Chief Executive Officer
and Founder
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Strategic Report

Potentlal impacts

Limited or reduced profitability and opportunities far growth or inhibit the Group's ability
to deliver on its strategic objectives

Loss of market share to competitors either ontine or in stores
Challenges in recruitment of quality people as expectations of wages and reward change
Increases in input costs such as fuel, raw materials and labour

Delays in the prodiuction or shipping of products

M|t|gat|ons

Focus on service in-store and online with daily/weekly tracking monitored by the
Leadership Team as well as menitoring our market performance/share data

Retention of our excellent-rated Trustpilot score

Investment in marketing. technology. and supply chain capabilities to support and
improve the customer experience at all touchpoints

Analysing competitor activities. including propeosition and pricing

Focus on new product development to ensure we design and source beautiful products
at great value for our customers

Macroecenomic environment is monitored by the Executive and Leadership Team as well
as by the Board

Prog ress in FY22

KPIs maere clearly defined to highlight and track sales and profit
Outperformed the UK kitchenware market by 36%pts in Fy22
Launched 540 new products during the year to keep the range fresh and on-trend

Appointed a new Chief Marketing Officer to further develop custormer acquisition and
retention capabilities

Maintained our 4 8 out of 5 Trustpilot score with 24.308 reviews posted in FY22

Invested in higher stock levels during period of supply chain disruption to achieve 98%
value availability and 95%. opticn availability

Retained our commitment to the Real Living Wage to support colleagues

Participated In vancus charitabte activities to support Ukraine since the invasion began

Board oversight

Perfarmance KPIs market share and supply cham information regularly reviewed by
the Board
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Risk Management coninue

Description

Reputational damage leading to loss
of consumer confidence in ProCook
products or services

Reputational damage could be caused
by a variety of factors with examples
including customer data loss, preduct
quality, health and safety, ethical or
sustainability concerns. poor customer
service or, regulatory non-compliance

The Group's busingss performance and
growth depends on the continued strong
perception and increasing recognition of
the ProCook brand

Link to strategy

+  Aftract engage and retain more
customers

KPls
+ New customer acguisition
12-month repeat rate
Impact change in FY22
No change
Current factors Heightened security risk

due to the Russian Invasion of Ukraine

Exec responsibitlity
Angela Porter. Chief Marketing Officer

Potenual impacts

Loss of existing customers, reducing life time vatues

Reduced ability to attract new customners. potential higher cost of marketing

Loss of sales and profit

Loss of colieagues or a decrease in colleague engagement with the ProCook brand

Mltlgatlons

Thorough product quality testing and certifications
Supplier selaction and guality controls
Payment Card Industry and Data Protection compliance activities

Technology vulnerability and penetration testing with continual security improvement
programmeae

Robust Health & Safety policies and protocols
Thorough review of marketing and alt external communications

Colleague code of conduct and business culture. and menitoring of coileague
engagement levels

Monitaring of various brand health metrics including Trustpilot reviews

Progress inFy22

Acquired 723.000 new customers in FY22 and improved repeat rates in both Retail and
Ecommerce channels

introduced brand and customer metrics in weekly and monthty KP{ reporting to improve
monitoring

Raising aur brand profite with discussions at Board level

Macdle sigruficant progress with environmental priorities including our partnership with the
Woodland Trust which we have begun to tell our customers about to raise awareness of
our sustainability credentials

Introduced Sedex compliance monitoring for our product supplier base, helping to
ensure strong ethicat and environmental compliance through rigorous audit processes
incorporating labour standards. health and safety and environmental assessments

Continued our focus on utilising sustainable packaging and reducing single use plastics
across our preduct range and oparations

Made significant progress in developing Technolagy security capabilities

Maintained our 4.8 excellent-rated Trustpilot score

Monitored aur Glassdoor ratings for colleague feedback which has improved to a score
of 4675

Progressed our B-Corp application and achieved Great Place to Work Certification™

Board oversight

Review of and customer metrics on a regular basis.
Review and approval of the FY23 ESG strategy
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Strategic Report

Description

Faiture to meet our evet-increasing ESG
ambitions within acceptable timescales
across the business, and deliver on
customer, employee. and investor
expectations

Climatic risks associated with global
average temperature increases due to
increased concentration of greenhouse
gases in the atmasphgra causing
significant natural disasters, changes

in legal frameworks, or disruption to
the Groups supply chain or changes n
customer preferences

Link to strategy
Reduce our environmentat footprint

KPIs
CO, emissions intensity

Impact change in FY22
New

Current factors; Increasing customer
awareness, increasing regulations

Exec responsibility
Steve Sanders. Chief Operating Cfficer

Potentnal impacts

Climate-caused natural disasters could adversely impact the Groups operations including
its supply chain

Legal and compliance changes could disrupt the Groups operations and increase costs
of compliance (including taxation)

Less of Brand reputation due to insufficient progress or compliance failure
Changes in customers preferencas may require preduct or propesition changes
Changes in packaging requirements could increase costs

Loss; of colleague enydgement and higher labour turnover if insufficient environmental
progress is being made by the Group

Mitlgatlons

Focus on this topic at Board. Exec and Leadership Team level
Mitigating unaveoidable CO, emissions across Scope | and i
ESG strategy approved and being actively progressed

Sedex compliance manitoring for our product supplier base, helping to ensure strong
ethical and environmental compliance

Fully electric vehicle fleet for all company cars

Continual removal of all unnecessary product packaging (including single use plastic)
across our product range

Use of a carbon-neutral partner as our primary home delivery transport solution

Prog ress in FY22

Apgointment of a new ESG Directar to lead progress in this important area

New partnership with The Woadland Trust to mitigate unavoidable CO, emissions across
Scope land It

ESG strategy and targets developed and approved by the Board

Fully adopted electric company cars across the fleet

Developed a comprehansive environmental managemant system for monitoring water,
waste. energy and carbon emissions

Created a risk register for environmental matters

Introduced Sedex compliance monitoring across 95% of our product supplier base
Developed environmental messaging for our custometrs and colleagues to promote
making sustainable choices

Developed Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures reporting as part of our
Annual Report

Board oversight

Review and approval of the FY23 ESG strategy
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Risk Management CONTINUED

Operationalrisks

Description

Failure to source products effectively
and ensure inventory is maintained in the
right volumes at the correct store and
warehouse locations to achieve sales
targets

Failure to manage cost pressures
in the supply chain (nput and
transportation costs}

Failure to identify new and altermative
suppliers for new product ranges, or
where improvements in quality, capacity
or supplier service are reguired

Link to strategy
Building on our foundations

KPls
Sales growtn

+ Underlying profit before tax

Impact change in FY22
increase

Current Factors Global supply ¢chain
challenges in the wake of Covid-19.
Russian invasion of Ukraine. Inflationary
pressures

Exec responsibility
Steve Sanders, Chief Operating Officer

Potential impacts

Mitl

Delayed product shipments could lead to inventory shortages which may lead to a loss
of sales

Increased praduct costs from input or raw material costs, and/or higher costs of shipping
and transportation, could reduce gross margins. or require increased selling prices which
may reduce sales

Delays in order shipment to customers may damage the overali custormer experience and
impact brand reputation

Higher inventory levels may lead to increased costs of storage and logistics

igations
Continuous communication with suppliers and freight forwarders

Robust inventary management including intake planning and availability optimisation
including weekly reviews with Exec leadership

Use of well-established and reputable cutbound suppliers with monthly performance
review meetings established

Two warehouses in use, with inventory also located across 55 stores and in the !
Natherlands, reduces risk of operational failure

Established additional 3rd party storage facilities
Product supplier base exceeds 100 suppliers providing flexibility and resilience

Progress in FY22

Investment in higher inventory levels to protect availability duning a period of giobal
supply chain disruption

implemented weekly stock management and intake planning review meetings
Development of UK new distribution centre underway

Established Covid-safe practices and routines throughout our distribution centres
Achieved »98% delivery on time for UK Ecommerce orders

Board oversight

Business continuity protacols reviewed at the Audit and Risk Committee
Supply Chain deep dive and strategy topics reviewed by the Board
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Description

Failure of technology systems to provide
aresilient platform for all business
activities or to prevent the loss of

data or loss of access in the event of a
security threat

Failure to develop appropriate
technology platforms ta support stratogic
amitions in a cost-effective way or to
the required timescales

The Group reties on its critical Technology

systems to manage its business
aperations including inventory and
supply chain management. recording and
processing customer transactions. and to
summarise performance results

Link to strategy
Building on our foundations
KPIs
Underlying profit before tax
Trustpilot score

Impact change in FY22
No change

Current Factors Relizance on proprietary
technologies Russian war in Ukraine,
improved security capabilities

Exec responsibility
Dan Walden. Chief Financial Officer

Potential impacts

Mi

Pr

Loss of access or functionality could result in loss of sales and/or reputational damage
and could require significant investment to fix or replace

Loss of data tincluding customer datal may cause reputational damage. impact
operations and/or result in breach of compliance regulations with potential to result in
financial penalties

Delayed mplementation of new technologies coutd disrupt the Groups business
operations. slow Lhe pace of strategic prograess, or result in higher costs

tigations
The Group have established various security procedures and protocols including
vulnerability and penetration testing
High (evel of system monitoring and "on-call” procedures helps ensure that high levels of
system up-time 1s achieved
Test and deployment procedures establishad for technology developments and change
External support agreements in ptace to assist with system monitoring. Data Protection
and Payment Card Industry compliance and other critical activities
Estahtished policies and procedures including Disaster Recovery plans. system
decumentation PCl and GDPR compliance. and security protocols

ogress in FY22

Achieved »99.9% system availability

implemented new Microsoft 365 Dynamics finance and inventory management systems
Improved access controls meluding 2 Factor VPN to critical systems

Intreduced Penetration Testing procedures

Developed new proprietary Ecommerce technology forintial use in the EU using latest
code base and development frameworks to support agile development and security
improvements

Enhanced Disaster Recovery plans for Technaology

Board oversight

Business continuity protocols reviewed at the Audit and Risk Committee
Monthly Technology and Cybersecurity report reviewed and discussed by the Board
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Risk Management covmuen

peE o
Description Potential impacts
Faiture to manage people-related risks - Loss of existing expertise and knowledge could impact continuing operations. reducing
including potential loss of culture. sales or profit
could result in operational or strategic Increases in costs of total reward or recruitment

disruption . . . L -
+ Failure to deliver outstanding customer service, improve the customer proposition or

The success of the Group relies on the achieve the company's strategic objectives
cantinued service and expertise of its

people. and on its ability to continue to
attract. motivate and retain high calibre

Delays in processing and completing business as usual tasks due to unplanned leave
Increased levels of colleague absences and/or reduction in celleague engagerment

colleagues
. Mitigations
Link to strategy + Monitoring of colleague engagement and other Peaple KPIs by the Exec. Leadership
Make ProCook an even betler place Team and Board
to work + Annual colleague performance reviews with accompanying personal development plans
KPIs - Training and development programmes estabbished
+  Colleague engagement score - Thorough recruitment and induction procedures supported by the company's People

Impact change in FY22 team and external recruiters where appropriate

No change - ProCook Code of Conduct established and explained to all new starters

Current Factors: Competitive job market,
challenging macro-environment,
Covid-19 pandemic and flexible workings

Progress in FY22
*  Foundation of a Nomination and Remuneration Committee to moriitor our pecple

practises
Exec responsibility - Increased focus on Senior Management succession and development with the Board
Ea”'ec: ONeill. Chief Executive Officerand . creation of a new company Diversity and Inclusion Policy
ounder

- Mental health first aid and awaraness training launched
Continued commitment to the Real Living Wage across the business
Awarded Great Place to Work™ certification

Board oversight
- People strategy reviewed by the Board

+  Neminations Committee and Remuneration Committee established
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Description

investment in marketing activities is
neffective in customer acquisition and/
or retention

The Group's future growth depends
on customer acquisition and retention
with cost-efficient marketing spend,
appropriate creative messaging and
relavant media mix

Link to strategy
Attract. engage and retain more
customers

KPls
Sales growth

Cost per acquisition
New customers acquired
Active customer database

Impact change in FY22
No change

Current Factors Adverse macro-
economic conditions inflationary
pressures

Exec respaonsibility
Angela Porter. Chief Marketing Officer

Potentlal impacts

Areduction in marketing effectiveness could result in higher costs and tower profits

Loss of abitity to attract new customers and retain existing customers in a cost-effective
way could lead to loss of sales and/or reduction in profits

Failure to successfully achieve strategic growth ambitions
Potential for brand and reputational damage

Mltlgatlons

The Group ensures the CTMO, Brand Director and CLO sign off key messading and spend
within a defined budget

Close monitoring of KPls as well as more detailed trading metrics including cost per
acquisition and Return on Ad Spend

Customer messaging sign-off processes established
Performance against marketing budgets momitored

Progress in FY22

Attracted 723000 new customers (+73.8% year on year} during FY22
Increased 12 month repeat rates by +6.9 percentage points in FY22

Appainted a new Chief Marketing Officer to develop our recruitment and retention
capabilities to drive continued revenue growth

Developed new recruitment channels including affiliate partners

Expanded brand marketing activities to increase customer awareness and recruitment
including TV press and digital channels

Developed and launched messaging around environmental credentials

Board oversight

Monthly review of KPIs
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Risk Management CONTINUED

Financial and compliance risks

Description

Failure of the Group to effectively
manage its financial affairs and ensure
an appropriate financial position and
sufficient liguidity for future growth

Any failure in financial planning, financial
reporting, compliance with tax legislation,
or the maintenance of a robust financiat
control environment

Link to strategy
«  Building on our foundations

KPls
- Underlying profit before tax
+  Free cash flow

Impact change in FY22
No change

Current factors: Recent IPO. macro-
economic environment

Exec responsibility
Dan Walden, Chief Financial Officer
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Potential impacts

Inaccurate or untimely financial reporting may result in inappropriate decision making
and/or darmage investor confidence

incorrect payment of tax or late payment which could result in fines or penalties
Unexpected adverse impact of foreign exchange movements

Loss of business assets through control failure or fraud

Increase in costs and reduced profitability

Loss of liquidity andZor business flexibility if insufficient headroom to support working
capital or investment decisions

Reputational damage

Mitigations

Experienced finance team with relevant technical capability

External professional expertise utilised for selected areas {e.g., Tax. iPC, Risk
Management)

Use of robust financial systems including Microsoft Dynamics 365

Established relationships with banking partner with financial facilities to support working
capital and investment needs

Foreign exchange hedging processes

Regular budgeting and forecasting exercises undertaken

Financial reporting timetable clearly established

Financial Position and Prospects Procedures documentation maintained and reviewed at
least annually

Financial controls continually reviewed and improved, with Finance Risk Register
established

Progress in FY22

Bo.

Investment in finance headcount to increase capacity and bring in additional technical
expertise

Established a finance risk register. and made significant improvements to financial controt
framework including introducing new policies and procedures, increasing process
documentation and improving segregation of duties

Increased working capital finance facility and introduced a new Revolving Credit Facility

Enhanced financial planning capabilities. implementing guarterly budgeting/forecasting
timetables and improving business accountability and cost control

introduced new reporting timetables for month-end and interims/praelims whilst
improving the quality of information for intarnal decision making

implemented Microsoft Dynamics 365 finance systermns
Appointed new Group tax advisor

ard oversight
Monthly CFO reports reviewed and discussed by the Board

FY23 Budget reviewed and approved by the Board

Audit and Risk Committee reviews financial controt framework and affectiveness and
financial reporting

Group policies reviewed and approved by the Board




Strategic Report

Description

Failure to comply with regulatory
standards including but not limited to
cata pretection, privacy. employment law.
health and safety. financial regulations,
consumer law

Failure to comply with internal policies
and procedures that could resull in
financial or other losses

Link to strategy
Building on our foundations

Make ProCook an even better place
to work

KPls

Revenue

Underlying profit before tax

Impact change in FY22
No change

Current factors. Recent IPO

Exec responsibility
Dan Walden, Chief Financial Officer

Potential impacts

Regulatory breaches may lead to adverse publicity which could adversely impact sales
growth and profitability

Potential fines or other penalties for non-compliance. or legal proceedings

Injury to general public or colleagues

Damage to or loss of stock or other assels

Additinnal rasts incurred in the event of an incident including reselution

Focus diverted from businass operations and strategy to resolve a compliance breach
Loss of colleague engagement

Mltlgatlons

Group policies and code of conduct shared with colleagues

External professionat advice obtained on relevant matters for example GDPR. property
legal advice. employment advice, tax advice

Health & Safety Manager leads the development of the Group's Policy and completes site
audits and maintains incident reporting and monitoring

Established policias and procedures for technical topics such as Trading Standards
WEEE. Waste Management, Market Abuse Regulations. GDPR, PCl which are overseen by
senior management

Company Secretary facilitates ongoing review of governance best practice

Progress in FY22

No compliance breaches identified during FY22

Launched new training for selacted policies including GDPR. PCl and Market Abuse
Regulations

Enhanced board reporting on atl key compliance topics
Introduced necessary compliance controls and policies in preparation for [PQ

Board oversight

Corporate governance topics reviewed and discussed at each Board meeting

CFQ reports to the Board on any key internal policy changes seeking approval
whera needed
Audit and Risk Committee review regulatory nsks as part of risk management procedures
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Going Concern, Viability
and s172(1) Statement

In accordance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the
Board of Directors must assess
whether the business has adequate
resources to continue in operation
for the foreseeable future and

as such, determine whether it is
appropriate to continue to adopt
the 'Going Concern’ basis of
preparation.

Additionally, the Board is required to assess
the viability of the Group over a longer

time period to determine whether it has a
reasonable expectation that it will be able to
continue in operation and meet its longer-
term liabitities as they fall due (the 'Viahility
Statement’).

As part of these assessments, the

Board is required to consider the future
prospects of the Group by reference to its
current financial position, recent trading
performance, forecasts and financial
projections. its strategy and business mocdel,
and its principal risks.
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Going congem
and viability

Approach taken to
assess Going Concern
and Viability

In their consideration of

going concern the Board has
considered the 12 month period
from the date of signing these
financial statements. In their
consideration of viability. the
Board has determined that a
three-year viability assessment
period covering the three
financial years ending 3C March
2025, appropriately reflects the
speed of change in the cutrent
retail and consumer environment
and is consistent with the
Group's strategic planning cycle.
This period provides a balance
betwesen the long-term nature
of investments and the key
drivers of near-term business
performance

In considering the
appropriateness of adopting the
going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements the
Directors have considered

the Groups principal risks and
assessed the impact of arange
of severe but plausible downside
scenarios on the Group's
expected financial performance.
position and cash generation.

The scenarios were informed by
a comprehensive review of the
macroeconemic environment.
and the Groups experience of
trading through the pandemic
over the last two years,

Consideration has been given
to the availability of facility
headroom and covenant
cormpliance within the Groups
financing facilities which are set
out below,

Base case

The base case for the scenario
modelling extends from the
annuat budget plan that

was approved by the Board

in April 2022 and updated

since to reflect our latest
trading expectations which we
announced on 10 June 2022 for
the FY23 financial year. Forécasts
for F¥24 and FY25 returnto a
growth trajectory, based on the
lower FY23 base.

Key assumptions include
Ecommerce and Retall sales
performance, opening of new
stores and websites, investment
in central headcount and brand
marketing. and the level of
inventory required to maintain
strong availability and the effect
on net working capital.

Modelling the impact

of potential downsides
scenarios

The Board's assessment of the
principal risks highlights that the
most likely and impactful are
those surrounding customer and
macrg-economic factors and
supply chain disruption.

The Directors have reviewed
the potential downside impact
of these risks unfolding.
modelled under

three severe but plausible
downside scenarios:



Strategic Report

A severe reduction in
customer demand. caused
by continued inflationary
pressures and reduced
disposzabie incomes. or

a drop in demand for
kitchenware product as
customers make cholces to
spend elsewhere

Link to principal risks
2. Competition and macro-economic risks

3. Brand and customer
8. Marketing effectiveness

Financial impacts considered
-10% sales impact in each period resulting in a -35% reduction in revenue growth over the
assessment period
+52% increase in cost per acquisition

Mitigations considered
Direct operational volumea-related} costs adjust with sates

Inventory levels are managed based on sales demand
Senlor Management short-term performamce retated compensatlon removed

Result
In this scenario the Group would not breach any of its financial covenants and would not require any
additionat sources of financing in any of the three years under review

Major disruption to global
supply chain including
manufacturing in the Far East,
resulting in significant delays
to source and replenish stock
levets. reducing availability
for customers and increasing
cost pressures within

gross margin

Link to principal risks
5  Supply chain

Financial impacts considered
-57; sales impact ifrom M2 FY23 onwards) In each period resulting in a -17% reduction in revenus
growth over the assessment period

-2pts gross margin impact
Inventory levels reduce due ta supply chain constraints

Mitigations considered
Direct operational t(volume-related) costs adjust with sales

Senmr Management short-term performance re ated compensahon removed

Result
In this scenario. the Group would not breach any of its financial covenants and would not require any
additienal sources of financing in any of the three years under review

Scenarios 1 and 2 combined

Link to principal risks
2. Competition and macro-economic risks

3. Brand and customer
3. Marketing effectiveness
5  Supply chain

Financial impacts considered
-15% sales impact from H2 FY23 onwards in each period (-1077 in H1 FY23), resulting in a -57%
reduction in revenue growth over the assessment period

-2%pts gross margin impact
+5% increase in cast per acquisition
Inventery lavels reduce due to supply chain constraints
Mitigations considered
Direct operational ivolume-related) costs adjust with sales
Senior Management short-term performance related compensation removed
Inventory levels are managed based on sales demand

Result
In this scenario. the Groupg would not breach any of its financial covenants and would not require any
additional sources of financing in any of the three years under review
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Going Concern, Viability
and s172(1) Statement covmnueo
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Stress testing

The Directors have also reviewed
three stress tests which, whilst
considered extremely unlikely,
seck to determine the level of
sales decline compared to the
base case which would result

in a risk of financial covenants
being breached,

In these tests we have assumed
that direct variable operating
costs reduce as sales reduce,
savings of £2m per annum of
current fixed costs would be
achieved, net working capitat
would reduce as inventory
levels are managed downwards
reflecting sales demand, and
the level of capital expenditure
would be limited to £1m per
annum in FY24 and FY25.
Additionally, we have reflected
the suspension of dividend
payments,

We have modelled the sales
decline required to breach either
of the current covenants in the
existing Revolving Credit Facility
(RCF) by the end of FY24 (Test
A), end of FY25 (Test B) and the
required sales decline to breach
the current facility maximum of
£10m (Test CFwith the following
results:

Test A. A sales reduction of
-25% from Q2 FY23 and -35%
throughout FY24 would be
required to breach facility
covenants by the end of FY24.

Test 8: A sales reduction of -25°%,
from G2 FY23, -30% throughout
FY24 and -37% in FY25 would
be required to breach facility
covenants by the end of FY25.

Test C: A sales reduction of -542;
applied consistently fram Q2
F¥23 onwards would he required
to exceed the maximum current
RCF limit of £10m and this would
occur at the end of FY25.

ProCook Group plc

Potential mitigations

if any of these hypothetical
downside scenarios were to
unfold. there are a series of
further mitigating actions that
PraCook could take to protect
the Group's activities including:

Increase selling prices for
products which have lower
price elasticity to help offset
additional import costs

identify alternative near-
shore manufacturing where
possible to mitigate exposure
to Far East supply

Identify and enter into
partnerships to charter
vessels directly

Increase inventory forward
ordering to protect availability

Leverage promational activity
to attract more customers

Reduce discretionary above-
the-line marketing spend

Renegotiate payment terms
with suppliers

Reduce central overhead
costs (including headcount)
over the short or

medium term

Delay capital expenditure

in retail. technology and
logistics

Review and amend our
capital allocation and
dividend policy

Extend financing facilities
with existing or new lenders,
potentially including the use
of the accordion option for
the RCF which is subject to
lender approval.

Financing arrangements
ProCook's bank facitity
agreements and the associated
covenhants are set out in the
CFO's Review within this report
and include a committed £10m
RCF (expiring in April 2025,

with two one-year extension
options to April 2027), an
accordion option to the RCF
subject ta lender approval, with a
maximum facility of £5m. and an
uncommitted £6m Trade Finance
arrangement.

ProCook ended the financial
year with £3.8m cash and cash
equivalents and net debt of
£1.8m. The financial covenants
are tested quarterly in line with
our facility agreements, Under
normal trading conditions,
these covenants are met with
significant available headroom.
In the downside scenarios as
explained above. the Group
continues to forecast compliance
with all financial covenants
throughout the geing concern
and viability period.

Going Conaern and

I T P!
sk loly Dialoriiny

The Directors, following their
comprehensive review, have a
reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources
to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable
future and will be able to
continue in operation and meet
its tiabilities as they fall due over
the viability assessment period.
Caonsequently. the Directors have
concluded that using the going
concern basis far the preparation
of the Financial Statements is
appropriate,
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The Directors confirm that

they have acted in a way that
they consider. in goed faith, to
be most likely to promote the
success of the Company for
the benefit of its members as a
whole. and in doing so have had
ragard, amongst other matters.
to the matters set out in s172(1)
of the Companies Act 20086
(*s172 Matters™, This statement,
together with the examples on
pages 29 to 34. describes how
the Directors have had regard
for s172 Matters in respect of
the year.

The Company Secretary sets
out the s172 Matters in all
Board meeting packs to ensure
these are front of mind, and
the Directors are reminded of
their duty under s172(1) at the
start of each Board meeting.
Consideration of the broader
5172 matters forms an integral
part of Board discussian: the

.l
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Directors as a matter of course
have regard to the need to
maintain a reputation for high
standards of business conduct.
the need to act fairly between
stakeholders. and the long term
consequences of their decisions.
These considerations are
referenced in meeting papers as
relevant, and discussions thereof
recorded in the meeting minutes,

With regard to more Company
specific stakeholder groups.
the Board has identified those
key to the Company based

on each groups potential

to a) be impacted by the
Company's activities, and/

or b} have an impact on the
Company’s activities. These
key stakeholders. as agreed
by the Directors, are set out
on pages 29 to 34, together
with information about their
material issues and methods
of engagement, Whilst
Directors engage directly with
stakeholders on certain topics.
stakeholder considerations

T
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on the whole are brought to

the Board'’s attention through
reports and presentations from
the Executive Directors and
senior management, This is an
integral element of reqgular Board
reporting and, in the case of
certain stakeholders such as the
workforce. may be discussed as
a separate agenda item.

As a result of these processes,
the Directors have the necessary
oversight of the Company's
engagement with stakeholders
to enable them to discharge
their duty under s172(1) in

the course of their decision
making. Moreover, the Board has
concluded that the Company's
key stakeholdars set out on
pages 29 to 34 are appropriate
and that the methods of
engagement for each are
proportionate and effective. The
Company's key stakeholders and
methods of engagement wilt be
kept under review and reported
on each year in the Company's
Annual Report.

The table betow sets cut where stakeholders can find information in our Strategic Report that relates to
non-financial matters detailed under Section 414C8 of the Companies Act 2006,

Reporting requirement

Where to find more in this report

Employees

Human rights
Social matters
Environmental matters

Anti-bribery and corruption
Business modet
Principal risks
Nen-financial KP(s

Sustainabitity: Our People

Risk Management: People and culture

How we engage with our people
Sustainability: Our People
Sustainability: Our People
Sustainability: Our Planet

Task Force for Climate-related Cisclosures

Sustainability: Our Peaple

Cur Unique Business Model
Principal risks and uncertainties
Strategy and KPls

Page

35
52
31
35
35
38
42
35
14
47
18

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 4 August 2022,

For and on behaif of tha Board

Chief Executive Officer Chief

.

R

Financial Officer
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Chairman’s Letter

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the
Company's first Corporate
Governance Report following

its IPO on the London Stack
Exchange on 12 November
2021. The Board recognises that
sound corporate governance is
critical to ProCook's long-term
succeass and we as a Board have
embraced the opportunity to
develop and strengthen our
governance arrangements

in accordance with the rules

ProCock Group plc

and expectations incumbent
on a premium listed company.
including those of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance
Code and Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules and
Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules,

This section of the Annual

Report describes our corporate
governance structures and
processes and how they have
been applied during the period
from the Company's admission

to trading on the London Stock
Exchange (“IPC" on 12 November
2021 through 3 April 2022 (the
“period” or “year"}.

My role as Chair

My role is to ensure that the
ProCook Group plc Board
ocperates effectively in delivering
the long-term success of the
Company for the benefit of all
of stakeholders. In futfilling

this role. | seek te ensure

that Board proceedings are
structured and conducted

in such a way as to allow all
Directors to have the opportunity
to express their views openly
and that. in particular. the
Non-Executive Directors can
provide constructive support
and challenge to the executives.
More about my role. and the
roles of all the Directors and
Committees, can be found on
pages 72 to 73.

A strong start

I'm delighted with the progress
we've made in the months

since IPO. Our focus on strategy
underpins everything we do. and
| felt it was critical that we held a
full-day strategy session to agree
the Company's strategic priotities
and three-year plan eatly on.
That session. held in January.
established a firm foundation on
which to build our Board agenda
for the months ahead.

We have also embedded

the corporate governance
framework and pelicies
introduced at IPO as well as
introducing additional policies
during the year. Further details
of our Board activities and
discussions. and how these
contributed to our strategy. can
be found on pages 70 to 71,

The year ahead

Now that the Board has
embedded its governance
framework and policies and
established effective ways of
working together both inside
and outside the boardroom. | will
continually assess and enhance
our govéernance arrangements

in line with best practice, the
needs of the Company, and the
expectations of our stakeholders.

Annual General Meeting
The 2022 AGM will take place
at 11.00 am. on 20 September
2022 at ProCook. Davy Way.
Waterwells. Gloucester GL2
2BY. Should the UK Government
impose any prohibition on
non-essential travel and public
gatherings that impact the
AGM. the Company will update
sharehaolders through an
annauncement to the London
Stock Exchange and on the
Company's website. In any
case, shareholders are strongly
encouraged to register their
proxy votes online. regardless
of whether they plan to attend
the AGM in person. to mitigate
against the risk of any such
disruption. Further details

are included in the Notice of
AGM which will be sent to
shareholiders with the prescribed
timescates. | look forward to
meeting those of you who are
able to attend.

IR I

Chairman

4 August 2022



Landaosihin and Comnany purpess

The Board is collectively
responsible for leading and
controlling all activities of the
Company. with overall authority
for establishing the Company’s
purpose, values and culture and
overseeing the management of
the Company’s business, strategy
and development. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic
direction and approves strategy.
policy. and key Cornpany policies.
These decisions are underpinned
by regular financial reporting

and a robust approach to risk
management.

The Beard has agreed the
Company's purpose: Sharing
our passion for cooking. This
purpose guides the Company's
entire strategy and is reflected
throughout the organisation's
culture.

Compliance With the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Company is required to report on its compliance with the principles and provisions of the 2018

UK Corporate Governance Code (‘Code™), a copy of which is available at www.frc.org.uk. The Board
considers that it has complied in full with the Code's principles and provisions during the period. Further
information on how the Company has complied can be found on the following pages:

People and culture

The Board assesses and
monitors the Company’s culture
through several sources. At

its first meeting post-IPQ, the
Board received and discussed
a comprehensive report from
the Company's People and

ESG Director on the Company's
People and Culture Strategy for
FY23. The Board also receives
monthly People reports from
the COO and these feature as a
standing item at Board meetings.

Making ProCook an even better
place to work is universally
recognised by the Board and
senior management as key to
our success and we are excited
about the initiatives in train for
the year ahead.

Workforce engagement
In accordance with the Code,
the Board has chosen to take a
blended approach and establish
a Workforce Advisory Panel

as well as appointing Luke

Leadership and company purpose; page 68

Division of Directors’ responsibilities: pages 7210 73
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Kingsnorth as the designated
Non-Executive Director

to oversee the Company's
engagement with the workforce.

The advisory panelis made up
of ten colleagues from different
areas and roles within the
business, with Luke Kingsnorth,
as designated NED, chairing the
meetings. The aim is to break
down the barriers of a traditional
corporate hierarchy and to allow
colleagues to feedback directly
to top-level management,
ensuring that ideas. suggestions,
and issues that come from the
ground floor of the organisation
are not missed. The Board will
update sharenolders in its next
annual report on the activities
and outcomes of the panel.

Further information on the
Companys policies and

approach to engaging with its
people can be found within the
Stakehalder Engagement section
of the Strategic Report on pages
2910 34,

Composition, succession and evaluation: Nomination Committee Report on pages 74 to 75

Audit, risk and internal control: Audiit and Risk Committee Report on pages 76 to 79

Remuneration: Reruneration Report on pages 80 to 81

ProCook Group plc
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Board of Directors

Greg Hodder

Non-Executive Chair

Appointment
Greg was appeinted
on 29 Octaber 2021

Skills and Experience
Greg brings a weatth

of experience with
previous Non-Executive
Director and CEO
appointments and

a history of driving

fast growth from
entrepreneurial
companies with
particular experience

in e-commerce and
multi-channet. Greg has
spent much of his career
working in the retait
sector including roles
as President of New
York-based company
Smallbone PLC, CEO

of Charles Tyrwhitt

LLP and Chairman of
Majestic Wines ple.

Other Roles

Gregis currently a
Non-Executive Director
at Hotel Chocolat plc
and Senior independent
Director at Jarrold &
Sons Ltd
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Daniel O'Neijll

Chief Executive Officer
and Founder

Appointment
Daniel was appointed on
19 October 2021

Skills and Experience
Daniel founded ProCook
over 25 years ago and
has been employed
full-time in the business
since then. Prior to
founding ProCook
{originally trading as the
Professional Cockware
Company until 2008} in
the 1990s. Daniel had
an early career in direct
marketing businesses
and consultancy
services and in
software development,
developing skillsets
and experiences that
have provided guiding
principtes to support
the development of the
ProCook business.

Other Roles
Daniel holds no
significant external
directorships.

Steve Sanders
Chief Operating Officer

Appointment
Steve was appointed
on 19 October 2021,

Skills and Experience
Steve has worked for
the Group for over

six years. Previously
holding the position of
CEQ, on the expansion
of the executive team in
May 2021, Steve's role
became more focused
and he subsequently
assumed the role of
Chief Operating Gfficer.
Before working for
ProCook, Steve was
Managing Directar of
Shoon Ltd for eight
years and. before that.
Finance Director. He
has also worked as an
independent consultant
and was co-founder of
a consumer electronics
start-up before
successfully selling

it to a market leader

in 2000. Steve is a
chartered management
accountant,

Other Roles
Steve holds no external
directorships.

Dan Walden
Chief Financiol Officer

Appointment
Dan was appointed
on 19 October 2021

Skills and Experience
Prior to joining ProCook
in May 2021, Dan

was Chief Financial
Officer of Booking.com
Transport. Before that.
he held severalroles

at Dunetm Group

plc inctuding Group
Finance Director and
Commercial Finance
Director, Before Dunsatm,
Dan held various senior
finance and commerciat
roles at Halfords and
Sainsbury's. Dan is a
chartered accountant.
having begun his career
with KPMG.

Other Roles
Dan holds no external
directorships.
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David Stead
Senior Independert
Non-Executive Director

Appointment
David was appointed
on 2% October 2021,

Skills and Experience
An experienced diractor
of companies in the UK
retail sector. David was
Chief Financial Cfficer
of FTSE-listed Dunelm
Group plc from 2CQ3

to 2015 and Interim
Chief Financial Officer in
2018. Prior to his role at
Dunelm, David served
as Finance Director for
Boots The Chemists
and Boots Healthcare
Internationat between
1991 and 2003. David is
a chartered accountant.
having spent the sarly
part of his career

with KPMG,

Other Roles

David is the Senior
Independent Non-
kxecutive Director of
Joules Group plc and a
Non-Executive Director
of Naked Wines plc.

Cllian Davies

independent Non-
Executive Director

Appointment
Gillian was appointed
on 29 October 2021,

Skills and Experience
Gillian is a chartered
accountant who
qualified with KPMG and
has held a number of
senior financial positions
in both listed and
private equity-backed
international companies.
She spent 11 years as
Group Finance Director
of FTSE listed dimprint
Group plc, during which
time the group was
extensively restructured
and delivered significant
growth. Most recently,
Gillian was CFC of AlM-
listed Harwood Wealth
Management Group
until its sale to private
equity.

Other Roles

Gillian is a Non-
Executive Director
and Chair of the Audit
Committee at Ten
Lifestyle Group plc.
She is also Senior
Independent Non-
Executive Director
at Knights Group
Holdings plc.

Luxe Kingsnorih

Independent Non-
Executive Director

Appointment
Luke was appointed
on 29 October 2021,

Skilts and Experience
Luke joined Charles
Tyrwhitt in 2010 as
Ecommerce Director
before rising to
Ecommerce and
Marketing Director in
2012, Between 2016
and 2019 he was
focused on establishing
the New York office and
managing all aspects
of the labets North
American business,
before becoming CEQ
in 2018, Prior to joining
Charles Tyrwhitt. Luke
was senior manager
at John Lewis Direct,
and has held several
e-commerce and
marketing roles at
companies including
Eurostar. British Sky
Broadcasting Group
and Skandia Life and
Manpower.

Other Roles
Luke is currently CEQ of
Charles Tyrwhitt,

ProCook Group plc

Board independence
{excl. Chain

independernt
M Nen-independent

Skills and experience

g o

Strategy

B Consumer/ Retail
Ecommerce

& Finance
Manufacturing

M General management

Marketing

Board diversity

Female
W Male
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Governance Framework

The Board comprises the Chairman, three
Executive Directors and three independent
Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs").

The Board keeps a formal schedute of

matters specifically reserved for its decision.
These include the approval of the annual

and half-yearly results and associated
announcements, recommendation of dividends,
convening of sharehotder meetings., Board
appointments, strategic plans and budgets,
ESG plans, significant capex proposals,
acquisitions, systems of internal control and

risk management and corporate governance
arrangements, No one Board member has the
power to make decisions on behalf of the Board
without the sanction of the other members.

The Board has formally delegated specific
responsibitities for audit, risk management

and financial contrel, Board composition and
remuneration to three standing Committees,
namely the Audit and Risk Commitiee,
Nomination Commiitee and Remuneration
Committee respectively. Each is chaired by the
Chairman or an independent NED, enabling
the Non-Executives to take an active role in

influencing and challenging the work of the
Executive Directors. The terms of reference of
the Committees are reviewed on a regular basis.

The Board has also established the Disclosure
Committee to oversee the identification,
management and disclosure of inside
information concerning the Company. The
Committee comprises the CEQ, CFO, Senior
independent Director and Audit and Risk
Committee Chair and meets on an ad hoc basis
as required.

Board responsibilities

Setting. developing and rote-modelling our
purpose and business values

Setting the strategy and mission to delver
on the Company’s purpose, and secure the
continued growth of the Group over the long
terrrt in the interests of alt its stakeholders
Ensuring that appropriate resources are in

place to successfully deliver the Company's
mission and strategic priorities

Instilling and maintaining a positive culture
that encourages strong ethical behaviours

Ensuring that the business control
environment is appropriate and oparationally
effective and that sound risk management
practices are in place

Oversight of succession planning and talent
management

Setting an appropriate remuneration policy
to attract and retain talent

Ensuring that appropriate information

is shared with stakeholders ina

transparent way

Ensuring full compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

Reviewing performance at an operationat
and strategic level

Reviewing the performance of the Board. the
Executive Directors and the Leadership Team
Ensuring that the Board 15 well equipped with
appropriate skills and expertise, and that

committee membeérships are approprate and

B " effactive o R

Audit and Risk Committee
Key Responsibilities

The Audit and Risk Committee
provides formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how

to apply the financial reporting and
internal control principles set out in
the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the "Code™}. in doing $o, it reviews
and maintains the Groups financial
reporting and internal control and risk
management systems. aclvises the
Board on the Groups risk strategy.
policies and potential exposures. and
maintains an appropriate relationship
with the Company's Auditor.
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Nomination Committee
Key Responsibilities

The primary purpose of the
Nomination Committee is to establish
a formal. rigorous and transparent
procedure for the appointment of
new directors to the Board. It also
oversees the development of a
diverse pipeline of potential Board
candidates.

Remuneration Committee
Key Responsibilities

The key role of the Remuneration
Committee is to astablish a formal
and transparent procedure for
devetoping policy on executive
remuneration and to set the
remuneration packages of individual
directors.



Board meetings

In advance of its meetings. the
Board is provided with an agenda
and all relevant documentation
in a timely manner to assist in
the discharge of its duties and

to ensure that decisions are well
informed and made in the best
interests of the Company. f a
Director is unable to attend a
Board meeting. thry always have
the opportunity to discuss any
agenda items with the Chairman
before the meeting.

Conflicts of interest are
managed in accordance with
the procedure described under
"Directors conflicts of interest”
on page 100,

Board and Committee
meeting attendance

The following table shows the
attendance of the directors at
relevant meetings of the Board,
Audit and Risk, Remuneration and
Necmination Cormmitiees during
the year, excluding transactional
meaetings held pre-admission to
deat with IPO matters.

Audit and Risk  Remuneration Nomination
Name o Board Committee Committee Committee
Gittian Davies 3/3 272 171 171
Greg Hodder! 2/3 n/a 171 0/1
Luke Kingsnorth 3/3 2/2 171 171
Daniel O'Neill 3/3 n/a n/a n/a
Steve Sanders 3/3 n/a n/a n/a
David Stead? 3/3 1/2 1/1 171
CanWalden .33 nfa __n/a _ n/a

1 Greg Hodder was unaote to attend the Momination Committee and Board meetings or

18 March 2522 due o illress

2 Davd Stead was unable to atiend the Audiz and 2 sk Committee meeting o0 23 Marcn

2022 Gue to a previcus commitment

Whistleblowing and
compliance

The Board is responsible for
monitoring and periodicalty
reviewing the Company’s
whistleblowing, anti-bribery and
anti-fraud paolicies, The Board
approved these as part of the
IPO process and satisfied itself
that sufficient arrangements
were in place to assist in the
prevention of fraud and enabte
employess to report irregularities
confidentially and allow
appropriate investigation and
follow-up action to be taken,

Wider stakeholder
considerations

The Companys key stakeholder
groups are set out in the
Stakehclder Engagement section
of the Strategic Report on pages
29 to 34,

Sustainability

Full details of the Company's
sustainability strategy and
performance with regard to
sustainability are provided within
the Sustainability section of

the Strategic Report on pages
3510 41

Re-election

In accordance with the Code
and the Company's Articles of
Association. all Directors are
subject to annual re-election by
the shareholders at the Arnnual
General Meeting,
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Time commitment

Each Director's other
commitments are disclosed
and, in the case of significant
appointments, approved by the
Bcard in advance, The Board
reviews a schedule of Directors’
interests at each Board meeting.
The Beard is satisfied that the
other commitments of the
Chairman and the independent
NEDs do not prevent them

from devoting sufficient time

to the Company. The Executive
Directors work solely for the
Group and do not hold any
significant external directorships.

Access to advice

All Directers have access to

the advice and sarvices of the
Company Secretary, who is
responsible for advising the
Beoard on corporate governance
matters. The Directors are able to
take independent. professional
advice 10 assist them. if
necessary. at the Company's
expense.

Shareholder engagement
The Board. led by the Chairman.
is committed to maintaining

an open and constructive
dialogue with shareholders

to ensure there is a common
understanding of the strategic
objectives governance and
performance of the Campany.
The CEQ and CFQ undertake
investor roadshows following
the release of financial results
and feedback. The Company
has appointed financial public
relations advisers and corporate
brokers to gather investor and
analyst feedback, which is
presented to and reviewed by
the Board.
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How governance contrinutes to strategy
The Board receives regular updates from the CEQ, CFO and COO at each meeting, covering strategy,
finance and operations. respectively, These are complemented by deep dives into key areas of focus and

supported by governance and regulatory updates from the Company Secretary.

The Board is keenly focused on strategy and agenclas are designad to ensure that the Board dedicates
sufficient time to discussing and debating those matters critical to delivering strategic success. The below
table sets ocut the Board's key activities and discussions during the year and how these support our strategy.

Topic

Key activities and discussions

Link to strategy

Regularly received and discussed strategic updates and
proposals from the Executive Directors, supported the
developiment of strategy through individual insights and
constructive challenge

Held a dedicated away day to discuss and develop FY23
Strategy

Approved the FY23 Strategy and Budget following
thorough consideration and debate

All

Received monthly financial updates including monthly
management accounts. performance against budget and
KPls, cash position, debt position and banking covenants.
and any material financial risks arising

Approved the Capital Allocation Policy

Held a deep dive session on trading performance during
the peak period.

Monitored performance against Budget and City
expectations

All

Received regular People reports from the COO

Received and discussed updates from our People Director,

- including employee survey results and other indicators of

employee satisfaction

Approved the establishment of a Workforce Advisory Panel,

on which we will receive regular reports going forward

i Approved the appointment of Luke Kingsnorth as our
1 Designated Non-Executive Director for Workforce

Engagement

Held a deep dive session on £5G matters covering People.

i Planet, and Product and Packaging

Make ProCook an even
better place to work

Reduce our
environmental foolprint

Regularly discussed supply chain management and
inventory management. particularty in light of ongoing
supply chain disruption

Received monthly stock and supply chain reports

Discussed plans for the development of a new
warehousing facility

; A deep dive session on supply chain and logistics was held

post year-end

Building on our
foundations

ProCook Group plc
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Key activities and discussions Link to strategy

Discussed and provided input into the digital marketing Attract. engage and
strategy retain more customers

Held a deep dive session on customer acquisition;
discussed methodology, key metrics and assumptions

A deep dive session on the development of the Company’s
e-commerce performance was held post year-end

Reviewed reports from the CEQ on UK market conditions Attract, engage and
and business growth compared to market growth retain more customers

Reviewed European market sizes and opportunities as part  Developing our
of FY23 strategy development proposition

Discussed potential for European expansion. including the
launch of EU websites and prospective store locations

Reviewed and discussed management’s proposed tech Building on our
strategy and roadmap foundlations

Received regular updates on technology and cyber
security from the CFO

Held a deep dive session on tech strategy

Discussed product development at the away day and a Ceveloping our
deep dive on the subject is scheduled in early FY23 aroposition

Developed and agreed the Company's purpose and values  Sharing our passion for
cooking

Becoming the
customers’ first choice
for kitchenware

Discussed the Groug's risk register All
Qversaw the strengthening of the Finance function

Closely monitored the Company's cash position through
regular updates from the CFO

Approved new banking arrangements including a new
Revolving Credit Facility

Received monthly reports on financials, cyber security and
IT. and health & safety

Regularly reviewed compliance with the UK Corporate AlL
Governance Code

Received regular corporate governance updates from the
Company Secretary

Embedded the corporate governance framework and
policies introduced at IPO and approved additional poticies
post-1PO including the Board Diversity Policy and Related
Party Transactions Policy
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Clear division of roles and responsibilities on the Board
The key responsibilities of the members of the Board. including the division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and CEO, are set out in the table below,

Role

ProCook Group plc

Responsibilities

The Chairman's principal responsibility is the effective running of the Board and

includes:

Ensuring the Board as a whole plays a full and constructive part in the
development and determination of the Group’s strategy and overall commercial
ohjectives

Ensuring the Board determines the nature and extent of the significant risks the
Company is willing to embrace in the implementation of its strategy

Running the Board and setting its agenda

Ensuring that all Board members are given the opportunity to share their views
and participate in the business of the Board

Encouraging all Board members to engage in Board and committee meetings by
drawing on their skills. experience and knowledge

Ensuring that there is effective communication by the Group with its shareholders.
including by the CEQ. CFO and other executive management

Ensuring that members of the Board develop an understanding of the views of the
majer investors

Leading the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees,
and individual directors

Shaping the culture of the boardroom

Ensuring that the board listens to the views of shareholders. the workforce.
customers and other key stakeholders

The CEO's principal responsibility is running the Group's business, including:

Developing the Groups purpose, strategy and commercial cbjectives. and
proposing these to the Board

Implementing the decisions of the Beard and its Committees,

Providing input to the Board agenda. including that from other membaers of the
executive tearm

Conducting the affairs of the Group with the highest standards of integrity. probity
and corporate governance

Setting an example to the Company's people and communicating expectations
regarding the Company’s culture

The CFOQ is responsible for the overall planning and management of the Group's

financial affairs, including:

Working closety with the CEOC to ensure that strategic plans are underpinned by
solid financials

Developing the Company's budget and monitoring performance against this
Assessing the benefit of new investment opportunities and capital expenditure
initiatives

Drafting the Company's statutory financial statements and monthly management
accounts

Responsibility for internal control and risk management, in conjunction with the
Audit and Risk Committee
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Role Responsibilities

The COQ is responsible for overseeing the daily operational and administrative
functions of the business, including:

Assessing and enhancing the efficiency of operational processes

Leading staff to achieve sales and organisational objectives

Establishing policies that improve and promote the Company's purpose, values
and culture

Ensuring that operaticnal policies and practices drive behaviour and that
appropriate standards of governance permeate throughout the organisation

Overall responsibility for Peopte. Health & Safety. Property. and Supply Chain and
Logistics

The S1D's principal responsibility is acting as a sounding board for the Chairman and
| serving as an intermediary for the other directors and shareholders, including:

Working with the Chairman. directors and shareholders to resolve significant or
sensitive issues

Assisting in the maintenance of the stability of the Board and Company.
particularly during any periods of stress

Taking responsibility for an orderly succession process for the Chairman. working
closely with the Nomination Committee

Being available to shareholders should they have concerns that are unresolvabte
through the usual channels of the Chairman, CEC or other executive directors
Leading the performance evaluation of the Chairman on behalf of the other
directors

4 The NEDs are independent and have been appointed for their knowledge and
| expertise, Their key role is to contribute to the strategic direction of the Group,
including:
Providing healthy debate and challenge. as well as guidance and support. to the
Executive Directors,
Providing an independent sounding board to the Chairman and Executive
Directors.
Serving on the Board Committees, with responsibility for the oversight of audit and
risk. remuneration. and composition of the Board,
Luke Kingsnorth has also been appointed as the designated Non-Executive
Oirector for workforce engagement (see more onpage 31

. 3 ' ‘ .
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Dear Shareholder,

[am pleased to present
ProCooks first Nomination
Committee ("Committee"} Report
to shareholders for the year
ended 3 April 2022 {the "year").
The Committee has made a good
start, having had its inaugural
meeting in March 2022, where
we reviewed the composition of
the Board and its Committees;
reviewed the composition

and structure of the senior
management team:; discussed
long-term succession planning
and the development of the
executive pipeline; and reviewed
and approved the Board Diversity
Policy for recommendaticn to the
Board. details of which are set
out in this report.

The Executive Directors were
also invited to attend this
meeting and provided the
Committee with valuable insight
into the resourcing needs of the
business and actions being taken
to ensure the necessary skills
and experience are in place to
drive the Company's strategy
forward.

Key responsibilities

The purpose of the Committee

is to establish a formal rigorous
and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors
to the Board. as required by the
UK Corporate Governance Code
{the "Code"), The Committees
main responsibilities, as outlined
in its terms of reference. are:

Reviewing the structure, size
and composition {including
the skills. knowledge.
experience and diversity)

of the Board and making
recommendations to the
Board with regard to any
changes.

Ensuring plans are in place for
orderly succession to Board
and senior management

positions and overseeing the
development of a diverse
pipeline for succession.

- Reviewing the leadership
neads of the organisation.
both executive and non-
executive, with a view to
ensuring the continued
ability of the organisation to
compete effectively in the
marketplace.

- Identifying and nominating,
for the approval of the Board,
candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when
they arise.

+  Evaluating the balance of
skills. knowledge, experience
and diversity on the Board.
and, in light of this evaluation.
preparing a description of the
role and capabilities required
for a particular appointment.

- Reviewing the time reguired
from non-executive directors.
Performance evaluation is
used to assess whether the
non-executive directors
are spending enough time
fulfilling their duties.

The Committees terms of
reference are available on the
Company's website.

Board composition

Given that the Board and its
Committees were established
just prior to the Company's
listing on 12 November 2021,
the first annual evaluation of the
operation and effectiveness of
the Board, its Committees and
individual Cirectors has not yet
taken place. The Committee
will conduct this review during
the current financial year and
will report on the cutcome in
its report to shareholders in the
Y23 annual report.



Succession planning

The Board has delegated
respensibility to the Committee
for leading the process for
identifying and nominating Board
candlidates. as well as keeping
the diversity of the Board under
review. When making a Board
appointment, the Committee

will seek to igtentify an individual
with the skills. knowledge and
experience reguired to fulfil the
role, taking account of the added
value that the individual brings
to the Board in terms of creating
a diverse, and therefore mere
effective. decision-making body.

The Commitiee also has
responsibility for oversight of
the development of a diverse
pipeline of potential Directors
and senier managers. This

is supported by the Groups
Diversity and Inclusion Policy
described on page 75, which
aims to ensure that ProCook's
workforce is truly representative

of all aspects of society and
that employees feel involved,
valued and respected. We are
looking forward to hearing from
the Company's People and ESG
Director, who will be joining a
Committee meeting this year
to provide further insight into
the business's approach to
developing a diverse pipeline.

Election and re-election
of Directors

In accordance with the Code
and the Company's articles of
association. all Directors will
offer themselves for election

by shareholders each year at
the Companys annual general
meeting. Both the Committee
and the Board are satisfied that
all Directors continue to be
effective in, and demonstrate
commitment to, their respective
roles on the Board and that each
makes a valuable contribution to
the leadership of the Company.
The Committee therefore
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recommends that sharehoilders
vote in favour of all Directors' re-
election at the AGM,

Priorities for FY23

Over the coming year. the
Committee will focus on ensuring
appropriate succession plans are
in place that are supported by

a formal and rigorous process,
having due regard to diversity

in allits forms including gender.
ethnicity, and background,

The Committee wilt conduct

a formal performance review
towards the end of FY23. once
the Board has settled into its first
year of operation, to ensure the
composition of the Board and its
Committees remains appropriate
to the needs of the business.

Grar

i~ '5\:.!...“; o

Nomination Committee Chair

4 August 2022

Diversity and inclusion Policy

Policy Statement

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity in its
broadest sense and believes that the Board's capabilities
are improved by a diverse balance of skills, expettise,
gender. ethnicity, and professional and social backgrounds.
Together, this brings the widest possible breadth of
perspectives, insights and chatlenge to the decision-
making process, ultimately ensuring the Board and senior
management are equipped to promote the long-term
success of the Company.

The Board supports the recommendations set out in the
FTSE Women Leaders Review on gender diversity and the
Parker Review on ethnic diversity.

Objectives and Progress
Supported by the Nomination Committee, the Board will:

Consider alt aspects of diversity, including gender and
ethnicity, when reviewing the composition and balance
of the Board and when conducting the annual Board
effectivenass review.

Only engage executive search firms who have signed
up to the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender
diversity and best practice.

Encourage and monitor the development of internal
high calibre employees including considering ail
aspects of diversity to help support the internal talent
pipeline for succession at both Board and senior
management level.

Ensure that candidate lists for Non-Executive Director
positions are compiled by drawing from a broad and
diverse range of candidates, including those who may
not have previous listed company experience but who
possess suitable skills or qualities.

Given that the Board was only recently constituted just
prior to IPQ in November 2021, no such activities have yet
taken place. The Committee will provide a more fulsome
report next year.

Gender balance of senior management and direct reports
The gender balance of the Board is shown on page 67 The
gender balance of the Leadership Team is included in the
Sustainability section of the Strategic Repaort on page 35.
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Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present the
inaugural report of the Audit and
Risk Committee {"Committee”)
for the year ended 3 April 2022
(the "year"). The principal focus
of the Committee since IPO has
been on supporting and guiding
the Executive Directors as they
navigate the challenges of
becoming a listed company.

In addition to adapting to life

as a premium-listed plc. the
Company has dealt with wider
macroeconomic uncertainty
arising from the lasting impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic. the
Russian invasion of Ukraine,
suppty chain disruption and

high levels of inflation. The
Committee has maintained its
focus on driving improvements in
the finance function and internal
cantrots, where significant
improvements have been made.
as well as focussing on these
MaAacroeconomic issues.

Key responsibilities

The Committees key
responsibilities. as outtined in its
terms of reference, are.

Monitoring the integrity of
the financial statements of
the Company and any formal
announcements relating to
financial performance.

Reviewing the adequacy

and effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial
reporting and internal control
policies and systems,

- Qverseeing the Company's
arrangements for its
people to raise concerns. in
confidence. about possible
wrongdoing in financial
reporting or other matters.

- Reviewing the Company's
procedures for detecting
fraud and preventing bribery
and money laundering,

Overseeing the effectiveness
and performance of the
external Auditor and making
recommendations to the
Board regarding their
appointment or removat.

+ Advising the Board on the
Company's overall risk
appetite. tolerance and
strategy. and principal and
emerging risks.

Monitoring and reviewing
the effectiveness of the
Company's risk management
framework.

The Committee’s terms of
reference are available on the
Company's corporate website.

How the Audit and Risk
Committee discharges
responsibilities

The Committee has unrestricted
access to Company documents
and information as well as to
employees of the Company

and the external Auditor,

The Committee Chair meets
regularly with the Chief Financial
Officer. Members of the
Committee may. in pursuit of
their duties. take independent
financial advice on any matter,
at the Company's expense.

The Committee Chair reports
the outcome of Audit and Risk
Committee meetings to the
Board

The Committee meets at least
three times a year and has an
agenda linked to the events in
the Groups financial calendar.
The Committee met twice
during the remainder of financial
year following the IPO on 12
November 2021,



Significant items
considered during

the year

Internal controls
Management provided an
update on internal controls
at each Committee meeting,
which allowed the Committee
to interrogate and provide
input on improvements in the
following areas:

Purchase to pay process
Sales to cash process
Month-end close
Segregation of duties

Cash forecasting and
reporting

Capital Expenditure controls
Policy updates

Budgeting and forecasting
Financial reporting and VAT

Finance team

The Committee supported
martagement in the development
of the Company’s Finance
function into an appropriately
resourced team that is suitably
structured for the needs of a
premium-listed campany. At

the request of the Committee.
management provided a detailed
update on this process at each
Committee meeting,

Going concern and viability
assessment

In preparation for the pubtication
of the Company's FY22 financial
statements, the Committee
conducted a comprehensive
review of the going concern
position. Management prepared
a paper setting out the
methodology and assumptions
used for the assessment of
going concern, summarising
projected performance over

a three-year forecast period.
together with sensitivity analysis.
The Committee discussed the
assumptions and results in detail,
including:

The assumptions driving the
base case projections

Results of the severe but
plausible downside scenarios

The results of the stress tests
undertaken

The vartability and fixed
nature of the cost base

The profile of projected cash
flows under each scenaric
and stress test, and any areas
where cash headroom may
become tighter

The available finance facilities
and the impact of the
scenarios and stress tests an
meeting covenant tests

The mitigations available to
managemeant should they
be needed

Foltowing this detailed review.
the Committee confirmed

to the Board that they were
satisfied that the Group should
adopt the going concern basis

of accounting in preparing the
financial information for the

year ended 3 April 2022 and

that there was a reasonable
expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and will be
able to continue in operation

and meet its Liabilities as they fall
due over the viability assessment
period.
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Financial statements and
significant financial judgements
The Committee considered. in
particular, the following matters.
as identified by the Auditor, in
relation to the Groups half-year
and full-year financial statements:

Accounting policies,
estimates and judgements.
and the transition te IFRS
Ongoing impact of Covid-18
and widespread inflation

Russian invasion of Ukraine
Supply chain, in particular,
reliance on supply from China
and global supply chain
disruption

Business support systems
Disaster recovery

Climate change

Economic volatility resulting
from Covid-19, inflation, and the
Russian war on Ukraine

The Committee supported
management in its response

to an extremely testing
macroeconomic environment
whereby consumer behaviour
patterns became increasingly
aifficult to predict and
understand. The Committee
offered guidance and

advice on dealing with such
unprecedented uncertainty in
financial and practical terms.
including the associated issues
of inventory control.
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Internal controls

The Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Company's internal
financial controls and internal
control management systems
and the Board is ultimately
responsible for establishing
procedures to oversee the
internal control framework.

The Committee received
updates on improvements to the
Company's internal controls at
each of its meetings and has. on
behalf of the Board, cansidered
the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and risk
management processes in place
during the year.

Risk management
systems

The Board is responsible for

the Groups risk management
framework and the Committee
has been delegated
responsibility for reviewing the
overall process of assessing
business risks and managing the
impact on the Group. The Board
retains overall responsibility

for the level of risk the Group is
willing to take and for allocating
sufficient resource to the
management of business risk.

The Leadership Team reviews
the Company risk register
regularly and reports any
proposed changes to the
Committee and the Board.

As part of the angoing
assessment of the business'
principal risks and uncertainties.
the Cormmittee has considered
several factors including the
macroeconomic landscape.
supply chain disruption, climate
change as well as cyber and
technology risks.
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The principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group and
their mitigation are included

on pages 47 to 57. The
crystallisation of these risks has
been considered in the Viability
Statement on pages 58 to 61
and going concern assessment
on page 60C.

Annual Report and
Accounts and results
announcements

During the period. the Committee
formally reviewed draft hatf and
full year results announcements
and the Annua! Report and
Accounts. These reviews
considered:

The accounting principles.
policies and practices
adopted in the Groups
financial statements and
proposed changes to them

+ Significant accounting issues
and areas of judgement and
complexity
The integrity of the financial
and non-financial information

The Committee was satisfied
with managements presentation
of the FY22 half and full year
results and announcements and
the Annual Report and Accounts.

The Externat Auditor cenfirmead
to management that they
were not aware of any material
unadjusted misstaternents
during the course of their audit.

The Committee has reviewed
the Annual Report and Financial
Statements and is satisfied that
taken as a whole they are fair.
balanced and understandable
and provide shareholders with
the necessary information to
assess the Groups position and
performance, business model
and strategy and should be
recomimended to the Board.

Audit and Risk Committee Report CONTINUED

External auditor

The Committee oversees the
Groups relationship with the
external auditor and makes
recommendations to the

Board concerning the auditor's
appointment. re-appointment
and remuneration. Mazars LLLP
was appeinted as the Group's
Auditor during 2021 prior to
the IPO and their first audit

of the Group is in respect of
these financial statements for
the year ended 3 April 2022.
Charlene Lancaster is the Audit
Partner. The Committee intends
to comply fully with the FRC
Guidance on External auditors
and carry out an audit tender
at least every ten years and
mandatory rotation at least every
20 years.

The Committee considers at
least annually the independence
and objectivity of the Auditor,
taking intc consideration the
relevant UK professional and
regulatory requirements. In
March 2022 the Committee
reviewed a statement from

the Auditor detailing its
independence policies and
safeguards and confirming its
independence. Following this
review. the Committee agreed
that the Auditor is independent.

The Committee has considered
and approved the terms of
engagement and fees of the
Auditor in respect of the audit of
the accounts for the year ended
3 April 2022, Audit fees payable
by the Group to Mazars LLP
during the year totalled £145k.
There were no contingent fee
arrangements, Mazars LLP were
appointed to carry out certain
Agreed-Upon Procedures of
the Group’s financial information
for the 28-week period ended
17 October 2021, The provision



of an Agreed-Upon Procedures
review is a permissible audit-
refated service under the FRC's
Ethical Standard 2019. The fee
for the Agreed-Upon Procedures
review was significantly below
the 70% cap mandated by the
FRC's Ethical Standard. The ratic
of non-audit fees to audit fees for
the year was 0.1:1.

The Committee has approved
a non-audit services palicy and
confirms that the work carried
cut by the Auditor to date has
been in accordance with that
policy.

To fulfil its responsibility
regarding the effectiveness

of the external auditor and
oversight of the audit process,
principat procedures carried out
by the Committee include:

Review of the relevant skills
and experience of the audit
partner and team

Review of the Auditor's
planning report detailing
scope of the audit, materiality
and identification of areas of
audit risk

Consideration of formal
reports from the Auditor
about the audit process.
issues which arose during
the audit and their resolution.
key accounting issues and
judgements

Consideration of
recommendations made

by the Auditor in their
management letters and the
adequacy of managements
response.

Based upon its reviews the
Committee has recommended
the reappointment of Mazars LLP,
as external auditor, to the Board.

Internal audit

During the year. the Group

did not have an internal audit
function as it had been agreed
that the Group's size and
activities were such that internal
assurance was achievable
through other means. including
the close involvernent of the
Executive Directors in the day

te day running of the Group and
regular reviews by management
of detailed management
information.

The Committee has concluded
that regular reporting from and
discussions with management
remain an appropriate means
of obtaining assurance as to
the effectiveness of the Group's
internal controls. given the size

and complexity of the Group. and

that a permanent internal audit

function is therefore not required

at this time. The Committee
will review this position at least
annually

Annual evaluation

Given that the Board is so

newly constituted, no formal
effectiveness review of the
Board and its Committees has
yet taken place. Over the next 12
months. the Company intends to
conduct an internally-facilitated

evaluation of the performance of

the Board, as part of which the
performance of the Committee

will also be assessed. | will report

on the outcome of the review
in my report to shareholders
next year,
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Priorities for FY23

During the forthcoming year.
the Committee will continue
to support and challenge
management through the
evolution of the Group's internal
controls framework, as well
as ensuring that the new risk
management framework is
further embedded within

the Group, including to bring
increased rigour to the review
of the Company's risks and risk
appetite,

Gildan Cavies
Audit and Risk Committee Chair

4 August 2022
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Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board and its
Remuneration Committee, |

am pleased to present our first
Directors' Remuneration Report
which, in line with UK reporting
regulations. is divided into three
sections:

This annual statement, which
summarises the work of the
Committee and our approach
to remuneration

The directors remuneration
policy, which outlines our
approach to remuneration
and the parameters within
which we willimplement our
pay arrangements. and how
this links to our strategy

The annuat report on
remuneration. which sets
out the remuneration
arrangements and incentive
outcomes for FY22, and
how the Cormmittee intends
to implement the new
remuneration policy in the
FY23 financial year

As this is the first financial
year since our admission on
12 November 2021, we will
present two remuneration
related resolutions at our
forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

A binding vote on the
directors’ remuneration poticy

An advisory vote on the
annual statement and
the annual report on
remuneration

| have summarised our approach
on these below and further
details can be found in the
Remuneration Repaort. | hape
you find this report and our
Rermmuneration Policy clear and
that you will give your support
when voting at our AGM.

Context of remuneration
On 12 November 2021, the
Company was admitted to the
premium listing segment of
the Official List of the Financial
Conduct Authority and to
trading on the London Stock
Exchange's Main Market for
listed securities. It became a
constituent of the FTSE Al-Share
on 12 November 2021

With effect from the IPO, new
remuneration arrangements
were introduced for the
Executive Directors which
broadly align to the market

and comply with all material
elements of good practice

and are the Group's forward
looking executive renmuneration
arrangements. It is these
arrangements on which approval
for the Policy is being sought at
the AGM.

Remuneration for FY22
Provisional targets for the Annual
8onus Plan and the PSP were
prepared, prior to the Company’s
three year plan being finalised
following the IPO. Once this
updated plan had been approved
by the Board, the respective
targets were confirmed. This
one-off process for the first set of
incentives following IPC ensured
that the finalised targets were
fair. relevant and motivating. In
the future the Committee intends
to confirm Annal Bonus targets

at the beginning of the financial
year and PSP targets at the date
of grant.

For the financial year the Group
delivered total revenue of
£69.2m (+29.5% year-on-year
growth) and underlying profit
pefore tax of £9.5m (FY21: £8 3m).

Despite this performance,
against the stretching targets set,
the outturn for underlying profit
before tax is below the level of
performance required under the



Annual Bonus Plan and therefore
there is no bonus being awarded
to the Executive Directors in
respect of FY22, Further details
of performance against the
relevant targets can be found on
pages 93 to 94 of this report.

There were no lang-term
incentives vesting in relation to
Y22 performance, As cutlined
in the IPO Prospectus. Steve
Sanders held options that were
either exercised or released
immediately prior to Admission,

No Committee discretion has
been applied to remuneration
cutcomes.

Directors’ Remuneration
Policy

In the lead up to admission.

the proposed Diractors'
Remuneration Policy was
considered carefully to

ensure that, after admission. it
incentivises and rewards long-
term. sustainable growth of the
Company. complies with the UK
Corporate Governance Code
and is in line with market best
practice and the guidelines of
UK institutional shareholders
and advisory bodies. The policy
is designed to provide market
competitive remuneration for
the achievement of stretching
targets. The incentives are
intended to reward for achieving
the long-term business strategy,
with a significant proportion
payable in shares, which must be
hetd long term.

Full details of the Remuneration
Policy are set out on pages
82to 9l

Implementation of

the Remuneration

Policy for FY23

The Remuneration Committee
intends to cperate the
Remuneration Policy for FY23 as
follows:

Base salaries

Salaries on admission were set at
£300.000 for the CEQC, £200.000
for the COO and £250,C000 for
the CFO and these will remain
unchanged for FY23.

Pensions/benefits

A defined contribution/salary
supplement of 3% of salary
will boe offered to the current
Executive Directors, together
with a standard suite of other
benefits.

Annual bonus

For FY23. the maximum annual
bonus is 100% of salary and
payments will be based on
30% underlying profit before
tax performance, 20% revenue
target. 20% free cash flow 15%
colleague engagement and 15%
achieving ESG targets. 25% of
any bonus will be deferred into
shares for two years.

Long-term incentives

On 12 November 2021, the
Executive Directors were granted
the first performance share
awards under the Performance
Share Plan (PSP). A further
award is expected to be made
inJuty 2022. Award levels will

be set at 100% cf salary for the
Executive Directors. Performance
targets will be based on

£P5 performance over the
performance period,

As outlined in the IPO
Prospectus, awards were made
under the IPO Employee Share
Plan following Admission and no
further awards are to be made
under this ptan,

The Committee believes that
the above approach takes due
account of market and best
practice and, importantly. alse
reflects and supports ProCook
Group's strategy and promotes
the Company's tong-term
SUCCEss.
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Wider ProCook Team

The Group's employees are
critical to the development of the
business and the Remuneration
Committee takes an active
interest in the wider employee
base. The Committee is made
aware of pay and employment
conditions throughout the Group
and is mindful of this when
making decisions on executive
pay. it alsois responsible

far reviewing wider all-
employee pay.

An ESP Award was granted o
all employees of the Group who
were employed by the Group
as at 31 March 2021 These ESP
Awards are intended to reward
the wider employee group

for their contribution to the
Company and motivate them
going forwards. The number

of shares subject to awards
received was dependent on
salary and length of tenure.

Participation in the Company's
SAYE Scheme is offered to all
employeeas and the first offer was
launched in November 2021 with
the awards granted in January
2022, 143 colleagues took up

the offer, which was regarded

as very encouraging and when
combined with the participation
under the [PC Employee

Share Plan means that a very
substantial proportion of the
workforce have a direct interest
in the share price performance of
the Company. The Group intends
to consider offering subsequent
SAYE grants annually.

On behalf of the Committee
thank you for reading this report
and we look forward to receiving
your support at the forthcoming
AGM in relation to the pay-
related resolutions.

Py il WTa ., -
(PR SO s EATEN 4

Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

4 August 2022
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This section sets out the Company's first Directors' Remuneration Policy which has
been prepared in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, as amended in 2013, 2018 and
2019, Our new Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be put to a binding shareholder
vote at our 2022 Annual General Meeting and will take formal effect from that date,
subject to shareholder approval. The policy will formally apply for three years unless a
new policy is presented to shareholders before then. Following approval, all payments
to directors will be consistent with the approved policy. The Policy, as set out in this
section, is consistent with the information provided in the IPO prospectus.

The Committee has ensured that the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and practices are consistent with the
six factors set out in Provision 40 of the Corporate Governance Code:

Clarity

Our Directors' Remuneration
Policy is well understood by

our senior executive team and

is clearly articulated to our
shareholders and representative
bodies.

Simplicity

The Committee is mindful of the
need to avoid overly complex
remuneration structures which
can be misunderstood and
deliver unintended outcomes.
Therefore, a key objective of the
Committee is to ensure that our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy
and practices are straightforward
to communicate and operate.
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Risk

Qur Directors Remuneration
Policy has been designed to
ensure that inappropriate risk-
taking is discouraged and will not
be rewarded via (i) the balanced
use of both annualincentives
and long-term incentives which
employ a blend of targets, {ii)

the significant role played by
shares in our incentive plans
(together with bonus deferral
and shareholding guidelines) and
(iiy malus/ clawback provisions
within atl our incentive plans.

Predictability

Our incentive plans are subject
to individual caps, with our share
plans also subject to standard
dilution limits. The use of shares
within our incentive plans results
in actual pay receved being
highty aligned to the experience
of our shareholders,

Proportionality

There is a clear link between
individual awards, delivery of
strategy and cur long-term
performance. In addition, the
significant role played by
variable pay. together with the
composition of the Executive
Directors' service contracts.
ensures that poor performance is
not rewarded.

Alignment to culture

Qur executive pay policies are
fully aligned to the Company's
culture through the use of
metrics in both the annual
bonus and PSP that measure
how we perform against

key aspects of our strategy.
which has the objective of
delivering sustainable growth in
profitability.
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The following table summarises the key aspects of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy:

Evacutive Mhrartnrg

Purpose and

link to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures

Base salaries will be reviewed esach year  While there is no prescribed n/a
by the Committee. maximum salary or increase,

it is anticipated that salary
increases will normally be in

line with increases to the wider
workforce salaries. Howsaver, in
certain circumstances tincluding,
but not limited to, changes in
role and respensibilities. market
levels. individual and Company
performance). the Committee
may make larger salary increases
to ensure they are market
competitive. The rationale for any
such increase will be disclosed

in the relevant Annual Report on
Remuneration

The Committee does not strictly
follow data but uses market data for
similar roles in comparable companics
as a reference point in considering.

in its judgement. the appropriate

level of salary having regard to other
relevant factors inctuding corporate
and individual performance and any
changes in an individuals role and
responsibilities,

Executive directers are entitled to As it is not possible to calculate n/a
benefits. including life assurance. in advance the cost of all
benefits, a maximum 15 not pre-

Executive directors will be eligible for determined.

any other benefits which are introduced

for the wider workforce an broadly The maximum level of

similar terms, and for other benefits that  participation in all-employee
might be provided based on individual share plans is subject to the
circumstances, if the Committee limits imposed by the relevant
decides it 1s appropriate tax authority.

For external and internal appointments
ar relocations, the Company may

Ray certain retlocation or incidental
axpanses as appropriate (for up to two
years from recruitment}

Any reasonable business-related
axpanses can be remmbursed (and any
related tax met if determined to be a
taxable benefit)

Executive directors can also participate
in all-employee share plans on the
same basis as cther employees

Executive Directors can recave a The maximum defined n/a

Contribution to a pension arrangement contribution or cash allowance

Gr a cash payment in lieu. in lieu of pension s imited Lo the
contribution tevel available to
most other emplaoyees, which is
currently 3% of base salary.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy conrnues

Purpose and
link to strategy

Gperation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

Awards are based on performance.
typically measured over one year.

Pay-out levels are determined by the

| Committee after the year end based on

performance against pre-set targets.

Bonus is normally paid in cash, except
not less than 25% of any bonus which

is deferred inta an award under the
Deferred Banus Plan ('DBP), typically for
a two-year period. The lavel of deferral
and period for deferral may change in
relation to future financial years.

Dividend equivalents may accrue on
deferred shares.

The vesting of deferred shares is not
subject to any additional performance
conditions

Provisions are included which enable
the Committee (in respect of both

the cash and the deferred elements
of honuses) to recover or withhold
value in the event of certain defined
circumstances {that is in cases of
misconduct. material misstatement of
financial results, error in calculation
of a bonus payment and reputational
damage).

The normal maximum level of
Annual Bonus Plan cutcomes is
1002 of base salary per annum,

The nermal maximum will only
be exceeded in exceptional
circumstances and is subject to
an overall limit of 200% of salary
in a financial year.

Targets are set annually with
rmeasures linked to our strategy
and aligned with key financial.
strategic and. or individual
targets.

The performance measures for
F¥23 are set cut on page 97, The
performance measures applied
may be financial or non-financial,
corporate. divisional or individual,
and in such proportions as

the Committee considers
appropriate.

A graduated scale of targets is
set for each measure, with no
pay-aut for performance below
the threshold level,

The Committee has the
discretion to amend the pay-cut
should any formulaic ocutcome
not reftect its assessment of
overall business performance.

Awards witl be in the form of nil-cost
share options,

Awards will be granted with vesting
dependent on the achievement of
performance conditions set by the
Committee, with performance normally
measured over at least three years.

Awards will be subject to a two-year
holding period following the end of
the performance term, with options
typically not being exercisable by
participants until the end of the holding
period.

Dividend equivalents may accrue on
awards, to the extent they vest,

The PSP includes provisions which
enable the Committee to recover or
withhold value in the svent of certain
defined circumstances (that is, in cases

i of misconduct, material misstatement of

financial results, error in calculation of a

i vesting level and reputaticnal damage),

The normal maximum PSP award
is 1007% of salary in a financial
year. The normal maximum will
aonly be exceeded In exceptional
circumstances and is subject to
an overall imit of 200% of salary
in a financial year,

PSP performance measures may
include financial and shareholder
value metrics as well as strategic.
nan-financial measures

The performance measures for
FY23 are set out on page 97. The
Committee retains the discretion
to set alternative measures and
weightings for awards aver the
life of the policy.

Targets are set and assessed by
the Committee on its discretion.

A maximum of 257 of any
element vests far achieving the
threshold target, with 100% for
maximum performance,

The Committee has the
discretion to amend the vesting
level should any farmulaic
outcome not reflect its
assessment of overall business
performance.

ProCook Group plc



Purpose and
link to strategy

Purpose and
link to strategy

Operation

Exacutive Directors are required to

retain all shares that vest, net of any tax

Maximurm opportunity
200% of base salary for all
Executive Directors.

liability, under the PSP and DBP awards

until the guideline is met. Any share
plan awards that have vested but are
subject to a holding pericd and any

shares subject to awards under the DBP

will be credited for the purpose of the
guidelines (discounted for anticipated
tax tiabilities).

Executive Directors will be required to

maintain a shareholding in the Company

for a two-year period after stepping
down from that position, being the full
value of the shareholding reguirement
or the Executive Director's actual
relevant sharehelding at leaving this
position if lower,
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Performance measures

n/a

Operation

These are all-employee share plans
established under HMRC tax-
advantaged regimes and follow the
usual form for such plans.

Executive Directors will be able to

The maximum participaticn
levels for all-employee share
plans will be the limits for such
plans contained in their rutes
which are set by HMRC from
time te time.

participate in all-employee share plans

on the same terms as other Group
employees

The fees paid to the Chair and
Nan-executive Directors aim to be
competitive with other fully listed

companies of equivalent size and

complexity.

The fees payable to the Non-
aexecutive Directors are determined
by the Board. with the Chair's fees
determined by the Committee

The Chair and Non-executive
Directors witl not participate
in any cash or share incentive
arrangements.

The Company reserves the right

te provide benefits {including
travel and office support) to the
Chair and Non-executive Directors
where appropriate. Should any
assessment to tax be made on
such reimbursement. the Company
reserves the ability to settle such
liability on behalf of the Chair or
Non-Executive Birector.

Maximum opportunity

The aggregate fees (and any
benefits) of the Chair and Non-
exacutive Directors will not
exceed the limit from time to time
prescribed within the Company's
Articles of Association,

If the Chair and/or Non-axecutive
Directors devote special atlention
to the business of the Comgany. or
otherwise perform services which
in the opinion of the Directors are
outside the scope of the ordinary
duties of a Director, they may be
paid such additional remuneration
as the Directors or any Committee
authorised by the Directors may
determine.
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Consistent with normat practice.
such awards will not be subject
to performance conditions,

Performance measures

n/a
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy conminueo

Notes to the policy table
lL.egacy arrangements

In approving this remuneration policy. the
Company has the authority to honour any
previous commitments entered into with
current or former directors {such as the
payment of a pension or the unwinding
of legacy share schemas or historic share
awards! that remain outstanding.

As set out in the Prospectus, the Company
has various legacy IPO arrangements. some
of which remain subject to time vesting
post-IPQ. Incentive awards granted prior to
the introduction of this policy will continue
to operate in line with the terms agreed at
grant. including the IPO Employee Share
Plan awards granted to the Executive
Directors that are outlined on page 95.

Summary of decision-making process
In determining the Directors Remuneration
Policy. the Committae followed a robust
process which included discussions on

the content of the Policy at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year The
Committee considered the input from
management and independent advisors
(see page 93 for further detail), as well as
considering views af sharehoiders and proxy
advisory services

Explanation of perfarmance measures
Annual bonus performance measures are
selected annually to align with the Groups
KPIs and strategic imperatives and the
interests of our shareholders and other
stakeholders. Financial measures will
normally influence most of the bonus with
any remainder based on key strategic and/
or personal objectives designed to ensure
executive directors are incentivised across
a range of objectives. Target performance is
typically set in line with the year's business
plan. with the threshold to stretch targets
set around the plan. based on a sliding scale
that reflects relevant commercial factars.
Only modest rewards are available at
threshold performance {evels, with rewards
at stretch requiring material outperformance
of the business plan, Detaits of the specific
measures used for the annual bonus are set
out in the annual repert on remuneration.

PSP performance measures will be selected
to: provide a robust and transparent basis on
which to measure the Group's performance:
link remuneration outcomes to delivery of
the business strategy over the longer term.
and provide strong alignment between
senior management and shareholders. The
policy provides for Cornmittee discretion

to atter the PSP measures and weightings
from year to year. This is to ensure that it
can continue to measure performance
appropriatety, if the Group's strategic
ambitions evolve over the life of the policy.
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When setting performance targets for the
bonus and PSP, the Committee will take nto
account a number of different factors. These
may include the Group's business plans and
strategy. external forecasts and the wider
eccnomic environment.

The Committee retains the discretion to
amend the bonus pay-out and the PSP
vesting levelif any formulaic outcome
does not reflect its assessment of overall
business performance over the relevant
period.

Fiexibility. discretion and judgement
The Remuneration Committee operates
the annual benus, DBP and PSP according
to the rulas of each respective plan which.
consistent with market practice include
discretion in a number of respects to the
operation of each plan. Discretiens include
but are not limited to:

Wha participates in the plan. the
quantum of an award and./or payment,
and the timing of awards and-/or
payments

Whether dividend equivalents will apply
to the awards

Determining the extent of vesting

Treatment of awards and/or payments
on a change of controt or restructuring
of the Group

Whether an executive diracter or
senior manager is a geod/bad leaver
for incentive plan purposes and if the
propoction of awards that vest do so
at the time of leaving or at the normal
vesting date(s)

How and whether an award may be
adjusted in certain circumstances (for
example, for a rights issue. a corporate
restructuring or special dividends)

What the weighting. measures and
targets should be for the annual bonus
plan and PSP awards from year to year

The ability, within the policy to adjust
targets and/or set different measures
or weightings for the applicable annual
bonus plan and PSP awards. if the
Committee determines that the original
conditions are no lenger appropriate or
do not fulfil their initial purpose. Such
changes would be explainad in the
subsequent directors remuneration
report and, if appropriate. be discussed
with our major shareholders

The ability to override formulaic
outcomes in line with policy

All assessments of performance are
ultimately subject to the Committees
judgement. Any discretion exercised, and
the rationale. wilt be disclosed in the annual
remuneration report

The Committee may make minor
amendments to the policy set out above
(for regulatory. exchange control. tax or
administrative purposes or to take account
of a change in legislation) without obtaining
shareholder approval for that amendment

Stating maximum amounts for the
remuneration policy

The DRR regulations and related investor
guidance encourages companies to
disclose a cap within which each element
of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will
operate. Where maximurm amounts for
elements of remuneration have been set
within the Directors Remuneration Policy.
these will operate simply as caps and are
not indicative of any aspiration.

Travel and hospitality

While the Committee does not consider it to
form part of benefits in the normal usage of
that term., it has been advised that corporate
hospitality (whether paid for by the
Company or another) and business travel for
Directors {and exceptionally their families)
may technically come within the applicable
rules and 50 the Committee expressly
reserves the right for the Committee to
authorise such activities within its agreed
policies,

Differences between the policy

on remuneration for Directors and
remuneration of other employees
While the appropriate benchmarks vary

by role, the Company seeks to apply the
philosophy behind this policy across the
Company as a whole. Where ProCock
Group's pay policy for Directors differs from
its pay policies for groups of employees.
this reflects the appropriate market rate
position and/or typical practice for the
relevant rales, The Company takes into
account pay levels, bonus oppartunity and
share awards applied across the Group as a
whole when setting the Executive Directors
Remuneration Policy.



Recruitment remuneration policy
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The Company's recruitment remuneration policy aims to give the Committee sufficient flexibility to secure the appointment
and promotion of high-calibre executives to strengthen the management team and secure the skill sets to deliver our

strategic aims.

In terms of the principles for setting a package for a new
Executive Director, the starting point for the Committee will
be to apply the general Policy for Executive Directors as set
out above and structure a package in accordance with that
policy. Any caps contained within the policy for fixed pay do
not apply to new rocruits. although the Committee would
not envisage exceeding these caps in practice.

The Annual Bonus Plan, DBP and PSP will operate (including
the maximum award levels) as detailed in the general Policy
in relation to any newly appointed Executive Director. For an
internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in
respect of the prior role may either continue on its original
terms or be adjusted to reflect the new appointment as
appropriate.

For external and internal appointments. the Committee
may agree that the Company will meet certain relocation
expenses as it considers appropriate.

For external candidates. it may be necessary to make
additional awards in connection with the recruitment to buy
out awards forfeited by the individual on leaving a previous
employet.

For the avoidance of deoubt, buy-out awards are not subject
to a formal cap. Any recruitment-related awards which are
not buy-outs will be subject to the limits for Annual Bonus
Ptan and PSP as stated in the general policy. Details of any
recruitment-related awards will be appropriately disclosed.

For any buy-outs the Company will net pay more than is. in
the view of the Committee, necessary and will in all cases
seek. in the first instance, to deliver any such awards under
the terms of the existing Annual Bonus Plan, DBP or PSP. It
may, however, be necessary in some cases to make buy-out
awards on terms that are more bespoke than the existing
Annual Bonus Plan, DBP or PSR,

Al buy-outs, whether under the Annual Bonus Plan, DBP.
PSP or otherwise, will take due account of the service
obligations and petrformance requirements for any
remuneration relinquished by the individual when leaving a
previous employer. The Committee will seek to the extent
possible, provide any buy-out award on a broadly like-for-
like basis.

A new Chair/Non-executive Director would be recruited on the terms explained above in respect of the main
policy for such Directors,

ProCook Group plc
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Service contracts

Executive Directors

The Committee’s policy is that each
Executive Direclor's service agreement
should be of indefinite duration, subject
to termination upon no more than six
months' notice by either party. The
service agreements of the Executive
Directors comply with that policy
Contracts contain provisions altowing
the Company to make payments in lieu
of notice (albeit not including bonus or
bhenefits! but do not contain change of
control provisions.

Name

Greg Hodder
David Stead
Gillian Davies
Luke Kingsnorth

The Committee reserves flexibility to
alter these principtes, if necessary,

to secure the recruitment of an
appropriate candidate and. if
appropriate, introduce a longer initial
notice period (of up to two years)
reducing over time,

The date of each Executive Director's
contract is:

Daniel O'Neill
19 October 2021

Steve Sanders
19 October 2021

Dan Walden
19 October 2021

Chair/Non-executive Directors

The Chair and each Non-executive
Director is engaged for an initial period
of three years. These appointments can
be renewed following the initiat three-
year term. These engagements can

be terminated by either party on three
months notice.

Neither the Chair nor any Non-
executive Directors can participate

in the Company’s incentive plans. are
not entitled to any pension benefits
and are not entitled to any paymentin
compensation for early termination of
their appointment beyond the three
months' notice referred to above.

Date of appointment Term

29 October 2021 3 years

29 Qctober 2021 3years

29 October 2021 3years

R 29Cctober2021 3 years

The Directors' service agreements and letters of appointment are available for shareholders to view from the Group Company
Secretary on request.




Termination/change of control
policy summary

Itis appropriate for the Committee to
consider treatments on a termination
having regard to atl of the relevant facts
and circumstances availabte at that

time. This policy applies both to any
negotiations linked to notice periods on
a termination and any treatmentis that

The Company is entitled to terminate
the Executive Directors employment

by payment of a cash sum in lieu of
notice equal to salary during what would
otherwise have been the notice period,
A payment in lieu of notice can, at the
Company's discretion. be paid as a lump
sum or in equal monthly instalments
over the notice period. There is a

the Committee may chcose to apply
under the discretions available to it
under the terms of the Annual Bonus
Plan. DBP and PSP,

If a leaver is deemaed to be a 'good leaver’; for

example, leaving through injury, ill-health, disability,

retirement, redundancy, sale of business or
otherwise at the discretion of the Committee

Incentives

mechanism in the service agreement
to recduce the instalments where

the Executive Director commences
alternative employment during the
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notice period. The Company may also
terminate the Executive Directors
employment with immediate sffect
and with no liability to make any
further payments in certain prescriced
circumstances (e.g. in the case of

a serious or repeated breach of the
Executive Directors' obligations).

The potential treatments for the various
incentive arrangements if there is a
termination of employment or a change
of control before the awards have vested
are summarised in the table below:

If a leaveris not

a ‘good leaver'

Change in control

Bonuses remain payable on the normal payment date and
will be determined on such basis as the Committee may
decide, which can include pre-rating for time Bonuses are
not subject to deferral under the DBPR

Annual bonus not

generally paid.

Payment I1s accelerated to the date

of the Change of Control. Committee
has discretion to determine the extent
to which performance targets are
achieved as at the Change of Control,
or can waive performance targets.
Bonuses are pro-rated for time unless
the Committee determines ctherwise
Bonuses are not subject to deferral
under the DBP.

Upon death awards become exercisable on the date of
death, Awards are not nermally subject to pro-rating unless
the Cemmittee determines otherwise.

For other ‘good leavers awards become exercisable on the
vesting date. unless the Committee exercises discration

to allow them to be exercisable from the cessation date.
Awards are not normally subject to pro-rating. unless the
Committae determines otherwise.

All awards will
normally lapse.

Awards vest in full.

Upon death, awards become exercisable on the date of
death. If the date of death 1s during the vesting period. the
Committee would need to determine the extent to which
the performance targets are achieved on such maodified
basis as it may consider appropriate and the Awards would
ke subject to pro-rating. unless the Commitiee determines
otherwisg, If the date of death 1s during the holding period.
the Awards are not normally subject to pro-rating. unless
the Comrittee determines otherwise

For other ‘good leavers during the vesting period. awards
become exercisable on the vesting date (subject to
performance}. unless the Committee exercises discration
to allew them to be exercisable from the cessation date
{in which case the Committee would need to determine
the extent to which the performance targets are achieved
an such modified basis as it may consider appropriate).
The Awards would be subject to pro-rating, unless the
Committee determines otherwise

For other ‘good leavers during the holding peried. awards

i become exercisable on the cessation date. The Awards are
not normally subject to pro-rating. unless the Committee
determines otherwise,

All awards

will normally
lapse. unless
the Committee
determines
ctherwise. in
which case the
Committee has

broad discretion

to determine th
extent to which
the Award can
be exercised

and the timing of

exarcise,

Awards become exercisable on the
Change of Control. If the Change

of Controlis during the vesting

period. the Committee would need
to determine the extent to which the
performance targets are achieved

on such modified basis as it may
consider appropriate and the Awards
would be subject to pro-rating.

e untess the Committee determines
otherwise. If the Change of Controlis
during the holding period. the Awards
are not normally subject to pre-rating.
unless the Committee determines
otherwise.

As per HMRC regulatiens,

As per HMRC

regulations.
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The Company has the power to enter
into settlement agreements with
Directors and to pay compensation to
settle potential tegal claims. In addition,
and consistent with market practice,

in the event of the termination of an
Executive Director, the Company may
make a contribution towards that
individual's legat fees and fees for
cutplacement services as part of a
negotiated settlement. Any such fees
will be disclosed as part of the detail
of termination arrangements. For the
avoidance of doubt. the policy does not
include an explicit cap on the cost of
termination payments.

External appointments

The Company's policy is to permit an
Executive Director to serve as a non-
executive director elsewhere when this
does not conflict with the individuals
duties to the Company, and where an
Executive Director takes such arole,
they will be entitled to retain any fees
which they earn from that appointment
{unless the Committee determines
otherwise),
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Statement of consideration
of employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group

Pay and employment conditions
generally in the Group are taken
inte account when setting Executive
Directors remuneration. The
Committee receives regular updates
on overall pay and conditions in the
Group, including (but not limited to)
changes in base pay and any staff
bonus pools in operation.

Although the Committee has not,

to date. formally consulted with
employees on matters of remuneration
policy, the Committee will ensure
there is appropriate liaison with the
People and ESG Director to discuss any
remuneration matters which should be
taken into account as part of its annuat
cycle. Employee engagement scores
and other internal surveys will be
considered as appropriate,

Statement of consideration

of shareholder views

When determining executives'
remuneration, the Committee takes
into account views of shareholders
and best practice guidelines issued by
institutional shareholder bodies. The
Committee is always open to feedback
from shareholders on remuneration
policy and arrangements. and commits
to undergoing shareholder consultation
in advance of any significant changes
to remuneration policy.

The Committee will continue to
monitor trends and developments in
corporate governance and market
practice to ensure that the structure
of the executive remuneration remains
appropriate.




Illustrations of application of remuneration policy
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The charts above aim to show how the remuneration policy for Executive Directors will be applied in FY23 using the

assumptions in the table below,

Minimum - Consists of base salary. benefits and pension.
Base salary is the salary to be paid with effect from 4 April 2022,
Estimated value of a full year's benefits.

Pension measured as the cash allowance in lieu of Company contributions at 3% of salary.

T e e e e e DOSESRlAYY L Benefits _.. Rension . TotalFixed

Daniel O'Neill - CEO £300.000 £5000 £9.000 £314.000

Steve Sanders - COO £200,000 £0 £6.000 £206,000

Dan Walden - CFC £250.000 £O £7500 £257500
Target + Annual bonus: consists of an assumed payment of 50% of maximum opportunity.

Leng-term incentives: consists of the threshold level of vesting (25% vesting) under the PSP,

Maximum Based on the maximum remuneration receivable {excluding share price appreciation and dividendsy:

Annual bonus: consists of maximum bonus of 100% of base salary.

Long-term incentives: consists of the maximum level of vesting under the PSP of 100% of base salary.

Maximum As per the maximum but with a 50% share price growth assumption for the PSP awards,

with Share
Price Growth

ProCook Group plc
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The Caommittee
The Remuneration Committee was established with effect from Admission. It is chaired by David Stead, and its other
members are Greg Hodder Gillian Davies and Luke Kingsnorth.

The Committee's principal responsibilities are to:
Recommend to the Board the over-arching principles, parameters and governance framework of the Groups
remuneration policy.
Determine, within that framework, individual remuneration and benefits packages of each of the chair. Executive Directors
and senior management; and

+  Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the Board and, where required. shareholders.

The Chief Executive Officer is invited to attend meetings of the Committee, except when his own remuneration is being

discussed, and the Chief Financial Officer and other executives attend meetings as required. Greg Hodder takes no part in any
discussions relating to his own remuneration.

The Committee met once during the period from IPO to the year end, with all members of the Committee present at these
meetings,

The Committee has formal terms of reference which can be viewed on the Corporate Governance section of the Company's
website (www.procookgroup.co.uk).

Key activities during the year

Qver the period since it was constituted. the Committee has carried out the following activities:
Approved the grant of awards on Admission under the ABP. PO Employee Share Plan and the PSP, and the issue of
invitations under the Save As You Earn Scheme after Admission

Approved the new Remuneration Policy and certain elements of its operation effective from admission. such as the base
salary levels and the first share incentive awards to be made shortly after admission, and

Considered the operation of the annual benus for FY22, reviewing the planned approach
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External adviser

FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (FIT). signatories to the Remuneration Consultants Groups Code of Conduct, were
appointed by the Committee following a competitive tender process and provide advice to the Committee on all matters
relating to remuneration. including best practice. FIT provided no other services to the Group and, accordingly, the Committee
was satisfied that the advice provided by FIT was objective and independent, FIT's fees in respect of FY22 were £3,815
{excluding VAT). FITs fees were charged on the basis of the firm's standard terms of business for advice provided.

Single total figure table (audited)

The remuneration for the Chalr, Executive and Non-executive Directors of the Company who performed qualifying services
during the financial year is detailed below. Although the Company was only incorporated on 14 October 2021, all figures are
provided on amounts earned by respective Directars of the Group during Lhe whole financial year, for transparency and ease
of comparison to future years, Incentives and other policies relavant to this section of the report refiect legacy policies rather
than the proposed Remuneration Policy to apply for FY23 remuneration, The Chair and Non-executive Directors received no
remuneration other than their annual fee.

For the year ended 3 April 2022;

Taxable Long-term Totalfixed Totalvariable Total

Salary/feas benefits* Pension Bonus incentives remuneration remuneration remuneration

Diraector o ... FEoOO £000 £CQO . EQQO £Q000 £000 £000 £0Q00
Daniel O'Neill 124 5 1 ¢ Q 129 o 129
Steve Sanders 170 0 1 & Q 171 o 171
Dan Walden? 184 o] 1 O 2507 185 250 435
Greg Hodder? 52 — — — - 52 — 52
David Stead* 24 — — — — 24 — 24
Gillian Davies? 22 — - — - 22 — 22
Luke Kingsnorth? 19 — — — — 19 — 19
Total B9 3 .3 .9 .. 260 802 20 B3

Notes

1 Taxable benefits comprse Lfe assurance and car allowance

2 Appainted 18 May 2021

3 Appointed 29 Octoner 2021

4 The CFO Free Share ES2 Award as outned in the IPO 2rospectus

The aggregate emoluments {being salary/fees, bonuses. benefits and pension allowances) of all Directors for
FY22 was £850.559.

Further information on the 2021/22 annual bonus {(audited)
In 2021/22. the annual bonus metrics retated to adjusted profit before tax.

More particularly. the adjusted profit before tax targets were as follows:

Pay-out
et . Threshold = Target =~ Maxdmum . Actual - (% of max)
Underlying Profit Before Tax! 10 11 12 9.5 0%

1 The targets were confirmed reflect ng an updated three year plan ollowing the IPO, which replaced the onginal target -ange of £12m 10 £15m In the future the
Committee intencs to set targets at the beginning of the financia. year This had ne impact on the pay-out.

This results in a total bonus pay-out of nil for the Executive Directors.

Share awards vesting in respect of FY22
There are no awards due ta vest based on performance to 3 Aprit 2022,
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Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests {audited)
The table below details for each Director, the total number of Directors' interests in shares as at 3 April 2022:

Vested but Shareholding Shareholding

Shares owned unexercised Unvested Unvested Unvested Guideline Guideline

Director outright! awards DBP Psp? ESP* (% of salary)? met>
Daniel O'Neill 37736902 - -— 206.896 — 200 Yes
Steve Sancdlers 791735 — _ 137931 1.064.530 200 Yes
Dan Walden - - — 344,827 862,068 200 No
Greq Hodder 24,137 — - — — — n/a
David Stead 34,482 . — — - — n/a
Gillian Davies 17,241 — - — — — n/a
L.uke Kingsnorth 10.344 - — — e — n/a

1 The beneficial sharehioldings set out above ‘nclude those hald by Directors and e respective connected persons The CEQ and COQ have also agraed Lo lock-
up arrangements relating to their ert.re beneficiat nolding of shares in the Company covering the 365 days following the date of Admission: further detals of these

lock-Lp arrargements are sel out 11 the Prospectus,
2 Performance-based share awards granted as nit cost options.
3 Options subject 1o continued service

4 Shareholding guidelines for Executive Directors are 200% of salary The value of the shares has been calculated using tne clasing ProCoo« Grodp ple share price
as at 3 April zczz, which was 122p Executive Directors will be reguired ta retain all shares that vest, net 0% any tax liability urder the DBP and PSP until the guidelne

is met

PSP awards granted in FY22

As outlined in the IPO Prospectus, the following awards were granted as nil-cost options under the PSP in FY22:

Basis of award (% Face value
Directqgrﬁw_ . ~ Date of grant salary) Share price’  Number of shares of awarg Exercise period
Daniel O'Neill 12/11/21 100% 145p 206,896 £300.000 Nov 26 - Noy 31
Steve Sanders 12711721 100% 145p 137,931 £200,000  Nov 26 - Nov 31
Dan Wald_(?_[l__/ ].2/11/21 200%¢ 145p _§44.827 £500.000 Nov 26 - Noym3_1__

1 Based on the IPQ offer price
2 Award reflectea the terms offered "o Dan Walden as part of his recruitment

The performance conditions. applying to the awards made in November 2021 relate to profit before tax (PBT). Mare specificatly:

Portion of award vesting

Above £44m
Between £36m and £44m
£36m

Below £36m .

Notes

100°%

Pro rata on straight-line between 25% and 100%

25%

1 Defined as the Company s profit pefare tax as derived from the corsolidated audited accounts of the Comoany excluding any nom-unaerlying items

2 The targets were set reflect ng an updated three year plan followng the IPO wich replaced the onginat target range of E40m to £50m The revised targets were derased
to be na less cnalterging in light of the Lpdated three year plan, than te targets which were or gnally set In tne future the Cormmittee iIntends to confirm the targets at the

date of grant
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As outlined in the IPO Prospectus, the following awards granted in the form of an option to acquire shares were made under

the IPO Employee Share Plan (1PO ESP) in FY22;

Director oo Pateofgrant Exerciseprice  Shareprice” = Numberofshares
Steve Sanders 12/11/21 Nit 145p 1.064,5303
Dan Walden 12/11/21 Nil 145p 172,413¢
Oan Walden o Alsel o 145p 145p 689.655%
Notes

The ESF awards do not have additional perforrmance conditions attached
Based on the IPD offar price

The C=0 Free Share ESP Award as outinad in the PO Prospectus

L
2
3 Granted to replace options over shares In ProCook Limited which were waived with effect from Admission
4
5 The C70 Share Purchase ESP Award as outlined n the IPO Prospectus

DBP awards granted in FY22
Neo DBP awards were granted during the year.

Outstanding share plan awards
Details of all outstanding share awards made to Executive Directors are set out below:

Face value
o Ofaward | Exercise period
£1.543.569 Nov 23 - Nov 31

£250000 Nov 23 - Nov 31

. £1.000000  Nov 23 - Nov 31

Awards

Exercise Awards  Awards exercised Interest at

price Interest at granted lapsed in inthe 3 April
Executive ... Awardtpe (o) Grantdate admission  intheyear theyear  year = = 2022 FExerciseperiod Notes
Daniel ONeill psp 0 12711721 - 206,896 — — 206 826 Nov 256 - Nov 31 1
Steve Sanders PSP O 12/11/21 — 137231 — — 137,931 Nov 26 - Nov 31 1
IPO ESP Q 12/11/21 — 1064530 — — 1064530 Nov 23 - Nov 31 2
Dan Walden PSP O 12711721 — 344827 — — 344,827 Nov 26 - Nov 31 1
PO ESP 0 12711721 - 172.413 — - 172,413 Nov 24 - Nov 31 2
... JPOESP M5 l2/m/21 - 689655 - = 683655 Nov24-Novil 2

MNotas

1 See PSP Awards Granted in F¥22 sectior above
2 See IPOESP Awards Granted in FY22 section above,

During the year ended 3 Aprit 2022. the higheast mid-market price of the Company’'s shares was 162.5p and the lowest mid-

market price was 122p. At 3 April 2022 the share price was 122p.
The aggregate gains by all Directors during FY22 following Admission was Enil.

Payments to past directors (audited)
No payments to past directors were made during the year.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
No payments for loss of office were made during the year.

ProCook Group plc
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Performance graph and CEO remuneration table {(unaudited)

The following graph shows the Total Shareholder Return (“TSR™ performance of an investment of £100 in ProCook Group plcs
shares from its listing in November 2021 to 3 April 2022, compared with a £100 investment in the FTSE SmallCap Index over
the same period. The FTSE SmallCap Index was chosen as the Company is a member of the Index.

Tatal Shareholder Return Index
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Source Datastream {a Refiruti product)

The table below details certain elements of the CEOs remuneration over the same period as presented in the TSR Index graph.
No pricr-year comparison is included as this is the Company's first disclosure since listing on the London Stock Exchange.

Single figure of Long-term incentive
total remuneration Annual bonus pay-out vesting rates against
CEQ ) i e {eoco ____against maximum % maximum oppcrﬁl_.t_rlify %
2021 Daniel O'Neitl £129 % n/a

Annual change in remuneration of each director compared to employees (unaudited)
As ProCook Group ple only listed in Novermber 2021 there is no comparable increase to disclose for either the directors or the
average employee, A full disclosure will be presented in our next Annual Report on Remuneration for FY23,

CEO to employee pay ratio
The table below shows the CEQ to employee pay ratio.

Year . Method _ 2Sthpercentilepayratio Medianpay ratio ... JSthpercentile pay ratio

62:1 57:1 461

2022 OptionA L.

Notes to the CEQ 16 emoloyge pay ratio

1 Opton & which takes into consideration the full-time equivalen: basis of all employees and provices a reprasentative rasult of employee pay conditions across the
Company

2 The ratios shown are rapresentativa of the FTE 25th percentile median and 75th percentiie pay for UK employees within thre Sroup during FYa2 Ful yéar pay data for

the Fvaz financial year has been used to caltulats tne ratios

The pay for part-time employees has been grossed-up to one FTE employes

The Comm:ttee has rev ewed the employee data and believes the mediar pay ratio to be consisient wath the pay. reward and progression policies for the Company's

UK emplayees over the penod

The CEO's pay 1s based on the single figure of -emuneration Becalse a large portion of the CED's pay 15 var able, the pay ratio 1s heawvi'y dependen: on tre oucorgs
of vanable pay plans and 11 the case of long-term share-basea awards share price movements

FW)

W
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The total pay and benefits and the salary cemponent of total pay and benefits for the employee al each of the 25th
percentite, the median and the 75th percentile are shown below:

Satary £'000 Total pay and benefits £'000
Year o 23t percentile Median 7sthpercentile 25thpercentile _ Median __75thpercentile
Fv22 o828 .. £20375 £25.000 £2063 k22707 o E27ist

Relative importance of spend on pay (unaudited)
The table below details the spend on total employee pay in FY22 as detailed in Note 7 of the Financial Statements, compared
with distributions to shareholders by way of dividend, share buybacks or any other significant distributions or payments.

Fy22 Fy21
Total gross employee pay 13.7 10.8
Dividends/share buybacks e e U o, S ==

Statement of shareholding voting
This is the first Policy and Directors Remuneration Report submitted to shareholders. Disclosure of the voting results at the
2022 AGM will be presented in the Annual Report on Remuneration for FY23.

Implementation of policy for FY23 (unaudited information)

Base salary

Base salaries will remain unchanged for FY23 and are as follows: £300.000 for Daniel O'Neill, £200.000 for Steve Sanders
and £250.000 for Dan Walden.

Pension

Maximum contribution rates for Executive Directors are 3% of salary. This rate is aligned with the general workforce rate.
Benefits

Details of the benefits received by Executive Directors are set out in the Single Total Figure Table on page 93. There is no
intenticn to introduce additional benefits in FY23,

Annual bonus

The annual bonus opportunity for FY23 will be structured in a broadly similar manner to FY22. The maximum bonus will
be 100% of salary and will be payable based on performance against financial targets for 70% of the award (revenue,
underlying profit before tax and adjusted cashflow) with 30% of the award being based on other strategic targets (Colleague
engagement and ESG).

These targets will be set in light of internal and external forecasts and witl require significant outperformance to generate
higher levels of pay-out.

Given the competitive nature of the Company's sector. the specific performance targets for FY23 are considered to be
commercially sensitive and, accordingly. are not disclosed at this time. although the targets will be disclosed in next year's
report in relation to the bonus outturn.

Long-term incentives
Awards will be made under the PSP in 2022 to the Executive Directors will be over shares worth a maximum of 100% of salary.

Awards will be structured in a similar manner to the awards made in 2021 and awards will be made which will vest subject to
the fotlowing EPS targets:

Adjusted BPS for FY25 financialyear .. . .. ... .. .. . ... .. .. . .  Portionofawardyesting
Above 73p 100%
Between 6p and 7.3p Pro rata on straight-line between 25% and 100%
6p 25%

Chair and Non-executive Directors’ fees
The fees of the Chair and Non-executive Directors will remain unchanged from FY22 levels.
Greg Hodder receives a fee of £120.000 p.a. as Chair,

The Non-executive Directors each receive a fee of £45000 p.a.. with an additional fee of £5.000 p.a. for each of the Chair of
the Audit and Risk Committee and Chair of the Remuneration Committee and an additional fee of £5.000 p.a. for the Senior
Independent Director,
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Directors’ Report

This report contains the additional information the Directors are required to include in
the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the

Listing Rules.

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4R
The information required to be disclosed under Listing Rule 9.8.4R, where applicable to the Company. can
be found in this Annual Report and Accounts at the references provided below:

Listing Rule Requirement

Annual Report Location

Interest capitalised

Publication of unaudited financial information

Details of long-term incentive schemes

Waiver of emoluments by a Director

Waiver of future emoluments by a Director

Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash

Non-pre-emptive issues of equity for cash by a major subsidiary

Parent participation in a placing by a listed subsidiary

Contracts of significance

Provision of services by a controlling shareholder

Dividend waivers

Agreements with controlling shareholders

Not applicable
Not applicable
Pages 93 to 95
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Pages 101 to 102
Not applicable
Pages 101 to 102

Results and dividends

The Company's underlying profit
after tax for the year ended

3 April 2022 was £7.6m: details
are shown in the Consolidated
income Statement on page 114.
The Directors are recommending
a final dividend of 0.9p per share
for shareholder approval at the
2022 AGM.

Directors

The Directors who held office
during the year and up to the
date of the signing of this
report are:

Greg Hodder

lappointed 29 October 2021
Daniet O'Neill

(appointed 19 October 2021)
Steve Sanders

{appointed 19 October 2021}
Dan Walden

tappointed 19 October 2021)
Gillian Davies

lappointed 29 October 2021}
David Stead

(appeinted 22 Octoher 2021
L.uke Kingsnorth

lappointed 29 October 2021)

ProCook Group plc

Biographical details of the
Directors appear on pages 66 to
67. Information on the Directors’
remuneration. employee share
schemes and service contracts
are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Policy on pages
82 to 91.

Appointment and
replacement of Directors
The rules about the appointment
and replacement of Directors
are contained in the Company’s
articles of association ("Articles™
They provide that the Directors
may be appointed by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders

or by the Board, Directors
appointed by the Board may
cnly hold office until the next
AGM of the Company and then
shall be eligibte for election. The
Company may remaove a Director
by ordinary resolution where
special notice has been given
and the necessary statutory
procedures are complied with, In
line with best practice corporate
governance, all Directors will
seek re-election at the

2022 AGM.

Powers of Directors

The general powers of the
Directors are set out in article
128 of the (Articles). This article
provides that the business of the
Company shall be managed by
the Directors, who may exercise
all the powers of the Company.
subject to any limitations
imposed by applicable
legislation, the Articles and

any directions given by special
resolution of the shareholders of
the Company.

Compensation for loss
of office

The Company does not

have arrangements with any
Director that would provide
compensation for loss of office
or employment resulting from a
takeover.



Future developments
In agcordance with s414C(11)
of the Companies Act 20086,
the Company has disclosed
information about future
developments within the
Strategic Report on pages
10to 61,

Additionally, this Directors’
Report, Strategic Repuorl

and the financial statements
contain certain forward-looking
statements with respect to the
financial condition, performance
and business of the Group. All
forward-looking statements
involve risk and uncertainty
because they relate to events
and circumstances that may

or may not occur in the future,
There are a number of factors
that could cause actuat
outcomes to differ from those
expressed or implied by any
forward-leoking statements.
Nothing in this Directors Report
and Strategic Report orin these
financial statements should be
construed as a profit forecast.

Corporate governance
Areport on corporate
governance and the Company's
compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code is
set out on page 65 and forms
part of this report by reference.
Post balance sheet events
On 20 April 2022 the Group
entered into a revolving credit
facility agreement for £10.0m
with an accordion agreement
for a fusther £5.0m at the Group's
request. subject to approval by
the lender. The facitity is subject
to normal commercial terms
and conditions. The term of the
agreement is to Aprit 2025, with
two one-year extension options
available to the Group.

Research and
development

The Directors consider that
investment in research and
development ("R&D") is critical to
enable the Company to maintain
its competitive advantage and
continue to grow its market
share. The Group employs
specialist resources in product
design and technolegy functions
at its head office in Gloucester.
who work closely with external
specialists, and overseas
factories. R&D expenditure for
the year was £0.6m. of which
£Q.2m was capitalised and
amortised.

Asset values

Property, plant and egquipment
is disclosed in note 15 of

the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 114 to 152
The Directors do not believe
there is any material difference
between the carrying value and
market value,

Financial instruments

An analysis of the Company's
financial instruments, risk
management objectives and its
exposure to credit and liquidity
risk are disclosed in note 25

of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Global operations

The Groups executive head
office, accounting. domestic
sales and suppoert functions are
based in the UK, The Group has
55 stores nationwide.

Corporate Governance Report

Political donations

No political donations

were made and no political
expenditure was incurred during
the year.

Charitable donations
Charitable donations of £73k
were made during the year.

Stakeholder engagement
tnformation relating to how

the Directors have engaged
with employees and other
stakeholders, and had regard

to the Company's relaticnships
with suppliers. communities,
customers, during the principal
decisions taken by the Company
during the financial year, are

set out in the Strategic Report
on pages 29 to 34. Our s172(1)
Companies Act 2006 statement
can be found on page 58.

Employees

Information relating to our
employees can be found in
the Our People section of the
Sustainability section of this
report on page 35.

Share incentive schemes in
which employees participate are
described in the Annual Report
on Remuneration on pages 94
to 95 and in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Greenhouse gas emissions

Directors’ Report covmuen

The information set out below is that required by the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors'
Report} Regulations 2013 and Companies {Directors’ Report and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and

Carbon Report) Regulations 2018.

Greenhouse Gas emissions (#CO,)

FY19 FY20 Fy21 Fy22
Scope | - Direct emissions from gas and fuel 5643 5754 1777 90.6
Scope Il - Indirect emissions from electricity 432.6 440.2 252 3571
Total Scope [ and Il GHG emissions 996.9 1.015.6 4297 4477
Revenue tm 278 389 534 69.2
CO2 emissions intensity tCO £1m revenuel 359 261 8.0 5.5

The reduction in direct emissions (Scope ) in FY22 is due 1o the adoption of electric company vehicles
during the past two years. which has now reached 100% of the company car fleet. Indirect emissions
from electricity consumption increased in FY22 as our retail estate reopened fully following the Covid-19
restrictions in the previous year and the opening of new stores. The lower CO2 emissions intensity
highlights the improved emissions efficiency we are achieving as sales volumes grow.

Streamilined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Energy (Megawatt hours)® FY19 FYzo Fy21 Fy22
Electricity 17 17 11 17
Gas C.3 03 01 01
Fuel 22 22 .7 03
Total 4.1 41 18 21

Consumption of energy
increased to 2.1 Megawalt
hours during FY22 driven by the
reopening of retail stores in the
year, and the opening of net six
new stores, This was partly offset
by reduced consumption from
our new 100% electric company
car fleet which we migrated to
during the course of the two
years. We continue to identify
and implement initiatives to
reduce our consurnption across
atl aspects of the business.

Note: The analysis presented
above reflects the Grougs
aperations in the UK. Operations
in the EU are through a 3rd party
provider. The location-based
methodology has been adopted
by the Group.

Directors' interests and
share options

During the year ended 3 April
2022. no Director had an interest
in any significant third-party
contract between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.
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Directors' shareholdings are
disclosed in the Annual Report
on Remuneration on page

24, Details of Divectors share
options are set out in note 27
of the Consaolidated Financial
Statements.

Directors’ conflicts

of interest

In accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and

the Articles. the Company

has arrangements in place to
consider and, where appropriate,
authorise any Directors direct

or indirect interests which

may conflict with those of the
Company. Authorisation is only
effective where the matter is put
to a vote, excluding the Director
who is subject to the conflict
authorisation. If a Director
becomes aware that they ora
connected party have an interest
in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Company.
they should notify the Company
Secretary as soon as possible.

Directors have a continuing
obligation to update any changes
to potential conflicts and the
Board formally reviews any such
conflicts periodically. A register
of canflicts or potential conflicts
is maintained by the Company
Secretary and is available to all
Directors.

Directors' liability and
indemnity insurance

The Company maintains
Directers’ and officers’ liability
insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for legal
action braught against its
Directors. In addition, third-party
qualifying indemnity provisions
{as defined in s234 of the Acti for
its Directors and Officers were

in force during the year ended 3
April 2022 and remain in force,
There were no qualifying pension
scheme indemnity provisions.



Articles of Association

A copy of the Articles of
Association can be obtained
from the Company's registered
office and is also available on
the Companys website and the
Companies House website. The
Articles may only be amended
by special resolution of the
shareholders,

Share capital and waiver
of pre-emption rights

The Company has one class

of share inissue. The rights
attached to sach share are
identical and each share carries
equal rights to dividends, return
of capital on the winding up

of the Company and one vote

at general meetings of the
Company. There are no securities
carrying special rights. There are
no restrictions on the transfer

of shares in the Company (other
than following a service of notice

Substantial shareholdings

under s793 of the Act), save for
those described below, and there
are no restrictions on any voting
rights or deadlines, other than
those prescribed by law.

Pursuant to the Placing
Agreement, except pursuant to
certain customary exceptions.
Daniel O'Neill, Sarah O'Neill.
Michacl O'Nelll. and Daniel and
Sarah O'Neill as trustees of

the O'Neill 2021 Discretionary
Settlement have agreed they
witl not {and will use their best
endeavours to procure that their
connected persons do not} sell or
otherwise dispose of their shares
in the Company without the prior
written consent of the Company's
sponsor, Peel Hunt, for 365 days
from the date of Admission. and
to abide by orderly marketing
restrictions for a further 365 days
thereafter. Further details of the
rights and obligations attached
to the Company's shares are set
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cut in the Companys Articles.

As at 3 April 2022, the Company
had 108.956,624 fully paid
ordinary shares of lp each in
issue which are traded on the
London Stock Exchange. Details
of the share capital at 3 April
2022 are disclosed on page 144,

Authority for the Company
to purchase its own
shares

A resolution will be proposed at
the 2022 AGM that the Company
be authorised to purchase up

to approximately 10% of its
ordinary shares at the Directors’
discretion. If the resolution is
passed, the new authority will
lapse at the conclusion of the
2023 AGM or if earlier. 15 months
from the date of the resolution
being passed,

At 3 April 2022 the Company had been notified of the following disclosable interests of 3% or more in the

Company’s ordinary share capital:

Shareholder
Michael ONeill
Daniel O'Neill
Sarah O'Neill

Daniel ONeill and Sarah O'Neill as trustees of the O'Neill 2021 Discretionary

Settlement
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited
Canaccerd Genuity Wealth Limited

Employee Benefit Trust (Intertrust Employee Benefit Trustee Limited)

Schroder Investment Management Ltd

Between the period end date and 1 July 2022 (being the latest practicable date prior to the date of this

report). the Company had been notified of the following holding:

Fackelmann GmhbH + Co. KG

5047423

4.63%

ProCock Group plc

As at 3 April 2022
No. of % voting
_sharesheld  rights
36,257.024 33.28
15538725 1426
14798785 1358
7399392 679
5132762 471
5310344 487
3.596,624 330
..3308941 304
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Provision of services by
substantial shareholders
Daniel O'Neill is the Company's
Founder and CEO and has a
beneficial interest in 34.6% of
the Company’s issued share
capital. This includes shares
held by Sarah ONeill, and by
Daniel ONeill and Sarah O'Neitl
as trustees of the O'Neill 2021
Discretionary Settlement.
Further details can be found

in the Annual Report on
Rernuneration on pages

92 to 97.

Significant agreements
Daniel O'Neill. Sarah O'Neill,
Michael O'Neill, Richard O'Neill.
and Daniel and Sarah O'Neitl

as trustees of the O'Neill 2021
Discretionary Settlement
{together. the “Controlling
Shareholders”) collectively
exercise or control 67.9% of the
Company's voting rights. The
Company has entered intc a
Relationship Agreement with
the Controlling Shareholders

to ensure that the Company is
managed for the benefit of its
shareholders as a whole and
(save in respect of any duties,
responsibilities and actions of
Daniel ONeill as an executive
director and Richard O'Neill as
an employee of the Company}
independently of the Controlling
Shareholders, and that the
principle of equality of treatment
of shareholders set out in
Premium Listing Principle 5 of
Listing Rule 72.1AR is upheld
and maintained. The agreement
also ensures that all transactions.
agreements and arrangements
between the Company and any
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of the Controlling Shareholders
is on an arm’s tength basis and on
normatl commercial terms. Both
the Company and the Controlling
Shareholders have complied
with these provisions. The
agreement remains in place until
the Controlling Shareholders
cease to exercise or control 20%
or more in aggregate of the total
voting rights of the Company.
The agreement would ailso
automatically terminate were the
Company to cease to be listed
on the premium segment of

the Official List and admitted to
trade on the main market of the
London Stock Exchange,

Change of control
Change of control provisions
are included in the Company's
banking agreements. Should a
change of control event occur.
the Company's revolving credit
facility would be subject to
immediate cancellation and the
hank may call forimmediate
repayment of any balance
outstanding.

Directors' statement
regarding disclosure of
information to the auditor
The Directors confirm that, so
far as they are each aware. there
is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's Auditor
is unaware. The Directors atso
confirm that they have taken

all reasonable steps to make
themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and
to establish that the Companys
Auditor is aware of that
information.

Appointment of auditor
On the recommendation of

the Audit and Risk Committee,
resclutions will be proposed

at the 2022 AGM to re-appeint
Mazars LLP as Auditor of the
Company and to authorise the
Audit and Risk Committee to set
the Auditor's remuneration.

Annual General Meeting
The Company’'s AGM will be

neld on 20 September 2022.
Details of the resotutions to be
proposed at the AGM are set out
in the Notice of Maeting. which is
provided to all shareholders.

The Directors Report was
approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for
issue on 4 August 2022,

For and on behalf of the Board
Dan Waiden
Chief Financial Officer

4 August 2022
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are
responsible for preparing
the Annuai Report and
the Group and Parent
Coempany financial
statements in accordance
with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the
Directors to prepare Group

and Parent Company financial
statements for each financial
year, Under that law they

are required to prepare the
Group financial statements in
accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting
standards in conformity

with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law. In addition. the
Group consolidated financial
statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules to be
prepared in accordance with UK-
adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

Under company law. the
Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and Parent
Company and of the Group's
profit or loss for that period. In
preparing each of the Group
and Parent Company financial
statements. the Directors are
reguired to:

Select suitable accounting
policies and then apply them
consistently;

Make judgements and
estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and reliable;

State whether they have
been prepared in accordance
with internationat accounting
standards in conformity

with the requirements of

the Companies Act 2006

and as regards the Group
financial statements, the
UK-adapted International
Financial Reporting Standards
as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board

Assess the Group and
Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.
disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going
concern; and

Use the going concern basis
of accounting unless they
either intend to liguidate the
Group or the Parent Company
or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to
show and explain the Parent
Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Parent Company
and enable them to ensure that
its financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 20086,

They are responsible for

such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial
statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. and have
generat responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard

the assets of the Group and

to prevent and detect fraud

and other irregularities. Under
applicable law and regulations,
the Directors are also responsible
for preparing a Strategic
Report, Directors Report,
Directors Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance
Statement which comply with
that law and those regulations.

ProCock Group plc

The Directors are responsible for
the maintenance and integrity

of the corporate and financial
information included on the
Groups website. Legislation in
the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
of the Directors in respect
of the annual financial
report

We confirm that to the best of
our knowledge:

The financial statements,
prepared in accordance
with the applicable set of
accounting standards. give
a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss
of the Company and the
undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a
whole, and

The Strategic Report
includes a fair review of

the development and
performance of the business
and the position of the

issuer and the undertakings
included in the consolidation,
taken as a whole together
with a description of

the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.
We consider the Annual
Report and Accounts. taken
as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and
provides the information
necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's position
and performance, business
model and strategy.

Dramypad TN (xr J7
Chief Executive Officer Tl

i P T
Loy :

Chief Financial Officer

4 August 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of ProCook Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ProCook
Group Plc (the ‘parent company) and its subsidiaries (the
‘'group) for the 52 weeks to 3 April 2022 which comprise the
consolidated income statement. consolidated statement of
financial position. consolidated statement of cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity, and notes to
the financial statements, inciuding a summary of significant
accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law and UK-adopted international accounting
standards {1FRS).

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is appticable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United
Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practicel, as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2008,

In our opinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs
as at 3 April 2022 and of the group's loss for the period
then ended:

the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internaticnal
accounting standards;

the group financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and

the parent company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. as applied

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK} {ISAs (UK)) and applicable (aw.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit

of the financial statements” section of our report. We

are independent of the group and the parent company

in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK
including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinieon.
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Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements. we have concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial staterments is appropriate.

Qur audit procedures to evaluate the directors’ assessment
of the group's and the parent company's ability to continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included but
were not limited to:

Undertaking an initial assessment at the planning stage
of the audit to identify events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the group's and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern:

+  Obtaining an understanding of the relevant controls
relating to the directors’ going concern assessment;

Making enquiries of the directors tc understand
the period of assessment considered by them. the
assumptions they considered and the imglication
of those when assessing the groups and the parent
company's future financial performance:

Challenging the appropriateness of the directors' key
assumptions in their cash flow forecasts. as described
on page 119 by reviewing supporting and contradictory
evidence in relation to these key assumptions and
assessing the directors consideration of severe but
plausible scenarios. This included assessing the viability
of mitigating actions within the directors’ control;

Inspecting the terms of loan agreements and financing
facilities for covenants, and assessing the extent to which
they are restrictive and have been accurately included in
severe but plausible scenarios:

Re-performing directors’ calculations and the
mathematical accuracy of financial forecasts:

Performing retrospective analysis to assess budgetary
and forecasting accuracy. and the extent to which such
performance informs the assumptions in future cash flow
forecast:

Considering the consistency of the directors’ forecasts
with other areas of the financial staterments and our
audit: and

Evaluating the appropriateness of the directors'
disclosures in the financial statements on going cencern.

Based on the work we have performed. we have not
identified any material uncertainties relating to events

or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the groups and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern for a peried of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors
with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.



Financial Statements

In relation to ProCook Group Plc's reporting en how it has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code. we have nothing
material to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors statement in the financial statements about whether the
director's considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgement. were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and inciude the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement twhether or not
due to fraud) we identified. including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit: and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These mattsrs were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

We summarise below the key audit matters in forming our opinfon above, together with an overview of the principal audit
procedures performed to address each matter and our key observations arising from those procedures,

These matters. together with our findings. were communicated to those charged with governance through our Audit

Completion Report.

Key Audit Matter

How our scope addressed this matter

Transition to IFRS {Group)
Refer to Note 32

The Annual Report and Accounts for the 52 weeks to 3 April
2022 is the first period under which the Group have applied
UKIFRS. The financial statements presented are therefore

transitionat financial statements from UK GAAP. and transition ~

adjustments and disclosures are required to be assessed.
determined and calculated.

We assessed that the calcutations relating to the transition
couid be complex and require judgement and estimation,
such as the determination of discount rates for IFRS 16 -
Leases.

We have identified a fraud risk because of the opportunity
and incentive for mapagement to adjust prior year errors to
inflate or smooth current year profits. to meet investor and
stakeholder expectations.

First time adoption of IFRS, and the first Annual Report and
Accounts prepared as a premium listed entity, increases
the inherent risk of non-compliance with disclosure
requirements arising from the increased complexity and
breadth of disclosures required.

Cur audit procedures included, but were not limited to:

Independently identifying material differences in the
accounting frameworks in the context of the ProCock
Group plc and comparing those to management’s
assessment;

Re-calculating managements transition schedules and
determining if there are material differences:

Inspecting transition adjustments relating to estimates
and challenging the extent to which judgements and
assumptions are supported by contemporaneocus
evidence:

Seeking disconfirming evidence in respect of the
completeness and accuracy of transition adjustments.
such as inspecting predecessor audit files for evidence
available at the transition date:

Inspecting lease agreements to determine if the leases
are appropriately classified as per IFRS 16 Right of Use
Asset (ROUAY and Lease Liabilities and

Inspecting contractual documentation relating to lease
terms and lease extensions and comparing these to
management records and calculations.

Our observations

Material differences detected during our audif procedures were
corrected. Following correction of the identified differences we
are satisfied with the transition to IFRS adiustments.

Control deficiencies in relation to the fransition to {FRS were

communicated to the Audit and Risk Committee.
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to the membaeaers of ProCTook Group plo

Key Audit Matter

How our scope addressed this matter

Leases (Group)
Refer to Note 16

Right of Use Assets (ROUA) at 3 April 2022 of £20.985k (2021
£17.834k)

Lease Liabilities at 3 April 2022 of £22.449k (2021 £19.451kR}

The Group has a significant number of lease agreements
relating to stores and warehouses.

The number of leases, the amount and variability of lease
payments and the possibility of lease extensions and
concessions increases the impact of a possible misstatement
in the financial statements,

Lease calculations may not be complete. accurate or
supportable by reference to contractual decumentation.
This risk is increased where rent concessions, breaks and
modifications have been made in response to Cowvid-19
which may require management judgement.

Each lease requires management to assess and determined
if a dilapidation provision is required tc be estimated when
assessing the terms of the contract. There is a risk that the
cilapidation provision is incomplete. and we have identified
that there is a high degree of estimation uncertainty.

Management has required to make estimates and
Jjudgements over the cashfiows generated by the stores
relating to the leases. There is elevated uncertainty, in
particular where stores are new or may be impacted by
Covid-19.

We determined that there is an increased risk of
misstatement relating to the valuation of Right Of Use Assets
(ROUA) and Lease Liabilities due to error and fraud.

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to:

Determining if management’s lease calculations were
correctly classified as per IFRS 16 as ROUA and lease
liabilities, by inspecting lease contracts and comparing
them to the requirements of IFRS 16;

Independently calculating the ROUA, lease liability.
depreciation and interest charges using the source data
and comparing cur calculation to trial balance;

Comparing discount rates determined by management
to external market data such as corporate bond yields
for a comparative set of market participants;

Recalculating that each material lease ROUA was
accurately depreciated over the lease term. using the
terms of the lease agreements;

Inspecting external evidence of rent concessions and
comparing the terms to management calculations to
assess accuracy and completeness:

Challenging management on the supporting evidence
for dilapidation assumptions, and agreeing assumptions
to historical evidence:

Inspecting management's impairment assessment and
identification of the Cash Generating Units (CGU) per
1AS 36, and

Inspecting data elements used in management
calculations back to source documentation.

Qur cbservations

Material differences detected duting our audit procedures
were corrected. Following correction of the identified
differences we are satisfied that lease accounting conforms
to the requirements of IFRS 16, and that judgements and
assumplions made are considered reasonable.

Control deficiencies in relation to the preparation of leases
in the financial statements were commuricated to the Audit
Committee.
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Key Audit Matter How our scope addressed this matter
Valuation of investment (Company) Cur audit procedures included, but were not limited to:
Refer to Note 4 page 159 +  The inspection of management’s inputs and key

. assumptions in VIU calculations of investment value,
3 Aprit 2022 £117.3m agreeing data inputs to source such as approved
The carrying value of ProCoock Group plc's investments in budgets.
subsidiaries is significant, representing 98 5% of total assets - Re-calculation of the investment valuation;
in the entity. - Challenging management's impairment judgement
the valuation impacts the distributable reserves, and paper. by seeking any external disconfirming evidence
therefore we have determined that there is a risk of that might be relevant to the assessment such as peer
fraud over the valuation of the investment at the point of perfermance:
recognition. + Assessing the underlying assumptions behind the

impairment assessment. and challenging management
on atternative assumptions and estimates by using
alternative data sources.

There is a significant risk that the incerrect valuation of the
investment could lead to material misstatement of asset

values and reserves.
Inspection of the carrying value with specific reference

to the year-end market capitalisation, obtaining and
assessing managements explanations for the variance
between market capitalisation and carrying value;

There is a risk of error relating to the identification of
impairment triggers, and the possible complexity of
assumptions required when assessing for impairment

Testing the investment carrying value for indicators of
impairment by comparing the carrying ameunt of the
investment to the net assets/liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary.

Inspecting the disclosures made in the financial
statements to ensure they cover the requirements of
FYS 102 section 27.

Our observations
Based on the work performed. we were satisfied that the
valuation of the investment is appropriate.

Control deficiencies in relation to the impdirmernt
assessments were communicated to the Audit and Risk
Committee.

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature. timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect
of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole. Based on our professicnal judgement, we
determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:
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to the members of ProCook Group plc

Group materiality

Overall materiality

£473Kk

How we determined it

5% of Underlying Profit Before Tax

Rationale for benchmark
applied

Prefit Before Tax is the primary benchmark for Pulzlic Interest Entities. The entity is profit
orientated and we have determined that Profit Before Tax is of principal interest to the users of
the financial statements

Performance materiality

Parfarmance materiality is set to reduce to an appropriately tow tevel the probability that the
aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements in the financial statements exceeds
materiality for the financial staternents as a whole.

We set performance materiality at £237k, which represents 50% of overall materiality.

This is the first period in which the entity is reporting under IFRS and the first peried in which
the entity is reporting as a Premium Listed entity on the LSE. As a result we have determined
50% is appropriate.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during
our audit abave £22k as well as misstatements below that amount that. in our view. warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Parent company materiality

Overall materiality

£237k

How we determined it

0.2% of Total Equity

Rationale for benchmark
applied

ProCook Group Pl is a holding entity. and therefore not profit or revenue focused. Total Equity
is deemed to be the most appropriate benchmark for the users of the financial statements.
We have allocated a materiality that is no higher than overatl group materiality and have
therefare capped materiality at ©.2% of Total Equity. reflecting the first year reporting as a
listed entity.

Performance materiality

Performance materiality is set to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the
aggregate of uncorrected and undatected misstatements in the financial statements exceeds
materiality for the financial statements as a whole,

We set performance materiality at £118k. which represents 50% of overall materiality,

The period to 3 April 2022 is the first pericd in which Mazars has been engaged to perform the
audit and therefore we have selected a perfermance materiality at the lower end of our range.

Reparting threshold

Woe agreed with the directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during
our audit above £7k as well as misstatements below that amount that. in our view, warranted
reportmg for qualltatsve reasons

As part of designing our audit. we assessed the risk of material misstatement in the financial stalements. whether due to fraud
or error, and then designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks. In particular, we looked at where the
directors made subjective judgements, such as assumptions on significant accounting estimates.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed sufficient work to be able to give an epinion on the financial
statements as a whole. We used the outpuis of our risk assessment, our understanding of the group and the parent company,
their environmaent, controts. and critical business processes. to consider gualitative factors to ensure that we obtained
sufficient coverage across all financial statement line ftems.
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Our group audit scope included an audit of the group and
the parent company financial statements. Based on our risk
assessment. all components of the group. including the
parent company. were subject to full scope audit performed
by the group audit team, Our audit scope covered 100% of
revenue, total assets and PBT. All components were audited
by the same audit team.

At the parent company lavel, the group audit team also
tested the consolidation process and carried out anatytical
procedures to confirm cur conclusion that there were no
significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated
financial information.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report and Accounts other than the financial
statements and our auditer's report thereon. The directors
are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report. we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Cur responsibility is to read the other information and. in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of audit or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If we identify such materiat
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements. we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstaterment in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a materiat misstatement of this other information. we
are required to repert that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion. the part of the directors remuneration report
to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audit:

The information given in the strategic report and

the directors report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements and those reports have
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements;

Financial Statements

The information about internal control and risk
management systems in relation to financial reporting
processes and about share capital structures. given in
compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook made
by the Financial Conduct Authority (the FCA Rules).

is consistent with the financial statements and has
bheen prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

Information atrout the parent company’s corporate
governance code and practices and about its
administrative, management and supervisory bodies and
their committees complies with rules 722,723 and 7.2.7
of the FCA Rules.

Matters on which we are required to repart
by exception

In light of the knowtedge and understanding of the group
and the parent company and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstaterments in the:

Strategic report or the directors report; or

Information about internal control and risk management
systems in relation to financial reporting processes and
about share capital structures. given in compliance with
rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if. in our opinion:

Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for cur audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us: or
The parent company financial statements and the part of
the directors remuneration report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns: or
Certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

We have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit: or

A corporate governance staterment has not been
prepared by the parent company.
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Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’
statement in relation to going concern. longer-term viability
and that part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to ProCook Group Plc's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Statement
specified for our review,

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the
Cerporate Governance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the audit:

Directors' staterment with regards the appropriateness of
adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified, set out on page 60:
Directors explanation as to its assessment of the entity's
prospects, the period this assessment covers and why
they period is appropriate, set out on page 60:

Directors' statement on fair. balanced and
understandable, set out on page 103

Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks. set out
on page 47,

The section of the Annual Report and Accounts that

describes the review of effectiveness of risk management

and internal control systems. set out on page 78. and

The section describing the work of the audit committee.
set out on page 76.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explatned more fully in the directors' responsibilities
statement set out on page 103, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement. whether due te fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements. the directors are
responsible for assessing the grougs and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing.
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations. or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a rmateriat misstaternent when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements,

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities. including fraud is detailed below.

Irregutarities. including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above.
to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud.

Based on our understanding of the group and the parent
company and their industry, we considered that non-
compliance with the following laws and regulations

might have a material effect on the financial statements:
employment regulation, health and safety regulation. anti-
maoney laundering regulation. data protection and non-
compliance with implementation of government support
schemes relating to Covid-19.

To help us identify instances of non-compliance with these
laws and regulations. and in identifying and assessing the
risks of material misstatement in respect to non-comgliance.
our procedures included, but were not limited to.

Gaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the group and the parent
company, the industry in which they operate, and the
structure of the group. and considering the risk of acts by
the group and the parent company which were contrary
to the applicable laws and regulations. including fraud:

Inquiring of the directers. management and, where
appropriate. those charged with governance, as to
whether the group and the parent company is in
compliance with laws and regulations, and discussing
their policies and procedures regarding comgpliance with
laws and regulations:

Inspecting correspondence with relevant licensing or
regulatory authorities;

Reviewing minutes of directors' meetings in the year, and
Discussing amongst the engagement team the {aws

and regulations listed above, and remaining alert to any
indications of non-compliance.



We also considered those taws and regulations that have a
direct effect on the preparation of the financial statements,
such as: tax legislation, pension legislation, the Companies
Act 2006.

In addition, we evaluated the directors’ and managements
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements, including the risk of management
override of controls, and determined that the principal risks
related to posting manual journal entries to manipulate
financial perfunmance, management ias through
judgements and assumptions in significant accounting
estimates, in particular in relation to warranty and right of
return provisions, inventory vatuation, leases and revenue
recognition (which we pinpointed to cut-off) and significant
one-off or unusual transactions.

Our procedures in relation to fraud included but were not
limited to:

Making enquiries of the directors and management on
whether they had knowledge of any actual. suspected or
alleged fraud:

Gaining an understanding of the internat controls
established to mitigate risks related to fraud:
Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of
fraud,

Addressing the risks of fraud through management
override of controls by performing journal entry
testing: and

Seeking disconfirming evidence by obtaining external
records to assess management assumptions against.

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection
of irregularities, including fraud, rests with both those
charged with governance and management. As with any
audit. there remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities.

as these may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions.

misrepresentations or the cverride of internal controls,

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest
effect on our audit are discussed in the "Key audit matters”
section of this report.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on
the Financial Reporting Councils website at www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Financial Statements

Other matters which we are required to address
Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we
were appointed by the Audit Committee on 22 November
2021 to audit the financial statements for the 52 weeks
ending 3 April 2022 and subsequent financial periods, This is
the first period for which we have been engaged te perform
the audit.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical
Standard were not provided to the group or the parent
company and we remain independent of the group and the
parent company in conducting cur audit,

Our audit opinion is consistent with our additional report to
the audit committee.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely te the company's members

as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibitity
to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body for our audit work, for this report. or for
the opinions we have formed.

oS

Charlene Lancaster(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on kbehalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
One St Peter's Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

4 August 2022

ProCock Group plc 113




Consolidated Income Statement

Forthe 52 weeks to 3 April 2022

52 weeks ended 3 April 2022

53 weeks

Non- ended

£'000s I n Note Underlying underlying Reported 4 April 2021
Revenue 1 69,154 - 69,154 53,393
Cast of sales (24,111 - {24,111) (17513)
Gross profit 45,043 - 45,043 35880
Operating expenses 2 {36,277} (9,400) (45,677) (29,032}
Other income S] 407 - 407 2.848
Cperating profit/(loss) 9173 {9,400} (227 9.696
Finance expense 9 (623) - (623} (457}
Other gains/(losses! 10 944 - 944 (2849}
Profit before tax 9,494 {9,400} 94 8.290
Tax expense 11 (1,900) 1,720 {180) {1.866}
Profit/{loss) for the period 7.594 (7,680Q) (86) 6424
Total comprehensive income/{loss) 7,594 (7,680) (86) 6,424
Earnings per ordinary share - basic 13 7.34p (C.0Lp 6.42p
Earnings per ordinary share - diluted 13 6.76p (C.0Lp 592p
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asat 3 Ao 2022

As at 3 April As at 4 Aprit  As at 29 March

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 14 363 67 -
Property. ptant, and equipment 15 5801 3631 6780
Right-of-use assets 15 20,985 17834 10132
Deferred tax asset 11 1,175 - -
Totalnon currentasgets ‘ 28,324 21532 18912
Current assets

tnventories 17 16,759 10,088 5402
Trade and other receivables 18 1,975 1455 600
Current tax asset 271 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 3,782 5879 2.956
Total current assets 22787 17422 8.958
Total assets . 51,111 38,954 25.870
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 8278 6.221 3.651
Lease liabilities 16 2.844 2781 1751
Provisions 21 173 160 160
Borrowings 22 5,540 2.803 4239
Current tax liability - 387 294
Totalcurrent liabilities e e 16835 12352 10095
Noan-current liabitities

Trade and other payables 20 816 - -
L.ease liabilities 18 19,605 16 670 8.334
Provisions 21 444 398 303
Borrowings - - 2357
Deferred tax liability 11 -~ 29 250
Total non-current liabilities 20,865 17.027 11.244
Total liabilities ] ] _ 37700 29449 21339
Equity and reserves attributable to Shareholders of ProCook Group plc

Share capital 26 1,090 - -
Share option reserve 27 5801 - -
Share premium 26 1 - -
Revaluation reserve 26 - - 472
Retained earnings 26 6,519 2.505 4,059
Total equity and reserves _Azan 9505 4531

The financial statements on pages 114 to 152 were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 August 2022 and were signed on
its benalf by:

EETR ~

Chief Financial Officer

4 August 2022

e e

ProCook Group plc 115



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Forthe 62 weeks to 3 April 2022

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended

£'000s . Note  3April2022  4April2021
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax 94 8290
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property. plant. and equipment 15 860 673
Impairment of property, plant. and equipment 2 - 209
Amortisation of Intangible assets 14 52 -
Loss/tprofity on disposal of property, plant, and equiprment 15 135 (961
{Profit)/loss on termination of leases {50) 1128
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 16 3,056 2715
{Gains)/losses on derivatives 10 (1,098) 349
Share Based Payments 27 5837 -
Finance expense 9 623 457
Increase in inventories 17 {6,671} (4.686)
Increase in trade and other receivables 18 (372} (855}
Increase in trade and other payables 20 3,822 1621
Increase in provisions 21 59 95
Income taxes paid {2,041 (1.999)
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,306 7.640
Investing activities
Purchase of property. plant. and equipment 15 {3,165) (1.868)
Purchase of intangible assets 14 {(348) 867}
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 5096
Lease inception costs (248) (97}
Net cash (used in}/from investing activities {3,761) 3,064
Financing activities
interest on borrowings 9 (156) (99}
Interest paid on tease liabilities 16 (487) {358}
Proceeds from borrowings 22 28,320 14.854
Repayment of borrowings 22 (25,583} (18 647}
Principle movement on lease liabilities 16 (2.910) {2,081
Proceeds from the issue of shares 26 54 -
Dividends paid 12 {1,900} (1.450)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,642) (7.781)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {2097 2923
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 19 5.879 2956
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 19 3782 587¢
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Foribha 52 weeks lo 3 Annl 2022

Share

Share Share Cption  Revaluation Retained Total
B0 e e e e e e e Mote capital | Premium - Reserve = reserve  earnings  equity
As at 30 March 2020 - - - 472 4,059 4,531
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 6.424 6,424
Transfer from revaluation reserve to retained sarnings - - - 472y 472 -
Ordinary dividends paid 12 - - - - (1450) (1,450}
Total comprehensive Lloss for the period - - - - (86) (86)
Bonus issue! 117,300 - - - (117300) -
Capital reductiont {116,200} 116,300 -
Share options exercised 26 54 1 - - - 55
Issue of shareg 25 36 - (36) - - -
Employee Share Based Payment Awards 27 - - 5837 - - 5,837
Ordinary dividends paid 12 - - - - {1,900 (1,900)
As at 3 April 2022 1o 1 5,801 = 6519 13411

1 The bonus issue and capital reduction resulted from the acquisition of ProCook Limited Group by the new Parent company. ProCook Group ple. Further details

on the acquisition have been provided below and in note 26

ProCook Group plc
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Accounting Policies ror the 52 weeks to 3 2prt 2022

General Information

The Group financial staternents consolidate those of the ProCook Group ple (the “"Company”} and its subsidiaries. together
referred to as the “Group” The Company financial statements on pages 153 to 161 present financial information about the
Company as a separate legal entity. and not about the Group as a whole.

ProCook Group plc {the Company) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the
Companies Act 2006 (Registration number: 13679248). The registered office is ProCook. Davy Way, Waterwells, Gloucester,
GL.2 2BY.

The principal activity of the Company together with its subsidiary undertakings throughout the period is the sale of
kitchenware and related products in stores and via ecommerce platforms.

Group Reorganisation

On 26 October 2021, ProCook Group Limited acquired the entire shareholding of ProCook Limited via a share-for-share
exchange, with the existing owners of ProCook Limited at that time becoming the owners of ProCock Group Limited, 100
ordinary shares of £1.00 each in ProCook Limited were exchanged by the owners for 10,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 eachin
ProCook Group Limited.

During the year a capital reorganisation was undertaken in the Parent Company following the acquisition of ProCook Limited.
This increased the number of ordinary shares in issue to 100,000,000 shares of £0.01 each.

On the 10 November 2021, the entire issued share capital of the Company was admitted for provisional trading on to the
premium lsting segment of the Official List of the London Stock Exchange's Main Market for listed securities, becoming
ProCook Group plc. with full admission taking place on the 12 November 2021

The insertion of the Company on top of the existing ProCook Limited Group does not constitute a business combination
under IFRS 3 Business Combinations and as such the consolidated accounts for the Group are treated as a continuation of the
consolidated accounts of the ProCook Limited Group, under the principles of Merger accounting.

Under the principles of merger accounting the consolidated financial statements of the newly formed Group must reflect:

The comparative Consolidated statement of financial position and income statement show the assets and liabilities and
results of the former ProCook Limited Group. transitioned to IFRS, as detailed in note 32.

The retained earnings and other equity balances of the ProCook Limited Group at pre-combination carrying amounts.
The share capital of the Company.

The Consolidated income Statement reflects the consolidated results of the ProCook Limited Group for the full financial
year ending 3 April 2022, inclusive of the results of the newly incorporated parent entity, ProCook Group plc. from 26
October 2021 onwards,

As at 3 April 2022, a merger reserve is not recognised on preparing these consolidated results as the nominal value of the
shares issued by ProCook Group Limited equal the nominal value of the shares received from ProCock Limited.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group are the first set of financial statements for the newly formed Group.
The prior period has been presented as a continuation of the former ProCook Limited Group on a consistent basis as if the
group reorganisation had taken place at the start of the earliest period presented. being 30 March 2020, The prior period
comparatives are those of the former ProCaok Limited Group since no substantive economic changes have occurred,

The Group and its subsidiaries results reported in these financial statements have been prepared on a consistent basis with
uniform accounting policies.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. UK-adopted IFRS as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board. ProCook is a first-time adopter of IFRS and these financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with {FRS 1. The consolidated Group financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, being the Groups
functional currency, and generally rounded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis. unless
otherwise stated.

The Directors have. at the time of approving the financial statements. a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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Financial Statements

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial information are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all periods presented. unless otherwise stated.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group has reported a loss before tax of £(86)k
after non-underlying items for the financial year ended 3 April 2022 (FY21: profit before tax of £8.3m) and had a net asset
pasition of £13 4rm as at 3 April 2022 (4 Aprit 2021 £8.5m). with a net current asset position of £6.0m (4 April 2021 £5.1m). The
Group had a net debt {cash and cash equivalents less borrowings) of £1.8m at 3 April 2022 (4 April 2021 net cash £3.1m},

Since early 2020, the Group has been exposed to challenging market conditions due to the Covid-19 pandemic and more
recently the impact of significant consumer cost of living pressures compounded by the Russian war on Ukraine. Despite
these market conditions. the Group has performed well over recent years. and continues to grow. acquiring new customers,
increasing repeat rates. and creating more reasons to shop with ProCook.

In their consideration of going concern the Board has considered the 12 month period from the date of signing these financial
statements. In their consideration of viability. the Board has determined that a three-year viability assessment period covering
the three financial years ending 30 March 2025, appropriately reflects the speed of change in the current retail and consumer
environment and is consistent with the Group's strategic planning cycle. This period provides a balance between the long-
term nature of investments and the key drivers of near-term business performance.

In considering the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis in preparing these financial staternents the Directors
have considered the Group's principal risks and assessed the impact of a range of severe but plausible downside scenarios on
the Group's expected financial performance, position and cash generation. The scenarios were informed by a comprehensive
review of the macroeconomic environment, and the Groups experience of trading through the pandemic over the last two
years.

Consideration has been given to the availability of facility headroom and covenant compliance within the Group's financing
facilities. These include:

1. The uncommitted trade finance facility of £6.0m in place at the Group's financial year end, which has a current expiry date
of September 2023 and no associated covenants

2. The Revolving Cradit Facility of £10.0m which was entered into on 20 Aprit 2022 (see note 31 for further details) and has
Leverage and Fixed Charge covenants

3. The base case for the scenario modelling extends from the annual budget plan that was approved by the Board in Aprit
2022 and updated since to reflect our latest trading expectations which we announced in mid-June 2022 for the FY23
financial year. Key assumptions include Ecommerce and Retail sales performance. opening of new stares and wehsites.
investment in central headcount and central costs, inventory levels required to maintain strong availability and the effect
on net working capital

The plausible but severe downside scenarios which were considered were:

A significant reduction in customer demand caused by continued inflationary pressures and reduced disposabte incomes.
or a drop in demand for kitchenware product as customers make choices to spend elsewhere

6. Major disruption to global supply chain including manufacturing in the Far East. resulting in significant delays to source
and replenish stock levels. reducing availability {and therefore sales) and increasing cost

7. The above two scenarios combined creating a third downside scenario

In each of these downside scenarios, the Group did not breach any of its financial covenants and did not require any
additional sources of financing in any of the three years under review.

Additionally. the Directors have reviewed three ‘stress tests which, whilst considered extremely unlikely. seek to determine
the level of sales decline compared to the base case. which would result in a risk of financial covenants being breached.

Further detail of these downside scenarios and stress tests are set out on pages 59 to 60,
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If any of these downside or stress test scenarios were to arise, management would consider taking mitigating actions
potentially including but not limited to the following:

Increase selling prices for products which have tower price elasticity to help offset additional import costs
Identify alternative near-shore manufacturing where possible to mitigate exposure to Far East supply
Identify and enter into partnerships to charter vessels directly
- Increase inventory forward ordering to protect availabitity
< Leverage promotional activity to attract mare customers
Reduce discretionary above-the-line marketing spend
Renegotiate payment terms with suppliers
Reduce central overhead costs (including headcount) over the short or medium term
Delay capital expenditure in retail. technology, and logistics
Review and amend our capital allocation and dividend policy

Extend financing facilities with existing or new lenders, potentiatly including the use of the accordion option for the RCF
which is subject to lender approval.

The Directors, having assessed the results of the various downside scenarios and stress tests, are of the opinion that the
Group is well placed to continue in operation for at teast 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements.
The Directors therefore consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
information for the year ended 3 April 2022.

Further information regarding the Grougs business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position is set out in the Strategic Report on pages 10 to 61

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
based on historical experience and other factors. including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The key estimates and judgements that are used within the financial statements are set out below:

Estimate: Discount rates

IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall be discounted using the lessees incremental borrowing rate where the rate implicit in the
lease cannot be readily determined. Accordingly. all lease payments have been discounted using the Groups incremental borrowing
rate (IBR). The IBR has been determined by using a range of data inctuding current economic and market conditions. review of current
debt and capital within the Group, lease length and comparisens against seasoned corperate bond rates and other relevant data
points, A 100 basis points increase in the IBR would lead to a decrease in the lease lability of £(0 2lm (2021 £0.8)m). Further details
can be found in note 186.

Estimate: Warranty Provision

The Group offers warranties ranging from 12 months to 25 years on certain products sold, during which, the Group will
provide a replacement product in respect of any eligible defects which may arise on the original purchase. The estimated
warranty provision is based on historic claim rates and the expected cost of fulfilling the warranty.

The Group has considered warranty returns data for the past 3 years to determine an expectation of the frequency (rate}
and timing of future warranty claims. As the Group provides a new replacement product in respect of a warranty return,

the provision ameunt is based on the anticipated future product cost of any such replacement product, A 100 basis points
increase in the rate of warranty claims would result in an increase in the provision of £0.06m (2021 £0.02m). Further details
can be found in note 21,

Estimate: Inventory Provision

In the current period, the Group has determined that it should reduce the carrying value of inventory to recognise the
estimated exposure to writing off damaged items held at cost within inventory at the year end. which will subsequently be
disposed of by the Group when identified as damaged of faulty after the year end. This estimated future liability has been
developed based on historical data of the costs of disposing of damaged and faulty inventory and has been charged to the
Consolidated Statement of Income. A 100 basis points increase in the damaged and faulty inventory rate would increase the
required provision by £0.13m (2021. No such provision was maintained at this date), Further details can be found in note 17,
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Estimate: Dilapidations
The Group has estimated the dilapidations provision in respect of anticipated future restoration costs of each of the Group's
leasehold properties in the event that any individual location is vacated by the Group.

These future costs are estimated based on actuat historical average costs per square foot the Group has incurred to vacate
and make good a property. and any specific contractual requirements detailed within lzase contracts, The provision for
restoration costs have been discounted to their present value and unwound using the incremental borrowing rate of the
Group implicit at the inception of the lease. A 10 percentage point increase in the historical cost per square foot would result
in anincrease in the dilapidations provision of £0.05m (2021 £0.04m). Further details can be found in note 21.

Judgement: Lease terms and expiries

Judgement is exercised in determining the lease term and expiry date of the lease. IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease together with the options to extend or terminate a lease. if the lessee were reasonably certain to
exercise that option. or when either the lessee or the lessor each has the right to terminate the lease without permission from
the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. The Group has assessed the likelihood of extending lease contracts
beyond any break point date by taking into account current economic and market conditions, current trading performance.
forecast profitability. the significance of any fees payable, and the level of capital investment in the property. as well as the
status of any open dialogue with tandlerds. The Group typically determines the lease term to be the full term of the lease.
assuming that any option to break or extend the lease is unlikely to be exercised and it is not reasonably certain on inceptian,
that the Group will continue in occupation for any period beyond the lease term.

Judgement: Indicaters of Impairment

The Group has determined that only stores that have been open and trading for at least 24 months would be assessed. We
have judged that this is an appropriate period for the store to become established and progress sufficiently towards maturity
as a Cash Generating Unit (CGU). In making this judgement. consideration has been given to past performance on new store
openings and anticipated performance based on property investment cases assessments. that there will be a net positive
contribution over a longer assessment period. The financial performance cf individual CGUs over the preceding financial year
has been reviewed to identify any signs of impairment. In doing so. consideration has been given to the directly attributable
profits generated by each CGU after all directly attributable costs including logistics, occupation. and salary costs as well as
a preportion of centrat costs.

Basis of consolidation

Group companies included in the consolidated financial statements for FY22 include ProCook Group pic and all subsidiary
undertakings. which are those entities which it contrels. ProCook Group plc controls an entity when it is exposed to. or has
rights to. variable returns from its involvement with the entity and can affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity, Subsidiaries are fully conselidated from the date on which controlis transferred te ProCook Group ple
until the date that control ceases. The Company assesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of control indicators listed above.

Where necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with ProCook Group ples accounting
policies.

Transactions eliminated on censolidation

Intra-group balances. and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in preparing the financial information. L_csses are eliminated in the same way as gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Revenue recognition

The Group records customer transactions through its store point of sale systems and its ecommerce platforms. Revenue is
recognised at the point in time when the Group delivers a product to a customer. whether this be at the point of sale in store,
or later upon detivery to a customer. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the customer purchases the
product in stora or upen ordermng online.

Revenue is measured as the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, value added
tax and other sales taxes. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates. and other similar allowances.

Deferred income

Sales made through the Group's websites are recognised at the peint the product is delivered to the customer. Deferred
income is recognised as a creditor at the point where the order has been received and not yet despatched, or where the
goods have been despatched but are yet to be detivered to the customer.
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Refunds and returns

At the point at which goods are supptied, the Group provides customers with a right to return goods within a 90-day period for a
futl refund subject to certain terms and conditions. The Group has established a refunds and returns other payables balance within
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to provide for the expected level of returns on sales made before the period

end but returned after the period end. The provision for returns is calculated based on estimated refund and return rates using
historical trends. The associated estimated value of cost of sales retated to the returned items is also reflected within inventory.

Expenses

Share based payments

The Group operates a number of shared based compensation plans which are all equity settled, in exchange for services received '
from employees. The fair value of these compensation plans is calculated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model The

resulting cost is expensed to the Group income statement over the vesting period. The value of the expense is adjusted to reflect

expected and actual levels of vesting, considering any performance conditions which may apply to individual plans.

Social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options are considered an integral part of the
grant itself and the expense is treated as a cash-settled transaction.

No other entities in the Group other than ProCook Group ple have issued any equity-settled share based incentives.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement as incurred.
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Pensions

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme using an externat pensions partner. Contributions to the scheme
are expensead to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period to which the contributions relate. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group.

There have been no significant changes during the period relating to the current scheme. nor its membership and terms and
conditions.

Non-underlying items
Non-underlying items are defined as transactions that. in the opinion ef the Directors, should ke disclosed separately from ‘
the reported Consolidated Income Statement in order to provide a consistent and comparable view of the underlying

performance of the Group. This will include those items that relate to non-recurring events and are material in nature and

which have been incurred cutside of the normal business operations. including but not timited to restructuring and fund-

raising activities.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest on bank deposits.

Finance expense comprises of interest payable on the Group's finance facilities and lease liability interest which are expensed

to the Consolidated thcome Statement in the period in which they are incurred. Debt issue costs are capitalised and

amortised over the life of the associated finance facility through finance costs,

Other operating income
Other operating income represents all other income received by the Group.

This includes rental income and Government grants. Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received. and the Group will comply with all relevant conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the Consolidated income Statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

During the years ended 4 Aprit 2021 and in the early part of the year ending 3 April 2022, the Group made use of the
Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme ("CJRS"), which atlowed businesses to submit claims for repayment of
furlough or flexible furlough employee wages as a result of Covid-19. In addition to the CJRS. the Group also made use of
Local Restrictions Support Grants, which provided a cash grant for each period of national lockdown as a result of Covid-19.
The grant income received under these schemes has been recognised in sther operating income in the Consolidated Income
Statement. Employee costs are presented gross of grant income.
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Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liakilities denominated in foreign currencies, are retranstated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Any exchange gains or loss are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Current and deferred taxation

Taxation. comprising current and deferred taxation. is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement, except where a
charge attributable te an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income or to an item recognised
directly in equity is alse recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. respectively.

Current tax on profits or losses for the period is calculated based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reperting date in the UK where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax balances in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position are recognised in respect of alltemporary
differences that have originated but not reversed by the balance sheet date. except where:

The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits;

Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have been
met; and

Where timing differences relate to interests in subsidiaries. associates, branches and joint ventures and the Group can
control their reversal and such reversal is not considered probable in the fareseeable future.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of business combinations,
when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair values of assets acquired and the future tax deductions
available for them and the differences between the fair values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed
for tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Where applicable the Group makes claims for Research and Development (R&D) tax reliefs in accordance with the Research
and Development Expenditure Credit (RDEC) scheme. Qualifying projects are assessed to ensure the claims made fit the
criteria and definitions set out by the UK HM Revenue and Customs. R&D tax relief claims are recognised in the tax expense
line of the Consolidated Income Statement.

Dividends
Ordinary dividends proposed by the Board of Directors are only recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position when they have been approved by the shareholders, and the Company is obliged to make payment,

Intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are either acquired separately or internally developed are carried at cost less
accumulated ameortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Directly attributable costs associated with software development by the Group's own IT experts, in respect of customised IT
programmes and systems controlled by the Group. are capitalised as intangible assets, provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

The development costs can be measured reliably

The project is technically and commercially feasible

The Group intends te and has sufficient resources to comptete the project

The Group has the ability to use or sell the software

The software will generate probable future economic benefits,
Software development costs not meeting these criteria are classified as research or maintenance expenditure and are

expensed to the Consolidated Income Statement as they are incurred. Directly attributable costs include employee costs
incurred on software development.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, Assets under construction are
capitalised as expenditure is incurred, with amortisation commencing from the point at which the asset starts being utilised
by the Group. Annual impairment assessments are undertaken to ensure the vatuations remain appropriate.

Amoertisation is provided on the following basis:
Intangibles (Software) 3 years, straight line

Property plant and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment acquired and owned by the Group is stated at historical cost tess accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Assets under construction are capitalised as expenditure is incurred and tested for impairments annually. Depreciation is
expensed to the Consolidated Income Statement to allocate the cost of assets, less any residual value, over their estimated
useful lives. using the straight-line methed. Depreciation is provided on the following basis, from the point at which the asset
starts being utilised by the Group:

Land and buildings 5-10 years. straight line

< Plant and machinery 1020 years, straight line
Fixtures and fittings 5-10 years. straight line (or over term of the lease)
Motor vehicles 3 years, straight line

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate,
ar if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date. At each reporting period end date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any}.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less any costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than it's carrying ameunt, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its .
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Consolidated income Statement,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing any proceeds on disposal with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Leased assets
At inception of a new contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract convays the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether a
physically distinct asset can be identified: the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the
asset throughout the period of use: the Group has the ability to direct the use of the asset over the lease term; and is able to
restrict the usage of third parties as applicable.

Leases are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease
liability except for:
Leases of low value assets {less than £5.000); or
Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.
Right-of use-assets are initially measured at the ameount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and
increased for:
- Lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;
Initial direct costs incurred; and
The amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove of restore the
leased asset.

Lease liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position measured at the present value of the
contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term. with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate
inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable. in which case the Groups incremental
borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
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OCn initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

Amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;

The exercise price of any purchase cption granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonably certain to access that

option. and

Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

Subisequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance
outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely this is judged to be shorter than the
lease term. When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example. it re-assesses the probability
of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect

the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted at the revised discount rate applicable at the date of
estimation. An equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount
being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.

During the year ended 4 April 2021, certain rent concessions were agreed with landlords throughout the periods where stores
were closed. Such rent concessions were treated as lease moedifications and the present value of minimum lease payments
was adjusted to reflect the new payment structure, An adjustment was made to both the Finance lease liability and the Right
of Use Asset value to this effect.

Where the Group's property leases contain variable payment terms. payments determined as variable are treated as a charge
to the Consclidated income Statement and not capitalised. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of
the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases. the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the
variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.

Sale and leaseback

On entering into a sale and leaseback transaction. the Group determines whether the transfer of the assets qualifies as a sale
{satisfying a performance obligation in IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”), Where the transfer is a sale and
providing the transaction is on market terms. then the previous carrying amount of the underlying asset is split between

A right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback (being the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that
relates to the rights retained). and

The rights in the underlying asset retained by the buyer-lessor at the end of the leaseback. The Group recognises a
portion of the total gain or loss on the sale. The amount recognised is calculated by splitting the total gain or loss into:

— Anunrecognised amount relating to the rights retained by the seller-lessee. and
- Arecognised amount relating to the buyer-lessor's rights in the underlying asset at the end of the leaseback.

The leaseback itself is reported and presented in accordance with IFRS 16 Where the transfer is not determined to be a sale,
the previous carrying amount of the underlying assat is not adjusted and the liabitity is included as a financtal liability under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Dilapidations
The value of any provision for contractually committed future costs to dismantle, remove or restore a leased asset are
included in the initial measurement of a right-of-use asset.

Prior to adopting IFRS in the current financial period, the Group did not maintain a provision for such necessary future
expenditure, In the current financial period, the Group has retrospectively recognised. in accordance with IAS 8, restoration
obligations within a dilapiclations provision and included the value of this within the initial measurement of the right-of-use
asset oninception of the lease.

Inventeries

Inventory is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on a weighted average cost basis and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventeries to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the amount that can be realised from the sale of the
inventory in the normal course of business after allowing for the costs of realisation,
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Inventery in transit at the period end is included within inventory at cost. where ownership of legal titte by the Group can be
readily determined.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of inventory over its
estimated selling price less costs to sell is recognised as an impairment loss in Consolidated Income Statement. Reversals of
impairment losses are also recognised in Consolidated Income Statement.

Trade and other receivables

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records the loss allowance
as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows. considering the potential for
default or any other failure to make payment to the Group in line with agreed terms, at any point during the life of the financial
instrument. in calculating this. the Group uses its historical experience, external indicators, and forward-looking information to
catculate the expected credit losses.

The Group assesses impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk characteristics
based on grouping debt by days overdue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are liguid financial assets and include cash in hand. deposits held on call with banks. cash
in transit to the Group in respect of debit and credit card receipts, and other short-term liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised at fair value an the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are all financial assets and financial liabilities that comprise a contract that gives rise to a financial asset
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of ancther entity and are detailed in note 25,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position when the Group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable {other than financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are added to or deducted from the fair value as appropriate. on initial recognition.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelted. or expires. A financial asset
is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

The fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost and derivative instruments recognised at fair value are
disclosed in Note 25.
Financial assets
Financial assets are subsequently classified into the following categories'
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.,
Fair value through other comprehensive income; or
Amortised cost.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial asset (i.e. the Groups business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows) and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

They are measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose obiective is to hold financial assets in
order to cotlect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets not held at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are held at fair value through
profit or loss. At present the Group only has financial assets held at amortised cost, apart from derivatives which are
measured at fair value through profit or loss,
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Financial liabilities
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as eguity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements.

Equity instruments are any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
labilities. Equity instruments are recognised as proceeds received net of issue costs.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss or financial Uabilities at
amortised cost, which are measured using the effective interest method. At present the Group only has financial liabilities
held at amortised cost. apart from derivatives which are measured at fair value through profit or loss,

Impairment of financial assets

iFRS 9 requires the use of forward-looking information to recognise expected credit losses - the "expected credit loss model”,
Recognition of credit losses is not dependent on the Graup first identifying a credit loss event, instead. the Group considers a
broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses. including past events. current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected coliectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reparting end date. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement within Other gains/{losses) immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Consclidated income
Staterment depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset. whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financial liability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position where a legal or constructive obligation has
been incurred which will probably lead to an outflow of resources that can be reasonably estimated. The amount recognised
as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting end date.
taking into consideration the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The timing of cash cutflows are by their
nature uncertain and are therefore best astimates. A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of the obligations
will only be confirmed by future events, or where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with reasonable
reliability.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be reguired to settle the obligation is
recognised at prasent value, When a provision is measurad at present value, the unwinding of the discount is recognised as a
finance cost in the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which it arises.

Warranties

All ProCook products are offered with a warranty ranging from 12 months to 25 years. This warranty provides the custemer
with the right to return the product, should it not be performing in the manner as described when the product was purchased.
The customer is then entitled to a replacement product free of charge.

All warranties in the Group are assurance type warranties as the Group assures that the product will perform as expected. The
Groups warranties do not provide any additional services to the customer and are not able to be purchased separately: the
warranties provide a guarantee to the customer that the product will perform as expected.

The Group maintains a warranty provision in respect of future expected cost of claims outstanding at the year-end. based on
sales which are accompanied by product warranties made prior to the financial year-end and historical return rate trends.

Ditapidations
The Group maintains a dilapidations provision in respect of its future restoration cost obligations in respect of leasehold

properties occupied by or previously occupied by the Group as at the financial year end. based on historical average costs
incurred to vacate and make good a property. and any specific cantractual requirements detailed within lease contracts.
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Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans are initially recorded at their fair value and subsequently held at amartised cost. Arrangement and
transaction fees incurred are amortised over the term of the loan. Borrowings are classed as current liabilities untess the
Group has a right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after date of the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

Share Capital

Changes in the share capital structure are recognised within equity on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition,
within any excess over the naminal share price being recognised within Share premium. Where the Company purchases its
own equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs. is
deducted from the equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received net of any directly attributabte incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects. is included in equity attributable to the Company's equity holders.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period. the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is an indication of impairment. For impairment purposes. assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating unit or CGU). As a result. some assets are tested individually for
impairment. and some are tested at the CGU level. Management considars CGUs to be determinable by individual store and
the various ecommerce platforms.

Assets and CGQUs are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, Animpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets or CGU's carrying amount
exceads its recoverable amount. which is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use.

To determine the value-in-use, management estimate expected future cash flows from the CGU and determine a suitable
discount rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Discount factors are determined for the CGU to reflect
current market assessments of the time vatue of money and asset-specific risk factors

impairment charges are allocated on a pro-rata basis in accordance with the CGU's carrying amounts. in allocating the
impairment loss to a CGU. the carrying amaunt of each asset within the CGU is reduced to the highest of either its fair value
less costs to sell; value-in-use: or nil. Recognition of impairment losses do not result in a recognition of a liability. All assets are
subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment
loss is reversed if the assetl’s or CGU's recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

Segmental reporting

The Group's operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board
of Directors. The Board is identified as the Chief Operating Decision-Maker { CODMY for the business and is responsible
for making strategic decisions, allocating resources and assessing perfermance of the operating segments. The Group is
considered to have two operating segments: Ecommerce and Retail.

Revenues and underlying operating profits for both segments are generated from the sale of kitchenware and related
products. Each segment has separate cperational characteristics and are identifiable by way of whete the customer
completes their transaction: either in a retail store, or via one of the ecommerce website platforms that the Group operates.
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New standards, amendments, and interpretations
New standards impacting the Group that have been adopted for the year ended 4 April 2021 and year ending 3 April 2022 are
as follows:

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3k

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - IBOR "phase 2" (Amendments to IFRS 9. IAS 39 and IFRS 7} and

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16).

Foltowing an assessment. the Group have deterrined that these standards do not have a material impact upon the Group's
Consolidated Financial Statements,

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted
There are several standards. amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that are
effective in future accounting periods that the Group has decided not to adopt early. The following amendments are effective
for the pericd beginning 5 April 2022:
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37¥
Property. Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16
< Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9. IFRS 16 and 1AS 41):
References to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3):
IFRS 17 {including the June 2020 amendments to IFRS 17) Insurance Contracts:
Amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture:
Amendments to |AS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current:
Amendments to IAS 1 and [FRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies;
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates: and
Amendments to |AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction.

The Group do not expect these standards to have a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements either in the
current reporting period or future reporting periods.
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1. Revenue

Group revenue is not reliant on any single major custorner or group of customers. Management considers revenue is derived

from one business stream being the retail of kitchenware and related products and services,

Customers interact and shop with the Group across multiple touchpeints and their journey often involves more than one
channel. The Chief Operating Decision-maker is the Board of Directors of ProCook Group plc. The Board reviews internal
management reports on a frequent basis, and in Line with internal reporting. the channel reporting below indicates where

customers complete their final purchase transaction,

The majority of the Group's operations are carried out in the UK, with a smaller proportion of the Group'’s revenue being
generated in the European Union. All revenue is from external customers.

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
£000 3 April 2022 4 April 2021
United Kingdom 66,124 50.087
European Union 3,030 3.306
Total revenue 69,154 53.393
2. Operating expenses
Operating profit/(loss} for the pericds is stated after charging
52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
£000 e 3 April 2022 4 April 2021
Exchange losses 32 519
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 860 673
Amartisation of Intangible assets 52 -
Amortisation of right-of-use-assets 3,056 2715
Impairment of tangible fixed assets - 209
Variable lease payments 985 267
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant. and equipment 174 (961)

Totai R&D expenditure included in operating expenses for the 52 weeks ended 3 April 2022 was £0.6m (4 April 2021 £0.4m),

3. Non-underlying items

Due to the non-recurring nature of the Initial Public Offering on the London Stock Exchange by the Group in the period ended
3 April 2022, the business has incurred costs which relate to non-recurring events, and are material in nature. and so have
been separately disclosed on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement as non-underlying items. These included non-
recurring costs in relation to the IPO of £2.7m (2021: £nil} and costs in respact of employee share-based IPO awards of £6.7m
(2021: £nil). Expenses in relation to these IPO awards are expected to continue through relevant vesting periods to FY25,

albeit these costs reduce over time,

£'000

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

00 L 3 April 2022 4 April 2021
IPO Associated costs 2742 -
Share based Payments 6,658 -
9,400 -

Totat .
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4, Segmental reporting

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is the Board of Directors and segmental reporting analysis is presented based
on the Group's internal reporting to the Board. At 3 April 2022, the Group had two operating segments. being Ecommerce
and Retail. Central costs are reported separately to the Board. Whilst centrat costs are not considered to be an operating
segment. it has been included below to aid reconciliation with Operating Profit as presented in the Consclidated Statement

of Income,

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

£'000 ) 3 April 2022 4 April 2021
Revenue
Ecommerce 32,332 39,853
Retail 36,822 13,540
Total revenue o e = ot s R a1t o 3154 e+t bt 455 o SO+ oot e o £ =t e i et 2 [ 69'154 53'393 ”
Operating profit -
Ecommerce 8,056 14,1486
Retail 9,635 1773
Centratl costs (8,518) {6.223)
Non-underlying costs {9,400) -
Operating (loss)/profit (227) 9.696
Finance costs (623} (457)
Other gains/{losses) 944 (949)
Profit before tax 94 8,230

Substantially all of the assets of ProCook Group plc are located in the UK.

5. Auditor Remuneration

The Groups total fees paid or payable to its auditor! in respect of the audit of the Groups financial statements and for other

services provided to the Group

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
B000 e e e e et e e e e s e LS PPMIL2022 4 April 2021
Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 25 5
Audit of the Parent Company and Group subsidiary entities 120 24
Qther services?® 13 -
Totat auditor remun . 158 .29
1 During the year the Group changed its statutory auditors to Mazars LLP.
2 The Group engaged the auditor to undertake certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the interim financial statement,
6. Other income
52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
E000 e e e ) et et e e 3APRLZO22 4 April 2021
Other income 112 43
Government grants 295 2,805
Total other incame ... B07 2848

The government grants relate to the Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme {CJRS), the Government Business
Rates Relief Scheme and local restrictions support grants, There are ne unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to

these grants that have been recognised.
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7. Employee numbers and costs

The average monthly number of colleagues employed by the Group including Directors was:

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

3 April 2022 4 April 2021

Retail staff 601 492

Support staff 82 67

Total 683 559
The total remuneration of all employees including Directors includes:

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

£000 3Aprl 2022 4 ApriL 2021

Wages and salaries 12,572 §,919

Social security contributions and similar taxes 947 695

Other pension costs 192 136

Total 13,711 10,750

In the current year, the Group claimed £0.03m (2021 £1.83m} under the UK Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
which was recognised within Other Income. Details of Directors remuneration including base pay. short and long-term
incentive schemes and pension entitlements are disclosed in the Directars Remuneration Policy and Annual Report on

Remuneration on pages 82 to 92.

8. Retirement benefit plan

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme far all qualifying employees. The scheme is

administered and managed by a separate third-party specialist pension scheme provider. The total expense recognised
in the Consolidated Income Statement for the period ended 3 April 2022 was £192k (4 April 2021 £136k) and represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

9. Finance expense

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
00 e e e e e e et e e = s e S L 3Aprilzozz2 | 4aprit2021
Interest on borrowings and other interest 156 93
Interest on lease labilities 467 358
Total finance expense L e e e — 623 457
10. Other gains and losses
52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
B e e e e e e e o e et m v e oot e e S PHL 2022 4 ApHil 2021
Gain/{loss) on derivatives 1,098 (949)
Exchange rate losses (154) -
Total gains/(losses? 944 __.1849)
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The tax expense for the pericds presented differ from the standard rate of UK corporate income tax applicable in the financial

year. The differences are explained below:

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended
£000 e . e e e 3April2022 4 April2021
Current taxation
Corporate income tax charge for the period 1384 2.087
Adjustments in respect of previous years - -

1384 2.087
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (920) (221)
Impact of change in tax rate {284) -
Total tax expense . 180 1.866
The tax charge reconciles with the standard rate of UK corporate income tax as follows.

52 weeks 53 weeks

ended ended
£'000 3 April 2022 4 Aprit 2021
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 94 5,290
UK Corporate income tax at standard rate of 19% (2021: 18%,) 18 1.575
Factors effecting the charge in the periocd.
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes 446 123
Adjustments in respect of prior years - 105
Impact of change in tax rate (284) -
Chargeable gains - 309
Total taxation expense 180 1866

The underlying taxation expense for the period as a percentage of profit before tax (the effective tax rate) is 20.0%

(2021 22.5%),

The standard rate of UK corporate income tax was 19% for all pericds presented, RDuring the year. the UK Government
substantively enacted an increase in the UK corporate income tax rate to 25% effective from 1 April 2023. Deferred tax

balances have been adjusted to reflect the expected increase in Corporation tax rates.

The deferred tax asset has arisen due to accelerated capital allowances on items of property. plant and equipment and the
timing of future vesting dates in respect of share based payments. The amounts have been presented on a net basis to follow
the way in which they will be recouped by the Group. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

Movement in the year

Accelerated
capital Share based
E000 e e v e e e e e et eme e v ..., QUowances  payments =~ Tolal
Deferred tax liability at 5 April 2021 (29} - 29
(Debit}/credit to profit and loss (450} 1654 1,204
Deferred tax assetat 3 April2022 -~ = S L 47y o 1884 1175
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12. Dividends

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended Dividend per ended Dividend per
£'000 3April2022 share (pence} 4 April 2021 share (pence)
Final dividend for the period 29 March 2020 - - 1,450 15
Final dividend for the period 4 April 2021 1000 10 -
Interim dividend for the period ended 3 April 2022 900 10 -

in the table above. the 10,000 ordinary shares of £1 each in issue as at 4 Aprit 2021 have been converted to the equivalent

post share for share exchange quantity (100,000,000 ordinary shares of 1 pence) for comparative purposes.

The FY22 interim dividend of £1.0m was declared and paid representing 1.0 pence per shares. however £0.1m of this dividend
was waived by certain shareholders, The interim dividend was paid to the shareholders on the register at close of business on

8 November 2021

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 0.9 pence per crdinary share which equates to £1.0m, for the period
ended 3 April 2022, Subject to shareholder approval at the AGM, this will be paid on 30 September 2022 to shareholders on

the register at close of business on 2 September 2022,

13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Group by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the peried attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period plus the weighted average number
of ordinary shares that would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.
52 weeks ended 53 weehs ended
— e o R P 3 April 2022 4 April 2021
Weighted average number of shares 103,509,034 100000000
Impact of share options 8,774,158 8.580.000
Number of shares for diluted earnings per share 112,283,193 108,580,000

In the table above. the 10,000 ordinary shares of £1 each in issue as at 4 April 2021 have been converted to the equivalent

post share for share exchange quantity (100,000,000 ordinary shares of 1 pencel for comparative purposes.

52 weeks 52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended ended
3 Aprii 2022 3 April 2022 4 April 2021

gE00Q o R — o Underlying Reported Reported X
Profit/(loss) for the period 7,594 (86) 6.424
Earnings per ordinary share ~ basic 7.34p {0.0Lp 642p
Earnings per ordinary share - diluted . i o 6.76p 0obp ~ 592p
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Assets under

EO0D s o . - e . Seftware  construction - Total
Cost

At 30 March 2020 - - -
Additions - 67 67
At 4 April 2021 - 67 67
Transfers out of Assets under construction o7 (67) -
Additions 190 158 348
At 3 April 2022 257 158 415
Accumulated Amortisation

At 30 March 2020 - - -
Charge for the period - - -
At 4 April 2021 - - -
Charge for the period 52 - 52
At 3 April 2022 R 52 - 52
Net book value ‘—

At 29 March 2020 - - -
At 4 April 2021 - 67 67
At3April2022 205 158 363

Amortisation was recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Income within operating expenses throughout the period.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and Fixtures and Motor Assets under
E£'000Q Buildings machinery Fittings Vahicles canstruction Total
Cost
At 30 March 2020 4236 211 4700 4 - 9151
Additions 2 206 1660 - - 1,868
Disposals {4.204) (97) (316} - - (4617}
At 4 Aprit 2021 34 320 6.044 4 - 5,402
Additions 34 167 2514 25 425 3.165
Disposals (56) - {96) - - (152}
At 3 April 2022 12 487 8,462 29 425 9,415
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 March 2020 328 38 2,002 3 - 2,371
Charge for the period 35 15 622 1 - 673
Impairment - - 209 - - 209
Disposals (354) {21 (107) - - (482)
At 4 April 2021 9 32 2,726 4 - 2771
Charge for the period 3 31 818 8 - 860
Disposals (2) - (3} (5} - (17
At 5 April 2022 3 63 3,541 7 - 3,614
Net book vatue
At 29 March 2020 3.508 173 2,698 1 - 6,780
At 4 April 2021 25 288 3.318 - - 3.631
At 3 April 2022 e 9 424 4,921 22 425 5,801

Impairment tests have been carried out where appropriate and no impairment charge has been recognised as a result in the
52 weeks to 3 April 2022. In the year ended 4 April 2021. an impairment loss of £209k was recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Income within operating expenses which related to a Group wide review of fixtures and fittings, where certain
assets were identified not to be in working order or in use in retail stores. The impairment was recognised within the Retail
reporting segment.

Depreciation was recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Income within operating expenses throughout the period.

16. Leased assets

The Group leases a number of assets. with all lease payments fixed over the lease term. Where there are leasehaoid
oroperties which hold a variable element to lease payments made these are not fixed and not capitalised as part of the right
of use asset. All expected future non-variable cash out flows are reflected within the measurement of the lease liabilities at
each period end.

As at 3 April As at 4 April
2022 2021
Number of active leases n_.. 53

The Groups leases include leasehold properties for commercial and head office use, motor vehicles and plant equipment.
The leases range inlength from two to twenty years and vary on length depending on lease type. Leasehold properties hold
the longest-term length of up to 20 years, plant and equipment up to 5 years, and motor vehicles of up to 4 years.

Extension, termination, and break options

The Group occasionally negotiates extension, termination, or break clauses in its leases. In determining the lease term.
management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option. or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).
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16. Leased assets continued
On a case-by-case basis, the Group will consider whether the absence of a break clause would expose the Group to
excessive risk. Typically, factors considered in deciding to negotiate a break clause inciude:

The length of the lease term;

The economic stability of the environment in which the property is located; and

Whether the location represents a new area of operations for the Group.
incrermental borrowing rate
The Group has adopted a rate with a range of 2-4% as its incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay ta borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar

economic environment with similar terms. security, and conditions. This rate is used to reflect the risk premium over the
borrowing cost measured hy reference to the Group's financing facilities.

Short-term or low value lease expense
No short-term or low vatue leases existed during the financial period.

Right-of-use assets included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

Leasehold Motor Plant and
£000 ] Property Vehicles Equipment Tokal
Cost
At 30 March 2020 1¢.239 78 29 10.348
Additions 8511 17 - 8628
Re-measurement 2.491 - - 2.491
Disposals {804} 118) - (820)
At 4 April 2021 20437 179 29 20,645
Additions 7.843 57 39 7939
Re-measurement 241 - - 241
Disposals {2.296) - - (2.296)
At3aprit2022 26,225 236 68 26529
Accumulated ameortisation
At 30 March 2020 214 - - 214
Charge for the period 2667 35 13 2.715
Disposals (102) (16} - (118)
At 4 April 2021 2779 19 13 2811
Charge for the period 2.974 68 14 3.056
Disposals (323 - - (323)
Net book value
At 29 March 2020 10.025 78 29 10,132
At 4 April 2021 17658 16 17,834
AL 3 April 2022 _...20795 41 20985
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16. Leased assets continued
Lease Liabilities included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

Leasehold Meotor Plant and

£'QQ0 Property Vehicles Equipment Total
At 30 March 2020 9978 78 29 10,085
Additions 9.385 117 - 9,502
Re-measurement! 2491 - - 2,491
Interest expense 354 3 1 358
Lease payments {2,381 {43} (15) {2,439)
Disposats {546) - ~ {546)
At 4 April 2021 19,281 155 15 19,451
Additions 7615 57 39 7711
Re-measurement! 241 - - 241
Interest expense 462 4 1 467
Lease payments (3.286) (75) (16) {3,377)
Disposals (2,044} - - (2,044)
At 3 April 2022 22,269 141 39 22,449
1 Re-measurements have arisen where store lease rental terms and lease expiry dates have been renegotiated.
Reconcitiation of minimum lease payments and present value

As at 3 April As at 4 April
£'000 2022 2021
Within 1 year 3,325 3209
More than 1year and less than 5 years 11448 9995
After 5 years 10,300 8.552
Total including interest cash flows 25,073 21756
Less: interest cash flows {2,624} (2,305)
Total principal cash flows .. 22449 19451
Reconcitiation of current and nan-current lease liabilities

As at 3 April As at 4 April
B0 e e e e e oo e 2022 .%o
Current 2,844 2781
Non-current 12,605 16.670
TOtal PR —— PPy — A 1t T WS 1 WA M AL % 1 e 3 YA AR 1 LA 8 T R e 28 e, e o 22'449 19451
17. Inventories

As at 3 April As at 4 Aprit
£'000 2022 2021
Finished goods and goods for resale S e AB759 10088

The cost of Group inventories recognised as an expense in the period to 3 April 2022 amounted to £23.4m
(4 April 2021 £15.9m). This is included in cost of sales.

Within inventory the Group has recognised a provision relating to damaged stock of £157k as at 3 April 2022 (2021 £nil).
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As at 3 April As at 4 April
000 e e e e e e e et e e eeseenrene s oo e e ZOBR 202
Trade receivables 87 1
Other receivables 748 5186
Derivative financial instruments 148 -
Prepayments 992 938
Total 1875 1455

All trade receivabies are due within one year from the end of the reporting period. No impairment was incurred on trade
receivables during the period and the expected credit loss provision held at period end is nil (2021: nil}. No material amounts

are overdue (2021 nijl),

Included in other receivables at the period end is supplier deposits of £290k (4 April 2021 £381K).

19. Cash and cash equivalents

As at 3 April As at 4 April
£'000 2022 2021
Cash at bank available on demand 3,068 5028
Cash in transit 724 851
Total e . e 3782 5879
20. Trade and other payables

As at 3 April As at 4 April
B0 e e e e e e e e - . 2022 .20
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 3,280 2.472
Other payables 154 275
Accruals 2,294 1.896
Deferred income a5 182
Derivative financial instruments - 949
Other taxation and social security 2,455 447

8,278 6.221

Amounts falling due after one year:
Accruals 816 -
Total 9094 6221

The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. Trade payables are
nan-interest bearing and are typicatly settled monthly. The accruals falling due after one year relate solely to the Employer
National Insurance contributions payable on Share Schemes entered into during the year.

Included in other payables was £19k at the period ended 3 April 2022 (4 April 2021 £96k) owing to a Director The balances

were non-interest bearing.

21. Provisions

Asat3April  Asat 4 April
B0 i e e e e e _— - - . Aeee _.agat
Amounts falling due within one year
Warranties 133 160
Dilapidations 40 -
173 160
Amounts falling due after one year:
Warranties 7 -
Ditapidations 398
Total =~ e — ) . 298
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21. Provisions continued

Provisions for warranties are largely short term in nature given the Group's experience of the timing of such claims being
targely made within the first year of purchase The estimated costs to service these claims have minimalt uncertainty as they
are based on the cost of the Group’s products.

Provisions for dilapidations are based on the Group's past experience and cost of existing leasehold property sites. The
provision is longer term in nature due to the length of the respective leases relating to each site.

£'000 Dilapidations Warranties Total
At 4 April 2021 398 160 558
Additions during the year 78 212 290
Unwinding of discount rate 10 - 10
Utilised during the year 10 (231} {241
At 3 April 2022 476 141 617

22. Borrowings
As at 3 April As at 4 April

£'000 2022 2021
Current

Bank loans 5,540 2.803
Total borrowings 5,540 2.803

Bank loans comprise solely of a trade finance facility which was eoriginally committed until September 2023 until the
refinancing took place after the financial year end, as set out in note 31, at which point it became an uncommitted facility. As
at 3 April 2022, the trade finance facility imit was £6.0m. The following amounts had been drawn down and were cutstanding
at 3 April 2022 £5.5m (4 Aprit 2021 £2.8m).

The Group aiso had a debenture in place during the year which related to a fixed charge over all present freehold and
leasehold property.

23. Derivatives

The Grougis local currency is Pounds Sterling but due to international purchases in foreign currencies, the Group seeks to
reduce the foreign exchange risk by entering into forward contracts and other derivatives. At 3 April 2022, the outstanding
contracts all mature within 15 months of the period end. with committed purchases of $33.6m.

The contracts are measured at their fair vatue, which is determined using valuation techniques that utilise observable inputs,
The key inputs used in valuing the derivatives are the forward exchange rates. The fair value movement of the foreign
currency contracts are detailed in note 10 above.

There were no designated hedges in place during the current or proceeding financial year.

24. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

New
At 5 April borowings and At 3 April
B0 2021  Repayments Interest remeasurements 2022
Short-term borrowings 2.803 (25,739} 156 28,320 5,540
{ease liabilities 19,451 (3,377} 467 5,908 22,449
Total liabilities from financing activities - ..22254  (oley = 623 = 34228 27989
New
At 30 March borrowings and At 4 April
£'000 ) e 2020 Repayments . Interest remeasurements 2021
Short-term borrowings 6.596 (18.745) ag 14854 2803
Lease liabilities 10,085 (2,439 358 11,447 18,451
Total liabilities from financing activities 16,681 (21184) 456 26301 22254
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25, Financial Risk Management

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed through its operation to the following financial risks: credit risk. interest rate risk. foreign exchange
risk and liquidity risk. Risk rmanagement is carried out by the directors of the Group. The Group uses financial instruments to
provide flexibility regarding its working capital requirements and to enable it to manage specific financial risks to which it is
exposed.

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of debt finance. cash and Uquid resources and various items such as
trade debtors and trade payables which arise directly from the Business’s operations.

For further information on the Group's Capital allocation and dividend policy, pleass see page 27.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financiat loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. To minimise the risk, the Group endeavours only to deal with companies which are demonstrably
creditworthy and this, together with the aggregate financlal exposure. is continuously monitored. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying value of its financial receivables. trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents as
disclosed in the notes to the financial information.

The receivables’ age aralysis is evaluated on a regular basis for potential deubtful debts. considering historic, current and
forward-looking information. No impairments to trade receivables have been made to date. Further disclosures regarding
trade and other recejvables are provided within the notes to financial statements.

Credit risk also arises on cash and cash equivatents and depaosits with banks and financial institutions, For banks and financial
institutions. only independently rated parties with minimum rating “B+" are accepted.

Currently. all financial institutions whereby the Group holds significant levels of cash are rated from AA- to A+

Interest rate risk

As at 3 April 2022 the Group's only current borrowings are the trade finance facility at a floating interest rate linked to the
Bank of England base rate. This is variable on the amount drawn down and there is no fixed settlement date, therefore the
interest rate risk exposure for the Group is minimal. The Groups policy aims to manage the interest cost of the Group within
the constraints of its financial borrowings.

Foreign exchange rig

Foreign exchange risk arises when the Group enter transactions in a currency other than their functional currency. The Group's
policy is. where possible, to settte liabilities denominated in a currency other than its functional currency with cash already
denominated in that currency.

The Group will make purchases of large inventory orders from overseas, and the Greup will use additional means to cover

its exposure to the foreign exchange movement. The Group will use various financial derivatives such as foerward exchange
contracts. to mitigate any predicted movement in foreign currency to restrict losses and to ascertain control of expected cash
out flows. All the Group's foreign exchange contracts are designated to settle the corresponding liability.

Ligquidity risk

The Group seeks to maintain sufficient cash balances, Management reviews cash flow forecasts on a regular basis to
determine whether the Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet future working capital requirements and to take
advantage of business opportunities.

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade receivables. other receivables. and cash.

As at 3 April As at 4 April
£000 OO U OO ...
Trade receivables 87 1
Other receivables 748 516
Cash at bank and on hand 3,782 5879
Total _ASl7 6396
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25. Financial Risk Management continued
Financial assets measured at fair value include derivative financial assets:

As at 3 April As at 4 April

E'000 2022 2021
Derivatives 148 -
Total 148 -

In the period ended 3 April 2022, derivatives are included within the balance sheet under trade and other receivables and are
recognised under level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other payables. accruals, borrowings and lease liabilities:

As at 3 April As at 4 April

£'000 o 2022 2021
Trade payables 3,280 2472
Other payables 154 275
Accruals 3,110 1896
Other taxation and social security 2,455 447
Deferred tax liabilities - 29
Corporation Tax payable - 387
Borrowings 5,540 2.803
Lease liabilities 22,449 19,451
Total 36,988 27760

Financial liabilities measured at fair value include derivative financial liabilities, as follows

As at 3 April As at 4 April

2022 2021

Derivatives - 949
Total - 949

In the period ended 4 April 2021, derivatives are included within the balance sheet under trade and other payables and are
recognised under level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

A maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is shown below, With the exception of lease liabilities (whose payment
schedule spans the term of the respective lease agreements) and National Insurance Contributions on share based
payments, the Groups' other liabilities as at 3 April 2022 are all due within less than one year

As at 3 Aprit As at 4 April
B et e e o o e e i R - 2022 2921
Due within one year:
Trade payables 3,280 2472
Other payables 154 275
Accruals 2,294 1898
Other taxation and social security 2,455 447
Corporation Tax payabie - 387
Borrowings 5,540 2.803
Lease liabilities 2,844 2.781
Total 16,567 11.061
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25, Financial Risk Management continued
As at 3 April As at 4 April

Due after one year:
Derivatives - 949
TOtal - S [R T — - L L T - 949

As at 3 April As at 4 April

£000 . — e e . S L
Due after one year:

Accruals 815 -
Deferred tax liabilities - 29
Lease liabilities 19,605 16.670
Total 20,421 16,699

- [

Further maturity of the Groups lease liabilities is set out in note 16, All other liabilities which are due after one year are due to
e settled within five years.

The currency profile of the Groups cash and cash equivalents is as follows:
As at 3 April As at 4 April

goo0 ] " 0z 20
Sterling 3,368 5644
US Dollar 135 160
Euro 279 75
Total 3782 5879

Foreign denominated asset and liability balances held at the year-end are as follows:
As at 3 April As at 4 April

B000 e Lo BO2Z 2021
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 414 235
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 1155 145
Borrowings 5,512 2.803

Substantially all of the trade and other payables positions and berrowings positions shown above are denominated in US Dollars,

Further information relating to the Group's hedging of these assets and Liabilities is set out in note 23. A $0.01 change in the
Sterling to USD exchange rate would result in a £51k increase/ decrease in the Consclidated Income Statement,

Capital disclosures

The capital structure of the business consists of cash and cash equivalents. debt and equity. Equity comprises share capital
and retained profit and is equal to the amount shown as “Equity” in the balance sheet. As at 3 April 2022, Debt comprised of
one HSBC Trade Finance facility loan, which is set out in further detail above and in the notes to the accounts.

The Group's objectives when maintaining capital are to:

Safeguard the Groups ability as a going concern so that it can continue to pursue its growth plans
Provide a reasonable expectation of future returns to shareholders,
Maintain adequate financial flexibility to preserve its ability to meet financial obligations. both current and long term.

The Group sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

During the periods presented. the Group's business strategy remained unchanged.
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26. Share capital and reserves
As at 3 April As at 4 April

S 4 Aot oA Aokt 14 4 e Al Sl bk 2022 2021
Allotted, called up and fully paid
10,000 Ordinary shares of 1p each - 100
108,956,624 Ordinary Shares of 1p each 1,089,566 -
Total 1,089,566 100

On 26 October 2021, ProCook Group Limited acquired the entire shareholding of ProCook Limited via a share-for-share
exchange. with the existing owners of ProCook Limited at that time becoming the owners of ProCook Group Limited, 100
ordinary shares of £1.00 each in ProCook Limited were exchanged by the owners for 10,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each in
ProCook Group Limited.

A bonus issue and a capital reduction were undertaken in the parent company during the year following the acquisition of
ProCock Limited. This reduced the share capitat of ProCook Group pic by £116.3m through the cancellation of 11.630.000.100
ordinary shares of £0.01 each leaving in issue 100,000.000 shares of £0.01 each.

During the year. an existing EMI scheme vested, resulting in 5.360,000 shares being issued for totat consideration of £55k.
generating Elk of Share Premium, Total treasury shares held at the period encled 3 April 2022 were 3,596,064,

Only one class of shares have been issued which have full voting. dividend, and capital distribution rights.

Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

Share premium account: Proceeds received In excess of the nominal value of shares issued. net of any transaction costs.

Share oplion reserve: Used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments expenses, See note 27 for further
details on share-based payment plans,

Revaluation reserve: Originally created to recognise the change in carrying value of a fixed asset following a revaluation
assessment. The reserve was eliminated during the period ended 4 April 2021.

Retained earnings: All other accumulated net gains and losses and transactions with shareholders not recognised elsewhere,

27.Share based payments
The Group cperates several equity-settled share-based compensation plans for employees. The vesting date for each
scheme is the last day of the contractual life of the scheme. The terms and conditions of the grants are detailed below

Exercise price Vest
Date of grant oo Share Schen:lg . No. of aptions (pence) conditions Vest date
12-Nov-21 Leadership IPO Awarcl 3173.876 O No 12 November 2021
12-Nov-21 Employee IPO Award 1 1198.688 44 Yes 12 November 2022
12-Nov-21 Employee IPO Award 2! 1198.688 29 Yes 12 November 2023
12-Nov-21 Employee PO Award 3! 1198688 15 Yes 12 November 2024
12-Nov-21 Executive PO Award 1 172413 e Yes 12 November 2024
12-Nev-21 Executive IPC Award 2! 689.655 145 Yes 12 November 2024
12-Nov-21 Leadership ESP Award FyY22? 706.896 C Yes 12 Novembaer 2024
10-Jan-22 SAYE! 435.255 112 Yes 12 November 2024

Total 8,774,159

1 There are no performance conditions attached to these schemes, except that the employes is required to be in employment with ProCook Group plc on the
vest date,

2 The perfarmance conditions for this scheme are set out within the Annual Report on Remuneration on pages 92 to 97.

The weighted average remaining vest period is 25 months as at the 3 April 2022, The fair value of all share options granted
are calculated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Given the Groups recent admission to the
London Stock Exchange at the date/ shortly before the date of grant of the above awards, volatility remains relatively

unknown. A reasonable level has therefore been applied by the Group. following a review of similar businesses’ historical
share price volatility.
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Detail of inputs are shown below:

Leadership IPO Award

Financial Statements

2022

16Q pence

Share price at date of grant

Exercise Price 0O pence
Volatility 50%
Expected life 3 years
Risk Free rate 0.67%
Dividend yield 119
Fair value peroption e 156 pence
Employee IPO Award t i o e e 2022
Share price at dfate of grant 160 pence
Exetcise Price 44 pence
Volatility 50%
Expected life 1 year
Risk Free rate 0.67%
Dividend vield 118
Fair value per option . e 115 pence
Employee POAward2 R S e 2022
Share price at date of grant 160 pence
Exercise Price 29 pence
Volatility 50%
Expected life 2 Years
Risk Free rate 0.61%
Dividend yield 119
Fairvalue peroption . - . e 27 pence
Employee POAward3 022
Share price at date of grant 160 pence
Exercise Price 15 pence
Volatitity 50%
Expected life 3 years
Risk Free rata 0.61%
Dividend vield 118

Fair value per option

Executive PO Awardl
Share price at date of grant
Exercise Price

volatility

Expected life

Risk Free rate

Dividend yiatd

140 pence

160 pence
0O pence
50%
1year
Q.67%

119

Fair value per option

ProCook Group plc
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27. Share based payments continued
Detail of inputs are shown below:

Executive IPO Award 2 ] 2022
Share price at date of grant 160 pence
Exercise Price 145 pence
Volatility 50%
Expected life 3years
Risk Free rate 0.67%
Dividend yield 119
Fair value per option 56 pence
Leadership ESP Award Fy22 2022
Share price at date of grant 160 pence
Exercise Price C pence
Volatility 50%
Expected life 3 years
Risk Free rate 0.67%
Dividend yield 119
Fair value per option 154 pence
SAYE 2022
Share price at date of grant 160 pence
Exercise Price 112 pence
Volatility 50%
Expected life 3 years
Risk Free rate 0.67%
Dividend yield 119

Fair value per option 70 pence

Details of the total number of share options granted, exercised. lapsed and outstanding at the end of each period as well as
the weighted average exercise prices in £ ("WAEP") are as follows:

- As at 3 April As at 4 April o
o o e o e mO2 WAEP() 2021  WAEP(E)
Outstanding at beginning of period 858 141.50 536 10173
Granted during the period 8,774,159 0.29 322 20769
Forfeited/lapsed during the period (858) 14150 - ~
Exercised during the period - - - ~
Outstanding at period end 8.774.159 0.29 858 14150

Exercisable at end of period - - -

A corresponding charge to the Consolidated Income Statement of £5.8m (2021 £nil has been made in respect of these share
options in the period (excluding employer's national insurance contributions of £0.9m). In total, £6.7m has been recegnised as
a non-underlying cost and £0.1m as underlying.

28. Capital and financial commitments

As at 3 April 2022 the Group had entered into a financial commitment tc a 15-year lease in respect of a new head office and
central warehouse property. The expected commencement of this lease is 1 October 2022, with an anticipated lease liability
of approximately £12rm on the date of commencement.
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29, Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities at the year-end date (2021 none).

30. Related Parties
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries. which are related parties. have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disctosed in this note.

Transactions with Quella Bicycte Limited, a related party by virtue of one of the Group's Directors (Daniel O'Neill) holding a
financial interest. relate to the renting of warehouse space from ProCook Limited. During the year. Quella Bicycle Limited
were charged £16k for the warehouse rental (4 April 2021 £39k). Payments from Quella totalled £19k during the year (4 April
2021 £34k). The amount receivable at 3 April 2022 was £7k (1 April 2021 £9K).

Transactions with Life's a Beach Limited. a related party by virtue of one of the Groug's Directors {Danjel O'Neill being a
trustee, relate to charitable donations made on ProCook sales and other associated transactions. During the year, ProCook
sales generated £20k of donations payable to Life's a Beach {4 April 2021, £43k). During the year, ProCock made payments to
Life's a Beach of £62k (4 April 2021 £nil). The amount payable at 3 April 2022 was £7k (4 April 2021: £49k).

Included in other payables at the period ending 3 April 2022 was £19k (4 April 2021 £96k) owed to a director (Daniel O'Neill)
in respect of remaining dividends payable. The balance is non-interest bearing. Amounts paid by ProCook Group plc to the
director were £77k (4 Aprit 2021: £nil),

Remuneration of the Board and key managemant personnel can be found on pages 92 to 97.

31. Subsequent events

On 20 April 2022, ProCock Group plc entered into a revolving credit facility agreement for £10.0m with an accordion
agreement for a further £5.0m at the Groups request, subject to approval by the lender, The facility is subject to normal
commercial terms and conditions associated with such a facility. The term of the agreement is to April 2025, with two
one-year extension options available to the Group.

32. Transition to IFRS and other adjustments

These are the first consolidated financial statements prepared for ProCook Group plc and the first audited financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS for the newly formed Group. For all periods up to and including 4 April 2021 the
previous group headed by ProCook Limited prepared its statutory financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP under
FRS 102. As these consolidated financial statements apply merger accounting and present the comparative as a continuation
of the former ProCook Limited Group. these consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis that the newly
formed Group's date of transition to IFRS is 30 March 2020, being the beginning of the comparative period to 4 April 2021,

The effects of transition to IFRS on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 4 April 2021 and 30 March 2020 and
the Consolidated Income Statements for the period ended 4 April 2021 are shown below. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. the Group has applied IFRS for the first time from 30 March 2020, The group has elected
not to appty IFRS 3 retrospectively to business combinations that occurred prior to the IFRS transition date. as permitted

by IFRS 1. The principles and requirements for first time adoption of IFRS are set out in IFRS 1, Additional information on the
transition to IFRS 16 is detailed in the accounting policies and note 15,

Under [FRS the {FRS 16 standard became effective from 1 January 2013 with early adoption possible. The Group has apptied
the modified retrospective approach with no other expedients used on transition. Adjustments to leases under IFRS 16, to
recognise teases previously recognised as operating Leases as right-of-use assets.

Additionally. the Group has undertaken a comprehensive review of its historical reporting under FRS to consider the accuracy
and integrity of the historical financial statements, As a result. a number of prior year errors have been identified which
require restatement, The adjustments and restatements for transition to IFRS and correction of FRS prior year errors are set
out betow. The impact on the opening balance sheet (30 March 2020) has been stated first, followed by the impact to the
balance sheet as at 4 April 2021 the impact on the 4 April 2021 balance sheet being the sum of the 2020 and 2021 impacts.

1 IFRS Transition:
i, Right of use assets of £9.912k were recognised in the period ended 30 March 2020 Anincrease of £7.664k was
recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021
ii. Lease liabilities of £10.085k were recognised in the pericd ended 30 March 2020. An increase of £3.366k was
recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021.
ii. Trade and other payables decreased by £(420k} in the period ended 30 March 2020. A decrease of £(434k) was
recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021
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32. Transition to IFRS and other adjustments continued

IV

vi.

vil,

viii.

Xi.

Non-current other payables decreased by £(296k) in the period ended 30 March 202C. An increase of £133k was
recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021,

Trade and other receivables decreased by £(182k) in the period ended 30 March 2020, A decrease of £(251k) was
recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021,

PPE decreased by of £(386k) in the period ended 30 March 2020. An increase of £116k was recognised in the period
ended 4 April 2021,

Decrease deferred tax by £(69k} in the period ended 30 March 2020. A decrease of £(303k) was recognised in the
period ended 4 April 2021

Increased cperating expenses by £1, 2068k in the period ended 4 April 2021,

. Increased finance expenses by £327k in the period ended 4 April 2021

Decreased the tax expense by £{(303k) in the period ended 4 April 2021

Retained earnings increased by £44k in the period ended 30 March 2020. Retained earnings decreased by £(1.233k} in
the period ended 4 April 2021

2. FRS 102 restatement - correction of prior year errors:

21

2.2

23

148

Historically the Group did not defer revenue for the impact of timing differences between completion of order and
actual delivery of the order to a customer. which was a requirement under FRS 102. The adjustments to reflect this are:

i. Deferred income increased by £133k in the period ended 30 March 2020. Referred income increased by £49k in the
period 4 April 2021

ii. Inventaryincreased by £38k in the period ended 30 March 2020, Inventory increased by £15k in the period 4
April 2021

iii. Tax expense reduced by £(7k) in the period ended 4 April 2021,

iv. Reduced cost of sales by £15Kk in the period 4 April 2021

v. Revenue decreased by £{49k} in the period 4 April 2021

vi. Retained earnings reduced by £{77k} in the period ended 30 March 2020, Retained earnings decreased by £(25k) in
the period ended 4 April 2021,

Upon adoption of IFRS 15 for the first time, the Group considered the customer’s right to return products for refunds
as this is not explicitly set out under UK GAAP. The adjustment to previous periods for the right to return is made
consistently. The adjustments to reflect this are:

i. Trade and other payabtes increased by £21k in the period ended 30 March 2020. Trade and other payables
increased by £23k in the period to 4 April 2021

ii. Inventory increased by £7k in the period ended 30 March 2020. Inventory increased by £8k in the period 4
April 2021

ii. Reduce revenue by £(23k) in the period 4 April 2021

iv. Reduce cost of sales by £{8k) in the period 4 April 2021,

v. Retained earnings reduced by £(14k) in the period ended 30 March 2020. Retained earnings reduced by £{15%) in
the period ended 4 April 2021.

FRS 102 requires the recognition of software within intangible assets. having previously been recognised under PPE
due to their historical low value. The adjustments to reflect this are.

vi. Reduce Property. plant and equipment by £67k in the period ended 4 April 2021.
vii. Increase Intangibie assets by £67k in the period ended 4 April 2021
viii. Retained earnings were not affected by this adjustment.
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32. Transition to IFRS and other adjustments continued
2.4 Under 1AS 8 a restatement of prior perieds is required to appropriately recognise provisions for dilapidations in the prior
period where they were praviously omitted. The adjustments to reflect this are:

i, Provisions of £303k were recognised in the period ended 30 March 2020, An increase of £95k, from £303k to £398k
was recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021,

ii. ROU asset of £220k was racognised in the period ended 30 March 2020. An increase of £38k in ROU asset was
recognised in the period ended 4 April 2021

iii. Increased operating expenses by £49k in the pericd ended 4 April 2021,

iv. Increased finance expenses by £8k in the period ended 4 April 2021,

v. Retained earnings reduced by £(83k) in the period ended 30 March 2020. Retained earnings reduced by £(67k} in
the period ended 4 April 2021

2.5 Afurther restatement in respect of inventory is required as the Group did not historically inctude directly attributable
transport and labour costs in relation to bringing inventory into its present location. Such labour and transport costs
were also previously recognised within operating expenses - this adjustment correctly altocates them to cost of sales.
The adjustments to reflect this are.

i. Inventory increased by £91k in the period ended 30 March 2020. Inventory increased by £37k in the period ended 4
April 2021

ii. Increase cost of sales by £799k in the period ended 4 April 2021,

iii. Acorresponding decrease in operating expenses of £(799k) in the period ended 4 April 2021.

iv. Decrease in cost of sales by £(37k) in the period ended 4 April 2021,

v. Retained earnings increased by £91k in the period ended 30 March 2020. Retained earnings increased by £37k in
the period ended 4 April 2021.

2.6 A reclassification was required to recognise the warranty provision as current as opposed to non-current. The
adjustments to reflect this are-

i. Increase current provisians by £160k in the period ended 30 March 2020, Increase current provisions by £180k in
the period ended 4 April 2021.

i, Decrease non-current provisions by £(160k) in the period ended 30 March 2020. Decrease non-current provisions
by £(160k} in the period ended 4 April 2021

2.7 During the period ended 4 April 2021, the group did not appropriately recagnise an accrual relating to employee
holiday entitlement for employees on furlough. The adjustments to reflect this are:
i Increase accruals by £136k in the period ended 4 April 2021
ii. Increase opeérating expenses by £1358k in the period ended 4 April 2021.
ili. Reduce tax expense and carporation tax payable by £(26k} in the period ended 4 April 2021,
iv. Retained earnings reduced by £(110k} in the pericd ended 4 April 2021
The transition to IFRS and correction of prior year errors has impacted the presentation of items within the consclidated cash
flow statement. The implementation of IFRS 16 has resulted in £2,081k of payments being recognised within cash flows from

financing activities. which were previously presented under cash flows from operating activities. during the period ended
4 April 2021
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32. Transition to IFRS and other adjustments continued
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 March 2020

FRS FRS 102
£'000s UK GAAP Transition 1 Restatement 2 {FRS
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets - - - -
Property. plant. and egquipment 7166 (386) - 6,780
Right-of-use assels - 9.912 220 10,132
Total non-current assets 7.166 9526 220 16,912
Current assets
Inventories 5266 - 136 5402
Trade and other receivables 782 (182) - 600
Cash and cash equivalents 2,856 - - 2,956
Total current assets 9.004 (182) 136 8,958
Total assets 16,170 9,344 356 25,870
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 3.917 {420) 154 3,851
Lease liabitities - 1751 - 1751
Other Provisions - - 160 160
Borrowings 4239 - - 4239
Current tax liability 294 - - 294
Total current liabilities 8,450 1331 314 10,095
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 296 (298) - -
Lease liabilities - 8,334 - 8,334
Other provisions 160 143 303
Borrowings 2,357 - - 2.357
Deferred tax liability 337 (69} (18 250
Total non-current liabilities 3150 7.969 125 11,244
Totallisbilities L1800 | 8300 439 | 21339
Net assets 4,570 44 (83) 4,531
Equity and reserves attributable to Shareholders of ProCook Group ple
Share capital - - - -
Revaluation reserve 472 - - 472
Retained earnings 4.098 44 (83) 4,059
Total equity and reserves ~ .. =74 44 (83 4531
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32. Transition to IFRS and other adjustments continued
Consolidated Income Statement for the period ended 4 April 2021

IFRS FRS 102

E'Q00s e o UKGAAP | Transitionl Restatement2 | 1FRS
Revenue 53,465 - (72) 53,393
Cost of sales {16.775) - {738) (17,513)
Gross profit 36,690 - (810} 35,880
Cperating expensed (28.469) (L1786} 613 {29,032}
Cther income 2.848 - - 2,848
Operating profit 11,069 {1,176} (197} 9,696
Finance expenses (89) (360} 8} {457}
Other gains/{losseas} (949) - - {949)
Profit before tax 10,031 (1,536} (205) 8,290
Tax expense (2.202) 303 33 {1,866)
Profit for the period 7,829 (1,233) {172) 6,424
Total other comprehensive income _ 7,829 Q1233 0 A72) 6424
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32. Transition to IFRS and other adjustments continued
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 4 Aprit 2021

IFRS FRS 102
£'Q00 UK GAAP B/fwd Adj Transition 1 Restatement 2 IFRS
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets - - - 87 67
Property. plant. and equipment 3.968 (3886) 116 (67) 3,631
Right-of-use assets - 10,132 7664 38 17,834
Total non-current assets 3,968 9,746 7780 38 21,532
Current assets
Inventories 9.892 136 - 60 10,088
Trade and other receivables 1.888 (182) (251) - 1,455
Cash and cash equivalents 5879 - - - 5879
Total current assets 17.659 (46) (251) 60 17,422
Total assets 21627 9,700 7529 ] a8 38,954
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6,713 (2663 (434) 208 6,221
Lease liabilities - 1751 1030 - 2781
Provisions - 160 - - 160
Borrowings 2.803 - - - 2,803
Current tax liability 413 - - (28) 387
Total current liabilities _ L 9.92¢ 1645 586 182 12,352
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 163 (296) 133 - -
Lease liabilities - 8334 83386 - 16,670
Provisions 160 143 - 95 398
Deferred tax liabitity 426 (87) (303} {7) 29
Total non-current liabilities 749 8.094 8,166 88 17,097
Total liabilities ) ) los7s 9,739 3,762 270 29,449
Netassets . _ ... losae o) @23y W) 9505
Equity and reserves attributable to Shareholders of
ProCook Group plc
Share capital - - - - -
Retained earnings 10.849 {39} {1,233) {172) 9,505
Total equity and reserves R 10949 (39 1233  (172) 9,505
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As at 3 April
£'000s e o v ey et ettt o oo 1 AR 151 e 101 et et Note e e 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary 4 117.300
Deferred tax asset 1559
Total non-current assets . . 118.859
Current assets
Trade and other recejvables 5 111
Deferred tax asset 80
Total current assets 191
Total assets ~ - - —— o 119,050
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables & 1370
Current tax Gability 75
Total current liabitities 1446
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6 816
Total non-current liabilities 815
Total liabilities 2262
Netassets . ) 116,788
Equity and reserves attributable to Shareholders of ProCook Group pic
Share capital 7 1.090
Share Premium 7 1
Share Option Reserve 8 5801
Retained earnings 7 109,896
Total equity and reserves 116,788

The Company made a loss after tax of £(6.5)m in the 23 week period to 3 April 2022,

The financial statements for ProCook Group Plc (Company Registration No. 13679248 (England and Wales)) on pages
153 to 161 were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 August 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Can vinwdan
Chief Financial Officer

4 August 2022
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Changes in EQUity asat 3 Aprit 2022

Merger relief Share Share option Retained
£'Q00 Share capiltal reserve premium reserve earnings Total equity
On incorporation, 14 October 2021 - - - - - -
On acquisition of ProCook Limited - 117.300 - - - 117,300
Bonus issue 117.300 (117.300) - - - -
Capitat reduction (118,300} - - - 116,300 -
Share options exercised 54 - 1 - - 55
Issue of shares 36 - - (36) - -
Share based payment awards - - - 5837 - 5,837
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - - (5,504) (5,504)
Dividends paid - - - - (900) {900)
Asat 3 April 2022 1,090 - 1 5,801 109,896 116,788
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Parent Company Financial Statements
Accounting Policies rorthe 52 weeks to 3 ppri 2022

General Information

ProCook Group plc (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the
Companies Act 2006 (Registration number; 13679248}, The registered office is ProCook, Davy Way. Waterwells. Gloucester.
GL2 2BY.

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
Note 4 to the financial statements,

Group Reorganisation

On 26 October 2021 PreCock Group Limited acquired the entire shareholding of ProCook Limited via a share-for-share
exchange. with the existing owners of ProCook Limited at that time becoming the owners of ProCook Group Limited. 100
ordinary shares of £1.00 each in ProCook Limited were exchanged by the owners for 10.000 ordinary shares of £0.01 eachin
ProCook Group Limited.

On acquisition of ProCook Limited. £117 3m was recognised in the Merger Relief Reserve reflecting the investmentin
subsidiary which arose via the share for share exchange. A bonus issue of 11,729.990.1C0 ordinary shares of £0.01 each
increased Share Capital by £117.3m with a corresponding reduction in the Merger Relief Reserve balance,

Immediately following the bonus issue, a capital reduction was undertaken. This reduced the share capital of ProCook Group
plc by £116 3m through the cancellation of 11.630,000.100 ordinary shares of £0.01 each leaving in issue 100,000.000 shares
of £0.01 each.

On the 10 November 2021, the entire issued share capitat of the Company was admitted for provisional trading on ta the
premium listing segment of the Official List of the London Stock Exchange's Main Market for listed securities, becoming
ProCock Group ple. with full admission taking place on the 12 November 2021,

These financial statements of ProCook Group plc are for the period of incorporation. 14 October 2021 to the 3 April 2022 and
are the first set of financial statements for the Company.

No fair value differences have been identified, and no goodwill recognised.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and FRS

102 "The financial reporting standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Iretland™ ("FRS 102"). In accordance with the
exemption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006. the Company has not presented its own income statement,
or statement of comprehensive incormne. The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling. generally rounded to the
nearest thousand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis. unless otherwise stated.

The Directors have. at the time of approving the financial statements. a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in cperational existence for the foreseeable future, Thus, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial information are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Group has taken the following permissible disclosure exemptions under FRS 102,

Exemption from presenting a Statement of Cash Flow and related notes
Partial exemption from share-based payment disclosures
Exemption from disclosing related party transactions entered into between wholly owned subsidiaries

Going concern

In their consideration of going concermn of ProCook Group plc. the Directors have reviewed the Group's future cash forecasts
and profit projections. In line with the conciusions drawn on the Group. the Directors are of the opinion that the Group's
forecasts and projections, which consider a range of downside scenarios, show that the Group is able to cperate within its
current facilities and comply with its banking covenants for the foreseeable future. The Directors are satisfied that there are
sufficient resources to continue in business for at least 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements,

The Directors believe that the Group and Company are well placed to manage its business risks successfully. Having
reassessed the principal risks. the Directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial information.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

Estimate: Investment in Subsidiaries

Since the acquisition of ProCook Limited was obtained via a share for share exchange, the cost of the investment was not
immediately apparent, The cost of the acquisition was determined to be the fair value of ProCook Limited. Without external
market valuations, business valuations are inherently estimation and judgement based. The best available internal and market
data was used by management to determine the valuation, utilising a range of valuation methodologies, inciuding discounted
cash flow, EBITDA multiples and Price/Earnings ratic. These were calculated based on the Group's three-year plan, extended
outwards to five years with a terminal growth rate of 2%, at the date of acguisition reflecting future anticipated financial
performance and cash generation expectations, The valuation was estimated to be £117.3m. Subsequent to this, at each
reporting period, management will assess for any impairment triggers to ensure the valuation remains appropriate.

Judgement -~ Indicator of impairment (investment in subsidiaries)

The Group has considered indicators of impairment for the investment in subsidiaries which reflect the trading entities of the
Group. Notably the share price has declined substantially since IPO. an effect which was particularly evident after the Group
updated the markets on its trading performance and outlook on 10 June 2022, Given the recent share price fall, the Group
has judged there to be an indicator of impairment, and as such a review of the valuation of the investment in subsidiary has
been undertaken.

This review has considered the future anticipated financial performance and cash generation of the Group cver a forecast
period based on the Group's thres year financial plan extended outwards to five years. and reflecting a terminal growth rate
of 2%. The forecast reflects revenue and cost growth assumgptions reflecting the Group's Retail and Ecommerce ambitions,
as well as expected capital investments and net working capital requirements. The assessment has considered a range of
common valuation methodologies focusing largely on a Discounted Cash Flow approach and sense-checked with EBITDA
multiple valuations, The carrying value of the investment is £117.3m and no impairment has been identified. The sensitivity
of the valuation estimates are such that a 10% reduction in projected revenue performance in each year of the assessment
peried (66% reduction in projected revenue growth over five years) would result in a £3.2m reduction in the value of the
Investment in Subsidiaries held on the Statement of Financial Position. Further detail on investment in subsidiaries can be
found in note 4.

Expenses

Share based payments

The Company operates a number of share based compensation plans which are all equity settled. in exchange for services
received from empioyees. The fair value of these compensation plans is calculated at the grant date using the Black-S5choles
model. The resulting cost is expensed to the Income Statement over the vesting period. The value of the expense is adjusted
to reflect expected and actual levels of vesting, considering any performance conditions which may apply to individual plans,

Social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options are considered an integral part of the
grant itself and the expense will be treated as a cash-settled transaction,

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement as incurred. The cost of
any unused holiday entittement is recognised in the period in which the employees services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed to terminate
the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme using an external pensions partner. Contributions to the
scheme are expensed to the Income Statement in the period to which the contributions relate. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Company.

There have been ne significant changes during the period relating to the current scheme. nor its membership and terms
and conditions.
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Current and deferred taxation

Taxation. comprising current and deferred taxation, is recognised in the Income Staternent. except where a charge
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income or to an item recognised directly
in equity is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. respectively.

Currant tax on profits or losses for the period, is calculated based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the UK where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax balances in the Statement of Financial Position are recognised in respect of all timing differences that have
originated but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except where:

The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they witll be recovered against the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and

Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of business combinations.
when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair vatues of assets acquired and the future tax deductions
available for them and the differences between the fair values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed
for tax. Deferred income tax is detarmined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Where applicable the Company makes claims for Research and Devetopment {R&D) tax reliefs in accordance with the
Research and Development Expenditure Credit (RDEC) scheme. Qualifying projects are assessed to ensure the claims made
fit the criteria and definitions set cut by the UK HM Revenue and Customs. R&D tax relief claims are recognised in the tax
expense line of the Income Statement.

Dividends
Ordinary dividends propased by the Board of Directors are only recagnised in the financial statements when they have been
approved by the shareholders, and the Company is obliged to make payment.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are recegnised at cost less accumulated impairments. During the year, the cost of the acquisition
of the ProCook Limited Group was recognised at the fair value of the shares issued in the share for share exchange, over
the nominal value of the shares. as required under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2008. At each reporting period an
impairment assessment is undertaken to ensure the valuation remains appropriate. All impairment losses will reduce

the carrying vatue of the investment and be charged to the Income statement during the year in which the impairment is
recognised.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially measured at the transaction price less transaction costs and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method

The Company assesses impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristics based on grouping debt by days overdue The Company alsc considers the potential for default or any
other failure to make payment to the Company. Trade and other receivablas are oniy derecognised when the right to the
contractual cash flows from the asset expire or are settled.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payabies are initialty recognised at the transaction price and are subsequently carried at amortised cost.
They are recognised as current liabitities if payment is due within 12 months. Otherwise. they are recognised as non-current,

Share Capital

Changes in the share capitat structure are recognised within equity on the Statement of Financial Position, within any excess
over the nominal share price being recognised within Share premium. Where the Company purchases its own equity share
capital (treasury shares) the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs, is deducted from

the equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are
subseqguently sold or reissued. any consideration received net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and
the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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1. Employee numbers and costs

The Company's employees are the Chairman, three Non-Executive directors and three Executive directors {(the Group
Board). Full details of the Directors' remuneration and interests are set cut in the Remuneration Report on pages 92 to 97.
Share-based payments detaits are given in note 8.

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees. The scheme is
administered and managed by a separate third-party specialist pension scheme provider. The total expense recognised in
the Income Statement for the period ended 3 Aprit 2022 was £2k representing contributions payable to these plans by the
Company at rates specified in the rutes of the plans.

2. Auditor's Remuneration

23 weeks

ended

£'000 3 April 2022

Fee payable for the audit of the Company's financial statements 8

Total audit remuneration 8
3. Dividends

23 weeks

Dividend per ended

£'000 share (pence) 3 April 2022

Interim dividend for the period ended 03 April 2022 1.0 900

At the time of the interim dividend, 100,000,000 shares were in place.

The interim dividend of £1.0m was declared representing 1.0 pence per share with £300k paid. and £100k waived by certain
shareholders. The interim dividend was paid to the shareholders on the register at close of business on 8 November 2021,

The directors are proposing a final dividend of 0.9 pence per Ordinary share for the period ended 3 April 2022, which equates
to £1.0m subject to shareholder approval at the AGM. This will be paid on 30 September 2022 to shareholders on the register
at close of business on 2 September 2022,
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4. Investment in subsidiaries

Financial Statements

During the year, ProCaook Group ple entered into a share for share exchange with the owners of ProCock Limited. thereby
acquiring 100% of the shares of PraCook Limited. Management determined the valuation of ProCook Limited at the
acquisition date and have performed an impairment assessment at the reported date. No impairments were identified,

ProCook Group plc substantiatly owns directly or indirectly the whole of the issued and fully paid ordinary share capital of its
subsidiary undertakings. The subsidiary undertakings of ProCook Group plc are presented below

Subsidiaries ..
ProCook Limited
ProCock {Kitchens} Limited!
ProCook {Steamer Trading) Limited!

ProCook BV. (Registered in The Netherlands) |

Proportion of ordinary
shares held by ProCook

100%
100%
100%

1 Share capital held by subsidiary undertaking
2 ProCeok BV. has not begun trading during the financial year

LoSeueple

e 100%

e o Principal activity
Retait of kitchenware
Property holding company
Property holding company
Retait of kitchenware’

ProCook Group ple, the Company. and its subsidiaries {excluding ProCook BV) are incorparated and domiciled in the UK. The
registered office is ProCook. Davy Way. Waterwells, Gloucester. United Kingdom. GL.2 28BY.

ProCook BV. incorporated in the Netherlands. has a registered office at Veerpolder 1-B, 2361KV. Warmond. The Netherlands.

5. Trade receivables

As at 3 April
000 e e e e e I e 2022
Other receivables 104
Prepayments 7
Total 11

All trade receivables are due within one year from the end of the reporting period. No impairment was incurred on trade
receivables during the period. No material amounts are overdue,

6. Trade and other payables

As at 3 April
B000 e e - N .. 2022
Amounts falling due within one year:
Accruals 97
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1,273
Total - S LL370
As at 3 April
Amounts falling due after one year:
Accruals 816
Total 816

The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates to thelr fair value. Trade payables are

non-interest bearing and are normally settled monthly.
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7. Share Capital and Reserves

As at 3 April
£ 2022
Allotted, called up and futly paid
10.000 Ordinary shares of 1p each -
108,956,624 Ordinary Shares of 1p each 1,089,566
Jotal 1,089,566

On 26 October 2021, ProCook Group Limited acquired the entire shareholding of ProCook Limited via a share-for-share
exchange, with the existing owners of ProCook Limited at that time becoming the owners of ProCook Group Limited. 100
ordinary shares of £1.00 each in ProCook Limited were exchanged by the owners for 10,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each in
ProCook Group Limited.

On acquisition of ProCook Limited. £117.3m was recognised in the Merger Relief Reserve reflecting the investment in
subsidiary which arose via the share for share exchange. A bonus issue of 11.729.990.100 ordinary shares of £0.01 each
increased Share Capital by £117.2m with a corresponding reduction in the Merger Relief Reserve balance.

Immediately following the bonus issue. a capital reduction was undertaken. This reduced the share capital of ProCock Group
plc by £116.3m through the cancellation of 11,630,000 100 ordinary shares of £0.01 each leaving in issue 100,000,000 shares
of £0.01 each,

During the year, an existing EMI scheme vasted, resulting in 5,360.0C0 shares being issued for total consideration of £55k. A
further 3,596,624 shares were issued and allotted for total consideration of £36k to the employee benefit trust in respect of a
new share scheme which was imptemented cn IPO.

Only cne class of shares have been issued which have full voting, dividend and capital distribution rights.

Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpoese of each reserve within equity:

Share premium account: Proceeds received in excess of the nominal value of shares issued, net of any transaction costs

Merger relief reserve: Originally created as part of the acquisition of ProCook Limited by ProCook Group plc. it represents

the difference between the fair value of ProCook timited and the nominal value of the shares issued, hence reflecting the
application of merger relief from recording share premium. The reserve has subsequently been reduced following the benus
issue, as detailed above.

Share optien reserve: Used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments expenses. See note 27 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on share-based payment plans.

Retained earnings: All other accumulated net gains and losses and transactions with shareholders not recognised elsewhere.
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8. Share based payments
The Company operates several eguity-settled share based remuneration schemes for employees. The vesting sate for each
scheme is the last day of the contractual life of the scheme. The terms and conditions of the grants are detailed below:

Exercise price Vest
Dateofgrant ~ ~~  Share Scheme R No.ofoptiens ~ (pence) ~  conditions Vest date
12-Nov-21 Leadership PO Award 3173.876 ¢ No 12 November 2021
12-Nov-21 Employee IPO Award 1* 1198688 44 Yes 12 November 2022
12-Nov-21 Employee IPO Award 2 1128.6388 29 Yes 12 November 2023
12-Nov-21 Employee IPC Award 3! 1198.688 15 Yes 12 Navember 2024
12-Nov-21 Executive IPO Award 1! 172.413 o] Yes 12 November 2024
12-Nov-21 Executive IPO Award 2? 689.655 145 Yes 12 November 2024
12-Nov-21 Leadership ESP Award FY222 706.896 0o Yes 12 November 2024
10-Jan-22 SAYE! 435.255 112 Yes 12 November 2024

Total i 8,774,159

1 There are no performance conditions attached to these schemes, except that the emplayee is required to be in employment with ProCook Group plc on the
vest date.

2 The performance conditiohs for this scheme are set out within the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 92 to 97.

Fair Value Calculations
The fair value of all share options granted are calculated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.
Further detail is provided on pages 144 to 146,

An expense of £5.8m has been recognised in the Income Statement during the period in respect of the share schemes in
ptace. as well as a corresponding entry to the Share option Reserve within Equity.

Details of the number of share options granted. exercised. lapsed and outstanding at the end of each pericd as well as the
weighted average exercise prices in £ ("WAEP") are as follows.

As at 3 April As at 4 April
e e | o2 w2021 wAER®
Outstanding at beginning of period 858 14150 536 10173
Granted during the period 8,774,159 029 322 20769
Forfeited/lapsed during the period (858) 14150 - -
Exercised during the period - - - -
Qutstanding at period end 8,774,159 0.29 858 14150

Exercisable at end of period - - - _

9, Contingent liabitities
The Group had no contingent liabilities at the year-end date.

10. Related Parties
During the year, ProCook Group plc entered into transactiens of £1.3m in respect to operating expenses with ProCook Limited,
which resulted an amount payable of £1.3m to ProCock Limited as at 3 April 2022,

There were no other related party transactions during the year.

11. Subsequent events

On 20 April 2022 ProCock Group plc entered into a revolving credit facility agreement for £10.0m with an accordion
agreement for a further £50m at the Group's request, subject to approval by the lender. The facility is subject to normal
commercial terms and conditions associated with such a facility. The term of the agreement is to April 2025, with two one-
year extension options available to the Group.
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